
**** Please Note the addition of ACTION ITEM E *** 
 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Conference Room, Fifth Floor, 121 N. 9th Street 
March 12, 2018 12:00 p.m. 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER .............................................................................................................. Chair Zuckerman 

II. AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS ..................................................................................... Chair Zuckerman 
III. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Expenses 
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – February 2018 
 

B. Minutes and Reports 
1. Approval of February 12, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
 

C. Other 
1 Approve Resolution #1530 – 222 N 8th Street – Diablo & Sons – Type One Participation Agreement 

with Bittercreek/Red Feather LLC [Designation 2/12/18, NTE $150,000] 
2. Approve Resolution #1531 – 122 N 5th Street – Shops on 5th – Type One Participation Agreement 

with Brownfield’s Building, LLC [Designation 2/12/18, NTE $150,000] 
3. Approve Resolution #1534 Approval of 201 N 29th Street – Whittier Elementary – Type Four 

Participation Agreement with Boise School District [Designation 2/12/18, NTE $540,000] 
4. Approve FY 2018 Q1 Financial Report, October 1 thru December 31, 2017 (Unaudited) 
 

IV. ACTION ITEM  
A. PUBLIC MEETING: 2017 Annual Report ...................................................................... Chair Zuckerman 

 
B. CONSIDER: Approval of the 2017 Annual Report ............................................................... John Brunelle 

 
C. CONSIDER: Approval of the 2018-2022 Capital Improvement Mid-Year Amendment (5 minutes) 

 ...................................................................................................................................... Todd Bunderson 
 

D. CONSIDER: Capitol & Front Garage Disposition - Discuss and Approve Disposition Process and 
Request for Proposals (5 minutes) ...................................................... Laura Williams & Todd Bunderson 
 

E. CONSIDER: Resolution #1536  - Approval of Termination of the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the 
condominium of 406 S. 5th Street, aka 5th & Broad Garage (5 minutes) ....................... Shellan Rodriguez 
 

F. CONSIDER: Resolution #1532 – Central District CMGC Contract Amendment #2, Freak Alley and 
Union Alley Improvements (5 minutes) ............................................................................. Doug Woodruff  
 

G. CONSIDER: Resolution #1533 – Approval of Consultant Services Contract for Shoreline District 
Formation (5 minutes) ...................................................................................................... Doug Woodruff 
 

H. CONSIDER: Resolution #1538 – Awarding Contract for the Power Line Relocation Project: Main & 
Idaho Alley | 3rd to 5th Streets (5 minutes) ........................................................................... Kathy Wanner 



 
V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Operations Report (5 minutes) ............................................................................................ John Brunelle 
 

VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Deliberations regarding acquisition of an interest in real property which is not owned by a public agency; consider records that are 
exempt from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code; and communicate with legal counsel to discuss the legal 
ramifications and legal options for pending litigation or controversies not yet being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated [Idaho 
Code Section 74-206(1) (c), (d) and (f)].  

 
VII. ADJOURN 
This meeting is being conducted in a location accessible to those with physical disabilities. Participants may request reasonable 
accommodations, including but not limited to a language interpreter, from CCDC to facilitate their participation in the meeting. For 
assistance with accommodation, contact CCDC at 121 N 9th St, Suite 501 or (208) 384-4264 (TTY Relay 1-800-377-3529). 

 
 

















FEBRUARY 12, 2018 BOARD MEETING MINUTES P1 
 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
121 N. 9th St., Conference Room 

Boise, ID 83702 
February 12, 2018 12:00 p.m. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER:  
 
Chairman Zuckerman convened the meeting with a quorum at 12:02 p.m. 
 
Present: Commissioner David Bieter, Commissioner Scot Ludwig, Commissioner Maryanne 
Jordan, Commissioner Gordon Jones, Commissioner Ryan Woodings, and Commissioner Dana 
Zuckerman.  
 
Absent: Commissioner Ben Quintana 
 
Commissioner Jordan left at 1:04 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Woodings left at 1:52 p.m. 
 
Agency staff members present were: John Brunelle, Executive Director; Todd Bunderson, 
Development Director; Max Clark, Parking and Mobility Director; Ross Borden, Finance & 
Administration Director; Mary Watson, General Counsel & Contracts Manager; Doug Woodruff, 
Senior Project Manager; Laura Williams, Project Manager; Matt Edmond, Project Manager; 
Shellan Rodriguez, Real Estate Development Manager; Kevin Martin, Accountant & HR; and 
Sandy Lawrence, Administrative Assistant. Also present was Agency legal counsel, Matt Parks. 
 

II. AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS: 
 
There were no changes or additions to the agenda.  

III. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Expenses 
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – January 2018 

 
B. Minutes and Reports 

1. Approval of January 8, 2018 Meeting Minutes 
 

Commissioner Ludwig and Commissioner Woodings abstained from voting on the Consent 
Agenda due to their absence from the last board meeting. 

Commissioner Woodings made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion 
 
With the exception of Commissioner Ludwig, and Commissioner Woodings, All said Aye. The 
motion carried 4 – 0 



FEBRUARY 12, 2018 BOARD MEETING MINUTES P2 
 

 

IV. ACTION ITEM  
 

A. CONSIDER: Annual Independent Audit and Financial Report for FY 2017 
 
Kevin Smith, Eide Bailly Audit Partner, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings made a motion to accept independent auditor Eide Bailly LLP’s 
report of the Agency’s FY 2017 financial statements and authorize distribution to 
statutorily-required entities.  
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6 - 0 
 
 

B. CONSIDER: 301 N. 29th Street – Whittier Elementary – Type 4 Participation 
Agreement Designation 
 
Laura Williams, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings made a motion to direct staff to negotiate a final Type 4 Capital 
Improvements Reimbursement Participation Agreement with Boise School District for 
future board approval.  
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6 - 0 
 
 

C. CONSIDER:  222 N 8th Street – Diablo and Son’s – Type 1 Participation Agreement 
Designation 
 
Laura Williams, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings made a motion to direct staff to negotiate a final Type 1 
Participation Agreement with Bittercreek/Red Feather, LLC for future board approval.  
 
Commissioner Jordan seconded the motion 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6 - 0 
 
 

D. CONSIDER:  122 N 5th Street – Brownfield’s Redevelopment – Type 1 Participation 
Agreement Designation 
 
Laura Williams, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report. 



FEBRUARY 12, 2018 BOARD MEETING MINUTES P3 
 

 
Commissioner Woodings made a motion to direct staff to negotiate a final Type 1 
Participation Agreement with Brownfield’s Building, LLC. For future board approval.  
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6 - 0 
 
 

E. CONSIDER: Resolution #1524 – Parking Wait List Policy Update 
 
Max Clark, CCDC Director of Parking & Mobility, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings made a motion to approve Resolution No. 1524, adopting the 
updated Wait List Policy for the ParkBOI off-street garage parking system.  
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6 – 0 
 
 

F. CONSIDER: Resolution #1525 – Parking Enforcement & Collection Policy Update 
 
Max Clark, CCDC Director of Parking & Mobility, gave a report. 
 
Commissioner Woodings made a motion to approve Resolution No. 1525, adopting an 
updated Parking Enforcement & Collections Policy.  
 
Commissioner Ludwig recused himself on this vote.  
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion 
 
With the exception of Commissioner Ludwig, All said Aye. The motion carried 5 - 0 
 

G. CONSIDER: Resolution #1526 – Central District CMGC Contract Amendment, GMP 
#1 
 
Doug Woodruff, CCDC Senior Project Manager and Mary Watson, CCDC General 
Counsel & Contracts Manager, gave a report.  
 
Commissioner Woodings made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1526, authorizing the 
amendment of the Central District CM/GC Agreement with Guho Corporation.  
 



FEBRUARY 12, 2018 BOARD MEETING MINUTES P4 
 

Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6 – 0 
 
Commissioner Jordan left the meeting before Action Item H. 
 

H. CONSIDER: Resolution #1527 – 2403 W Fairview – Adare Manor – Type 4 
Participation Agreement 

 
Shellan Rodriguez, CCDC Real Estate Development Manager, gave a report.  
 
Commissioner Woodings made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1527, authorizing the 
execution of the Type 4 Public Private Participation Agreement with Northwest Integrity 
Housing Co.  
 
Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 5 - 0 

 
 

V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

A. Trailhead Management Report 

Dan Faricy, Trailhead Executive Director, gave a report. 

B. VRT ValleyConnect 2.0 Plan 

 Kelli Badesheim, VRT Executive Director, gave a report 

C. Operations Report 

 John Brunelle, CCDC Executive Director, gave a report.  
 

VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Ludwig to go into an executive session at 1:58 p.m. to 
deliberate regarding acquisition of an interest in real property which is not owned by a public 
agency [Idaho Code 67-2345(1)(c)]. Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion. A roll call vote 
was taken: 
 

Commissioner Bieter   Aye 
Commissioner Ludwig  Aye 
Commissioner Jordan  Absent 
Commissioner Jones   Aye 



FEBRUARY 12, 2018 BOARD MEETING MINUTES P5 
 

Commissioner Quintana  Absent 
Commissioner Woodings  Absent 
Commissioner Zuckerman  Aye 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 4 - 0 
 

EXECUTIVE MEETING ADJOURNMENT  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Ludwig to adjourn executive session at 2:36 p.m. and 
return to the public meeting. Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion. A roll call vote was 
taken: 
 
Commissioner Bieter   Aye 
Commissioner Ludwig  Aye 
Commissioner Jordan  Absent 
Commissioner Jones   Aye 
Commissioner Quintana  Absent 
Commissioner Woodings  Absent 
Commissioner Zuckerman  Aye 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 4 - 0 
 

VII. REGULAR MEETING ADJOURNMENT  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by 
Commissioner Ludwig to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Bieter seconded the motion.   
 
All said Aye. 4 - 0 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:37 p.m. 

- - - - 
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION ON THE 12th DAY OF MARCH, 2018   

 
 

___________________________________ 

Dana Zuckerman, Chair 

 __________________________________  

Ryan Woodings, Vice Chair  



AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution #1530 approving the Type One Participation Agreement with 
Bittercreek/Red Feather LLC. 

Date: 
3/12/2018 

Staff Contact: 
Laura Williams 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution and Agreement
2) Images and Rendering

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution #1530 approving the Type 1 Streetscape Participation Agreement with 
Bittercreek/Red Feather, LLC and authorizing the Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

Background: 

The corner of the Fidelity Building on 8th and Idaho is being remodeled for a new restaurant 
called Diablo & Sons. The renovation is being done in conjunction with several other building 
improvements including installing new mechanical systems, and constructing a commercial 
kitchen in the basement. The owners of Bittercreek/ Red Feather are investing over $2 million in 
building upgrades.  

The Fidelity Building was built in the early 1900’s and has seen many uses throughout the 
years. Most recently, Pollo Rey was located in the space and closed a few months ago to 
accommodate the new restaurant’s construction. The Diablo & Sons will feature Mexican fare 
with a focus on specialty Mezcal cocktails. The new space will have roll up garage doors to 
allow for indoor-outdoor dining experience, activating the street frontage.  

CCDC encourages owner/tenant improvements that refresh downtown buildings, strengthen 
occupancy, and enhance the public realm and pedestrian experience. As part of this project this 
building owners will install new awnings around the 1st floor of the building replacing the 
outdated, lower hanging canvas awnings. Because the sidewalks have already been improved 
consistent with CCDC’s streetscape standards the eligible costs will only include the proposed 
awnings.  

Since the Board Designation at the February 12th meeting, Bittercreek / Red Feather received 
updated cost estimates which will allow them to include new awnings along the entire 8th street 
side of the Fidelity Building, and will wrap around Idaho Street approximately 66 feet – to the 
entrance of Pho Nouveau. An updated project depiction is included in the attached agreement. 

In 2014, the Board of Commissioners approved CCDC’s Participation Program, which includes 
a Type 1 Streetscape Grant Reimbursement. The Type 1 program is intended to, “assist smaller 
projects on their own schedule, often triggered by a tenant improvement.” The grant will 
reimburse for up to $150,000 of eligible expenses, hard costs for streetscapes and public 
improvements. The Type 1 program can also include awnings located in the public right-of-way. 



CCDC’s Participation Program Policy stipulates several criteria that awnings must meet in order 
to be considered eligible expenses, and the Fidelity Building awnings meet all of the 
specifications as follows:  

1. Awnings must be located in the right-of-way or included in a public easement: All
awnings will be installed in the public ROW and will be included as eligible expenses.

2. Awnings must provide functional services (shelter from sun, rain, etc.) to the
public sidewalks and streetscapes: The Fidelity buildings awnings will be made with a
sheet of powder coated steel and will protect the sidewalks from the elements.

3. Awnings must extend at least 5 feet into the right-of-way: The awnings vary from 6’
to 12’ from the building face in the right-of-way.

4. Awnings must cover over 75% of the ground-floor frontage: This project is unique
as it is a remodel of a portion of an existing building. We are considering the project area
to consist of the space being retrofitted, which includes 194 linear feet. With the updated
scope, 100% of this frontage will have awning coverage.

5. Awnings must be made of durable material (including but not limited to metal,
polycarbonate, and durable fabric): The awnings will be fabricated out of steel, and
will include a PVC membrane roofing and decorative tin ceiling paneling underneath.

Project Summary and Timeline: 
• 3,000 SF restaurant renovation
• Located on 8th and Idaho Street (Central URD)
• $2.2 Million estimated Total Development Costs
• February 8, 2018 – DR approval (staff level)
• February 12, 2018 – CCDC Board Type 1 Agreement Designation
• March 12, 2018 – CCDC Board Approval of Type 1 Agreement
• Spring 2018 – Construction Complete. Developer submits costs for reimbursement.

Fiscal Notes: 
Preliminary information shows that the project has eligible costs will exceed $150,000, and the 
project will request $150,000 as determined in the Type 1 Participation Program. The project 
meets all program requirements. The budget for this will be included in the Amended 2018-2022 
CIP, presented to the Board in March. This is an additional Type 1 for the Central district, made 
available with project changes in the district in the last several months. Because the Central 
district is closing this fiscal year, tax increment calculations are not factored.  

Staff Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution 1530 approving the Type 1 Streetscape Participation Agreement with 
Bittercreek/Red Feather, LLC and authorizing the Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

Suggested Motion: 
Adopt Resolution 1530 approving the Type 1 Streetscape Participation Agreement with 
Bittercreek/Red Feather, LLC and authorizing the Executive Director to execute the agreement. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1530 Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  1530 

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING THE TYPE 1 PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND BITTERCREEK / RED FEATHER 
LLC; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND ANY NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; 
AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS TO THE 
AGREEMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning 
urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly 
published, conducted a public hearing on the 1987 Amended and Restated Urban Renewal 
Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Boise 
Central District Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City adopted its 
Ordinance No. 5026 on August 19, 1987, approving the Boise Central District Urban Renewal 
Plan and making certain findings; and, 

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 1994 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “1994 Amended Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public 
hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5597 on December 6, 1994, approving the 1994 
Amended Urban Renewal Plan and making certain findings; and, 

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 2007 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Central District Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City 
adopted its Ordinance No. 6576 on June 26, 2007, effective upon publication on July 23, 2007, 
approving the Central District Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, Bittercreek / Red Feather, LLC (“Participant”), owns or controls certain real 
property at 222 N 8th Street, Boise, Idaho (the “Site”), which is located in the Boise Central 
Urban Renewal District as created by the Central District Plan; and,  

WHEREAS, Participant intends on making improvements to the systems and exterior of 
the building on the Site and desires to install new awnings that extend over the public right-of-
way (the “Project”); and, 

Attachment 1 - Resolution



RESOLUTION NO. 1530  Page 2  

WHEREAS, the Agency has in place a Participation Program which includes the Type 1 
Assistance Program under which the Agency reimburses developers for construction of public 
improvements including awnings which meet Agency’s requirements; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, attached hereto as Attachment 1, and incorporated herein as if set forth in 
full, is the Type 1 Participation Program Agreement and exhibits thereto (“Agreement”) with 
Participant whereby Participant will construct the Project and the Agency will reimburse 
Participant for constructing public improvements as specified in the Agreement; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to approve 
the Agreement and to authorize the Executive Director to execute the Agreement. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Agreement, which is attached hereto as Attachment 1 and 
incorporated herein by reference, is hereby approved. 
 
 Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to sign 
and enter into the Agreement and to execute all necessary documents required to implement 
the actions contemplated by the Agreement, subject to representations by the Agency staff and 
the Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to such actions have been met; and 
further, any necessary technical changes to the Agreement or other documents are acceptable, 
upon advice from the Agency’s legal counsel that said changes are consistent with the 
provisions of the Agreement and the comments and discussions received at the March 12, 
2018, Agency Board meeting; the Agency is further authorized to appropriate any and all funds 
contemplated by the Agreement and to perform any and all other duties required pursuant to 
said Agreement. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on March 12, 2018.  
Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the 
Board of Commissioners on March 12, 2018.   
 
 
      URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
      By:         
            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      David Bieter, Secretary 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 1 

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

THIS TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) 
is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, also known as 
the Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic, 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho and known as the urban renewal 
agency of the City of Boise City, Idaho (“CCDC”) and Bittercreek / Red Feather, LLC. 
(“Participant”).  CCDC and Participant may be collectively referred to as the “Parties” and 
individually referred to as a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

A. Participant owns or controls certain real property located 222 N 8th Street, Boise, 
Idaho (the “Project Site”) which is more accurately depicted on attached Exhibit A.  The Project 
Site is undergoing building renovations including installing awnings in the right-of-way.    

B. As part of the improvements to the Project Site, Participant intends to install 
awnings, which are in the public right-of way adjacent to the Project Site to replace existing 
canopies (the “Project”).  The Project is more accurately depicted on attached Exhibit B. The 
Project meets the requirements of the Type One Participation Program and also promotes a 
CCDC objective to enhance the pedestrian environment downtown.  

C. The Project is located in the Boise Central Urban Renewal District (“Central 
District”). The CCDC Board of Commissioners has adopted the CCDC Participation Program 
Policy which includes standards for functional awnings eligible for reimbursement through the 
CCDC Participation Program. 

D. The Project is consistent with CCDC’s Participation Policy regarding awning 
specifications. The project must meet the following criteria; Greater than or equal to 75% of 
ground floor frontage has functional awnings with a minimum depth of 5 feet.  Functional 
awnings include awnings or canopies of a durable material including but not limited to metal, 
polycarbonate, and durable fabric.   Awnings meeting this definition shall be located on a 
building plane parallel with the property line adjoining public right-of-way, have a minimum depth 
of five feet, and extend five feet over public right-of-way.  

E. CCDC deems it appropriate to assist the development of the Project to achieve 
the objectives set forth in the Plan and in accordance with CCDC’s Participation Program Policy.  

AGREEMENTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are incorporated into 
this Agreement; the mutual covenants contained herein; and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby 
agree as follows:  

ATTACHMENT 1 - AGREEMENT



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 2 

1. Effective Date.  The effective date (“Effective Date”) of this Agreement shall be
the date when this Agreement has been signed by the Participant and CCDC (last date signed) 
and shall continue until: 1.) the completion of all obligations of each Party; or 2.) September 30, 
2018, whichever comes first.     

2. Construction of the Project.  Participant agrees to construct the Project
consistent with the following: 

a. The Project shall be constructed in accordance with the overall City of Boise
(“City”) infrastructure plans, policies, and design standards and with the applicable
portions of the Streetscape Standards adopted as part of the Plan.

b. The Parties agree that the Project is depicted on Exhibit B, with cost estimates for
eligible items described in the Schedule of Eligible Streetscape and Infrastructure
Costs in Exhibit C (“Estimated Eligible Costs”).  Any other public improvements
that are constructed by the Participant as part of the improvements to the Project
Site are not eligible for reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement.  Additionally,
CCDC’s reimbursement obligation is limited to the amount set forth in Section 6 of
this Agreement.

3. Initial Construction Funding.  Participant shall pay for all of the costs of
construction for the Project.  CCDC acknowledges that the Schedule of Eligible Costs attached 
as Exhibit C is an estimate by Contractor and that actual costs for the Project, as well as each 
line item of cost, may be more or less than is shown. 

4. Notification of Completion; Inspection.  Upon completion of construction,
Participant shall notify CCDC in writing and request a final construction inspection and/or a 
meeting with CCDC to determine if the Project meets the requirements of this Agreement.  At 
CCDC’s sole discretion, CCDC may require proof of completion, such as a Certificate of 
Occupancy, before providing written confirmation of compliance. CCDC shall provide Participant 
with written confirmation that the Project has been completed in compliance with this 
Agreement.  

5. Determining Actual Payment after Completion of Construction.  Participant
shall provide appropriate documentation (“Cost Documentation”) to CCDC that Participant has 
expended funds for eligible costs in order to receive payment under the terms of this 
Agreement. Any Cost Documentation shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of Participant’s 
notification to CCDC that construction of the Project is complete and shall include: 

a. Schedule of values that includes line items for the Project approved by CCDC for
reimbursement so they are identifiable and separate from other line items
(“Schedule of Values”).

b. Invoices from Participant’s general contractor, subcontractor(s), and material
suppliers for each type of eligible cost item (e.g. concrete, pavers, benches,
historic street lights).  Invoices shall specify quantities and unit costs of installed
materials and a percentage estimate of how much installed material was used for
the Project in comparison to the amount used for the remainder of improvements to
the Project Site.



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 3 

c. Explanation of any significant deviation between the initial cost estimates
in Exhibit C and the actual costs in the Cost Documentation as requested by
CCDC.

d. A notarized affidavit by Participant that all materials have been paid for, that all
subcontractors have been paid, that no liens exist on the work performed, and that
the Cost Documentation is complete whereupon payment by CCDC shall constitute
full accord and satisfaction of all the Agreement obligations.

e. Additional documentation or clarifications may be required and requested by
CCDC.

f. The Participant attests that all requested reimbursement expenses are for eligible
public improvements within the public right-of-way.

CCDC shall have the right to review the Cost Documentation and to obtain independent 
verification that the quantities of work claimed, the unit costs, and the total costs for eligible 
costs are commercially reasonable and consistent with the cost estimates provided by 
Participant to CCDC prior to construction.  In the event Participant fails to timely deliver the Cost 
Documentation, CCDC may, in its discretion, elect to terminate its payment obligations under 
this Agreement by providing Participant with written notice of such default.  Participant shall 
have thirty (30) days from such written notice to cure the default.  In the event Participant fails to 
cure such a default, CCDC’s payment obligations under this Agreement may be terminated in 
CCDC’s sole discretion. 

Within thirty (30) calendar days of CCDC’s receipt of the Cost Documentation, CCDC 
will notify Participant in writing of CCDC’s acceptance or rejection of the Cost Documentation 
and CCDC’s determination of the Actual Eligible Costs to be reimbursed.  CCDC shall, in its 
discretion, determine the Actual Eligible Costs following its review of the Cost Documentation, 
verification of the commercial reasonableness of the costs and expenses contained in such 
Cost Documentation, and comparison of the amounts in the Cost Documentation to the 
amounts in Exhibit C.  IN NO EVENT SHALL THE TOTAL FOR THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS EXCEED THE AMOUNT ALLOWED BY SECTION 6.    

If Participant disagrees with CCDC’s calculation of the Actual Eligible Costs, Participant 
must respond to CCDC in writing within three (3) business days explaining why Participant 
believes CCDC’s calculation was in error and providing any evidence to support any such 
contentions Participant wants CCDC to consider.  CCDC shall respond to Participant within 
three (3) business days with a revised amount for the Actual Eligible Costs or notifying 
Participant CCDC will not revise the initial amount calculated.  At that point, the determination of 
the Actual Eligible Costs will be final.  CCDC’S DETERMINATION OF THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS IS WITHIN ITS SOLE DISCRETION. 

6. CCDC’s Reimbursement Payment Amount.  In accordance with the
Participation Program, CCDC agrees to reimburse Participant 100% of Actual Eligible Costs not 
to exceed ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000).  Actual Eligible Costs 
shall not include soft costs (e.g., architectural and engineering design, permits, traffic control, 
mobilization, and overhead).   



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 4 

7. Conditions Precedent to CCDC’s Payment Obligation.  CCDC agrees to
reimburse Participant in the amount as determined in compliance with Sections 2.c., 5 and 6 no 
later than thirty (30) days after completion of all of the following: 

a. CCDC provides written confirmation to the Participant that the Project has been
constructed in compliance with this Agreement.  CCDC may require proof of
completion at CCDCs sole discretion.

b. CCDC receives Cost Documentation from Participant as described in Section 5 in
a format acceptable to CCDC.

Participant’s failure to comply with all Agreement provisions shall be a basis for 
termination of CCDC’s reimbursement obligation. 

8. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations.  The Parties agree this
Agreement does not provide Participant with a security interest in any CCDC revenues for the 
Central District Area or any other urban renewal plan area, including but not limited to revenue 
from any “Revenue Allocation Area” (as defined in Title 50, Chapter 29 of the Idaho Code) or 
any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement, the obligation of CCDC to make the payments as specified in this Agreement shall 
be subordinate to all CCDC obligations that have committed or in the future commit available 
CCDC revenues, including but not limited to revenue from any Revenue Allocation Area or any 
revenue from CCDC’s parking garages, and may be subject to consent and approval by CCDC 
lenders. 

9. Default.  Neither Party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement
except upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days [ten (10) days in the event of failure to pay 
money] from receipt of written notice from the other Party specifying the particulars in which 
such Party has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement unless such Party, prior to 
expiration of said 45-day period [ten (10) day period in the event of failure to pay money], has 
rectified the particulars specified in said notice of default.  In the event of a default, the 
nondefaulting Party may do the following: 

a. The nondefaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the
defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party all direct damages incurred
by the nondefaulting Party.

b. The nondefaulting Party may seek specific performance of those elements of this
Agreement which can be specifically performed and recover all damages incurred
by the nondefaulting Party.  The Parties declare it to be their intent that elements of
this Agreement requiring certain actions be taken for which there are not adequate
legal remedies may be specifically enforced.

c. The nondefaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or encumbrance
necessary to cure the default and offset the cost thereof from monies otherwise
due the defaulting Party or recover said monies from the defaulting Party.

d. The nondefaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at law, it being
the intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative and liberally enforced so as to
adequately and completely compensate the nondefaulting Party.



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 5 

e. In the event Participant defaults under this Agreement, CCDC (the nondefaulting
Party) shall have the right to suspend or terminate its payment under this
Agreement, as more specifically defined in this Agreement, for so long as the
default continues and if not cured, CCDC’s obligation for payment shall be deemed
extinguished.  In addition, if CCDC funds shall have been paid, Participant shall
reimburse CCDC for any such funds Participant received.

10. Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings in this Agreement are for
reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of any of the terms, 
covenants, conditions, or agreements contained herein. 

11. No Joint Venture or Partnership.  CCDC and Participant agree that nothing
contained in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection with this Agreement 
shall be construed as making CCDC and Participant a joint venture or partners. 

12. Successors and Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable except that
the Participant may assign Participant’s rights or obligations under this Agreement to a third 
party only with the written approval of CCDC, at CCDC’s sole discretion which cannot be 
reasonably denied. 

13. Notices and Receipt.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United States 
express mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal Express) with 
postage or delivery charges prepaid and return receipt requested, or by electronic mail (e-mail) 
addressed to the appropriate Party at the address set forth below: 

If to Participant: 
Bittercreek / Red Feather, LLC 
David Krick  
PO Box 857 
Boise, Idaho 83701 
208-429-6340 
dmkrick@mac.com  

If to CCDC: John Brunelle, Executive Director 
Capital City Development Corporation 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho  83702 
208-384-4264 
jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com   

14. Applicable Law; Attorney Fees.  This Agreement shall be construed and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho.  Should any legal action be brought 
by either Party because of breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and 
such other costs as may be found by the court. 

15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and
agreement of the Parties.  Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows: 

Exhibit A Project Site Map 

mailto:dmkrick@mac.com
mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com


TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 6 

Exhibit B Project Plan 
Exhibit C Schedule of Eligible Costs 

16. Indemnification.  Participant shall indemnify and hold CCDC and its officers,
agents, and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, 
penalties, claims, costs, charges, and expenses, including reasonable architect and attorney 
fees (collectively referred to in this section as “Claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred 
by or asserted against CCDC or its respective officers, agents, and employees relating to the 
construction or design of the Streetscape Project or otherwise arising out of Participant’s actions 
or inactions.  In the event an action or proceeding is brought against CCDC or its respective 
officers, agents, and employees by reason of any such Claim, Participant, upon written notice 
from CCDC shall, at Participant’s expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Participant shall have no obligation to indemnify, defend, or hold 
CCDC and its respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any matter 
to the extent it arises from the active negligence or willful act of CCDC or its respective officers, 
agents, or employees.  

17. Antidiscrimination During Construction.  Participant, for itself and its
successors and assigns, agrees that in the rehabilitation and/or construction of improvements 
on the Project Site provided for in this Agreement, the Participant will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity/expression, national origin or ancestry, marital status, age, or 
physical disability. 

18. Maintenance. Participant recognizes CCDC has no specific authority to accept
maintenance responsibility of the Project or any improvements constructed by Participant and 
that no agreement has been reached with CCDC or City to accept any maintenance obligations 
for such improvements.  

19. Promotion of Project.  Participant agrees CCDC may advertise the Project and
CCDC’s involvement with the Project.  Such promotion includes reasonable signage at the Site 
notifying the public of CCDC’s involvement with the Project. 

End of Agreement 
[Signatures appear on the following page.] 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement with an 
Effective Date as of the last date written below. 

CCDC: CCDC: the urban renewal agency of the City of 
Boise, a public body, corporate and politic 

John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Date   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

PARTICIPANT: Bittercreek / Red Feather, LLC 

David Krick, Owner 

Date   

Exhibits 

A: Project Site 
B: Project Depiction 
C: Schedule of Eligible Streetscape and Infrastructure Costs 

Budget Info / For Office Use 
Fund/District 301 
Account 6251 
Activity Code 18081 
PO # 180070 
Contract Term September 30, 2018 
 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 8 

Exhibit A: Project Site Map 

 Idaho Street 8
th Street 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 9 

Exhibit B: Project Depiction 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 10 

  



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 11 

NOTE: Total reimbursement Not-to-Exceed $150,000. 

Exhibit C: Schedule of Eligible Costs 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 Attachment 2 – Images and Renderings  



Page 1 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution #1531 approving the Type One Participation Agreement 
with Brownfield’s Building, LLC 

Date: 
3/12/2018 

Staff Contact: 
Laura Williams 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution and Agreement
2) Existing Conditions and Rendering

Action Requested: 
Adopt resolution #1531 approving the Type 1 Streetscape Participation Agreement with 
Brownfield’s Building, LLC and authorizing the Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

Background: 

The property owner of the Brownfield’s building located on the southeast corner of 5th and Idaho 
plans to remodel the existing building for office and retail use. The original building was built in 
1950’s and renovated in the late 80’s. It previously housed a prosthetic patient management 
and custom fabrication business and has been vacant for over a year. 

The renovation project includes significant alteration to the existing building and a 2,988 SF 
second floor addition. The exterior of the building will be reconstructed with brick, patterned 
metal siding, and stucco accents. Public improvements in the right of way will be completed on 
5th Street and Idaho Street frontages. Per the City’s Streetscape Standards and Specifications 
Manual, 5th Street will be constructed using the Urban Brick Standard and Idaho Street will 
follow the Neighborhood Street Standard. Eligible expenses for public improvements will include 
sidewalks/pavers, street trees, street lights, suspended paving systems, and street furnishings 
and associated construction and installation costs.  

The new building called Shops at 5th will have a restaurant tenant and a retail tenant on the first 
level, with office on the second floor addition and in the existing basement. New job creation 
with permanent tenants is estimated at 50-60 people. 

The CCDC Board has approved the Participation Program which includes a Type 1 Streetscape 
Grant Reimbursement. The Type 1 program is intended to, “assist smaller projects on their own 
schedule, often triggered by a tenant improvement.” The grant will reimburse for up to $150,000 
of eligible expenses, hard costs for streetscapes and public improvements. This project meets 
the requirements of the Type One Program. 



Page 2 
 

Project Summary and Timeline: 
• 11,918 SF retail and office building renovation 
• Located on 5th and Idaho Street (River Myrtle URD) 
• $2 Million estimated Total Development Costs ($1.3 Million construction) 
• December 12, 2017 – City Council Approval (Historic Preservation Appeal) 
• January 23, 2018 – Final Conditions Approved by City Council  
• February 12, 2018 – CCDC Board Type 1 Agreement Designation 
• March 12, 2018 – CCDC Board Approval of Type 1 Agreement 
• Spring 2018 – Construction starts 
• Early 2019 - Construction Complete. Developer submits costs for reimbursement 

Fiscal Notes: 
Preliminary information shows that the project has eligible costs will exceed $150,000, and the 
project will request $150,000 as determined in the Type 1 Participation Program. The project 
meets all program requirements, and FY 2018 budget resources have been approved for this 
use. This will account for the one of two Type 1 Streetscape Grants contemplated in the 5 Year 
CIP for FY ’18 in the River Myrtle URD. 

Tax value estimates indicate the project will generate approximately $14,000 annually in 
increment revenue after completion, estimated to begin in FY 2020, for a total of about $94,000 
through the end of the district in 2025. 

Staff Recommendation: 
Provide feedback and direct for staff to continue negotiating and finalizing the terms of the  
Type 1 Participation Agreement for future board approval.  
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Adopt resolution #1531 approving the Type 1 Streetscape Participation Agreement with 
Brownfield’s Building, LLC and authorizing the Executive Director to execute the agreement. 
 
 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 1531 Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  1531 

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING THE TYPE 1 PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND BROWNFIELD’S BUILDING, 
LLC; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND ANY NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; 
AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS TO THE 
AGREEMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning 
urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Boise, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly published, conducted a 
public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street Plan”); 
and,  

WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on 
December 6, 1994, approving the River Street Plan and making certain findings; and,  

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project 
(annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor Parcels) and Renamed 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); and, 

WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6362 on 
November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making certain findings; 
and, 

WHEREAS, Brownfield’s Building, LLC (“Participant”), owns or controls certain real 
property at 122 S 5th Street, Boise, Idaho (the “Site”) located in the River Myrtle-Old Boise 
Urban Renewal District as created by the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, Participant intends on making improvements to the systems and exterior of 
the building on the Site and desires to install new awnings that extend over the public right-of-
way (the “Project”); and, 

WHEREAS, the Agency has in place a Participation Program which includes the Type 1 
Assistance Program under which the Agency reimburses developers for construction of public 
improvements including awnings which meet Agency’s requirements; and, 

Attachment 1 – Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 1531 Page 2  

 WHEREAS, attached hereto as Attachment 1, and incorporated herein as if set forth in 
full, is the Type 1 Participation Program Agreement and exhibits thereto (“Agreement”) with 
Participant whereby Participant will construct the Project and the Agency will reimburse 
Participant for constructing public improvements as specified in the Agreement; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to approve 
the Agreement and to authorize the Executive Director to execute the Agreement. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Agreement, which is attached hereto as Attachment 1 and 
incorporated herein by reference, is hereby approved. 
 
 Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to sign 
and enter into the Agreement and to execute all necessary documents required to implement 
the actions contemplated by the Agreement, subject to representations by the Agency staff and 
the Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to such actions have been met; and 
further, any necessary technical changes to the Agreement or other documents are acceptable, 
upon advice from the Agency’s legal counsel that said changes are consistent with the 
provisions of the Agreement and the comments and discussions received at the March 12, 
2018, Agency Board meeting; the Agency is further authorized to appropriate any and all funds 
contemplated by the Agreement and to perform any and all other duties required pursuant to 
said Agreement. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on March 12, 2018.  
Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the 
Board of Commissioners on March 12, 2018.   
 
 
      URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
      By:         
            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      David Bieter, Secretary 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 1 

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

THIS TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) 
is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, also known as 
the Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic, 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho and known as the urban renewal 
agency of the City of Boise City, Idaho (“CCDC”) and Brownfield’s Building, LLC (“Participant”).  
CCDC and Participant may be collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually referred to 
as a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

A. Participant owns or controls certain real property located at 122 S. 5th Street, 
Boise, Idaho (the “Project Site”) which is more accurately depicted on attached Exhibit A.  The 
Project Site is undergoing a significant renovation to the building for office and retail use 
including adding a second floor addition and associated public improvements (the “Participant’s 
Project”).    

B. As part of the Participant’s Project, Participant intends to construct certain street 
and streetscape improvements in the public right-of way adjacent to the Project Site (the 
“Streetscape Project”).  The Streetscape Project is more accurately depicted on attached 
Exhibit B. 

C. The CCDC Board of Commissioners and the Boise City Council have adopted 
the Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards & Specifications Manual (“Streetscape Standards”) 
to govern how sidewalk improvements are designed and installed in the Boise Central, River 
Myrtle-Old Boise, Westside Downtown, and 30th Street Area urban renewal districts.   

D. The Participant’s Project and the Streetscape Project are located in the River 
Myrtle-Old Boise Downtown Urban Renewal District (“River Myrtle District”).  The CCDC Board 
of Commissioners and Boise City Council have adopted the River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban 
Renewal Project (the “Plan”) which includes streetscape standards for the River Myrtle District.  

E. The Streetscape Project includes improvements to the public right-of-way that 
are consistent with the Streetscape Standards and have been approved by the City of Boise 
Design Review. The Streetscape Project will contribute to enhancing and revitalizing the River 
Myrtle District.    

F. CCDC deems it appropriate to assist the development of the Streetscape Project 
to achieve the objectives set forth in the Plan and in accordance with CCDC’s Participation 
Program.   

ATTACHMENT 1: AGREEMENT



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 2 

AGREEMENTS 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are incorporated into 
this Agreement; the mutual covenants contained herein; and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby 
agree as follows:  
 
 1. Effective Date.  The effective date (“Effective Date”) of this Agreement shall be 
the date when this Agreement has been signed by the Participant and CCDC (last date signed) 
and shall continue until: 1.) the completion of all obligations of each Party; or 2.) twelve (12) 
months from the Effective Date, whichever comes first.  At CCDC’s sole discretion an extension 
may be granted for a period not to exceed one year.   
 
 2. Construction of the Streetscape Project.  Participant agrees to construct the 
Streetscape Project consistent with the following: 
 

a. The Streetscape Project shall be constructed in accordance with the overall City of 
Boise (“City”) infrastructure plans, policies, and design standards and with the 
applicable portions of the Streetscape Standards adopted as part of the Plan. 

 
b. The Parties agree that the Streetscape Project is depicted on Exhibit B, with cost 

estimates for eligible items described in the Schedule of Eligible Streetscape and 
Infrastructure Costs in Exhibit C (“Estimated Eligible Costs”).  Any other public 
improvements that are constructed by the Participant as part of the Participant’s 
Project are not eligible for reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement.  Additionally, 
CCDC’s reimbursement obligation is limited to the amount set forth in Section 6 of 
this Agreement. 

 
 3. Initial Construction Funding.  Participant shall pay for all of the costs of 
construction for the Streetscape Project.  CCDC acknowledges that the Schedule of Eligible 
Streetscape and Infrastructure Costs attached as Exhibit C is an estimate by Contractor and 
that actual costs for the Streetscape Project, as well as each line item of cost, may be more or 
less than is shown. 

 
4. Notification of Completion; Inspection.  Upon completion of construction, 

Participant shall notify CCDC in writing and request a final construction inspection and/or a 
meeting with CCDC to determine if the Streetscape Project meets the requirements of this 
Agreement.  At CCDC’s sole discretion, CCDC may require proof of completion, such as a 
Certificate of Occupancy, before providing written confirmation of compliance.  CCDC shall 
provide Participant with written confirmation that the Streetscape Project has been completed in 
compliance with this Agreement.  

  
5. Determining Actual Payment after Completion of Construction.  Participant 

shall provide appropriate documentation (“Cost Documentation”) to CCDC that Participant has 
expended funds for eligible costs in order to receive payment under the terms of this 
Agreement. Any Cost Documentation shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of Participant’s 
notification to CCDC that construction of the Streetscape Project is complete and shall include: 

 
a. Schedule of values that includes line items for the Streetscape Project 

improvements approved by CCDC for reimbursement so they are identifiable and 
separate from other line items (“Schedule of Values”). 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 3 

 
b. Invoices from Participant’s general contractor, subcontractor(s), and material 

suppliers for each type of eligible cost item (e.g. concrete, pavers, benches, 
historic street lights).  Invoices shall specify quantities and unit costs of installed 
materials and a percentage estimate of how much installed material was used for 
the Streetscape Project in comparison to the amount used for the remainder of 
Participant’s project (“Invoices”). 

 
c. Explanation of any significant deviation between the initial cost estimates in 

Exhibit C and the actual costs in the Cost Documentation as requested by CCDC. 
 
d. A notarized affidavit by Participant that all materials have been paid for, that all 

subcontractors have been paid, that no liens exist on the work performed, and that 
the Cost Documentation is complete whereupon payment by CCDC shall constitute 
full accord and satisfaction of all the Agreement obligations. 

 
e. Additional documentation or clarifications may be required and requested by 

CCDC.  
 
f.  The Participant attests that all requested reimbursement expenses are for eligible 

public improvements within the public right-of-way. 
 
CCDC shall have the right to review the Cost Documentation and to obtain independent 

verification that the quantities of work claimed, the unit costs, and the total costs for eligible 
costs are commercially reasonable and consistent with the cost estimates provided by 
Participant to CCDC prior to construction.  In the event Participant fails to timely deliver the Cost 
Documentation, CCDC may, in its discretion, elect to terminate its payment obligations under 
this Agreement by providing Participant with written notice of such default.  Participant shall 
have thirty (30) days from such written notice to cure the default.  In the event Participant fails to 
cure such a default, CCDC’s payment obligations under this Agreement may be terminated in 
CCDC’s sole discretion. 
 

Within thirty (30) calendar days of CCDC’s receipt of the Cost Documentation, CCDC 
will notify Participant in writing of CCDC’s acceptance or rejection of the Cost Documentation 
and CCDC’s determination of the Actual Eligible Costs to be reimbursed.  CCDC shall, in its 
discretion, determine the Actual Eligible Costs following its review of the Cost Documentation, 
verification of the commercial reasonableness of the costs and expenses contained in such 
Cost Documentation, and comparison of the amounts in the Cost Documentation to the 
amounts in Exhibit C.  IN NO EVENT SHALL THE TOTAL FOR THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS EXCEED THE AMOUNT ALLOWED BY SECTION 6.    

 
If Participant disagrees with CCDC’s calculation of the Actual Eligible Costs, Participant 

must respond to CCDC in writing within three (3) business days explaining why Participant 
believes CCDC’s calculation was in error and providing any evidence to support any such 
contentions Participant wants CCDC to consider.  CCDC shall respond to Participant within 
three (3) business days with a revised amount for the Actual Eligible Costs or notifying 
Participant CCDC will not revise the initial amount calculated.  At that point, the determination of 
the Actual Eligible Costs will be final.  CCDC’S DETERMINATION OF THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS IS WITHIN ITS SOLE DISCRETION. 
 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 4 

6. CCDC’s Reimbursement Payment Amount.  In accordance with the 
Participation Program, CCDC agrees to reimburse Participant 100% of Actual Eligible Costs not 
to exceed ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000).  Actual Eligible Costs 
shall not include soft costs (e.g., architectural and engineering design, permits, traffic control, 
mobilization, and overhead).   

 
7. Conditions Precedent to CCDC’s Payment Obligation.  CCDC agrees to 

reimburse Participant in the amount as determined in compliance with Sections 2.c., 5 and 6  no 
later than thirty (30) days after completion of all of the following: 

 
a. CCDC provides written confirmation to the Participant that the Streetscape Project 

has been constructed in compliance with this Agreement.  CCDC may require 
proof of completion at CCDCs sole discretion. 

 
b. CCDC receives Cost Documentation from Participant as described in Section 5 in 

a format acceptable to CCDC. 
 

Participant’s failure to comply with all Agreement provisions shall be a basis for 
termination of CCDC’s reimbursement obligation. 

 
8. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations.  The Parties agree this 

Agreement does not provide Participant with a security interest in any CCDC revenues for the 
River Myrtle Plan Area or any other urban renewal plan area, including but not limited to 
revenue from any “Revenue Allocation Area” (as defined in Title 50, Chapter 29 of the Idaho 
Code) or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
in this Agreement, the obligation of CCDC to make the payments as specified in this Agreement 
shall be subordinate to all CCDC obligations that have committed or in the future commit 
available CCDC revenues, including but not limited to revenue from any Revenue Allocation 
Area or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages, and may be subject to consent and 
approval by CCDC lenders. 

 
9.  Default.  Neither Party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement 

except upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days [ten (10) days in the event of failure to pay 
money] from receipt of written notice from the other Party specifying the particulars in which 
such Party has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement unless such Party, prior to 
expiration of said 45-day period [ten (10) day period in the event of failure to pay money], has 
rectified the particulars specified in said notice of default.  In the event of a default, the 
nondefaulting Party may do the following: 

 
a. The nondefaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the 

defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party all direct damages incurred 
by the nondefaulting Party. 

 
b. The nondefaulting Party may seek specific performance of those elements of this 

Agreement which can be specifically performed and recover all damages incurred 
by the nondefaulting Party.  The Parties declare it to be their intent that elements of 
this Agreement requiring certain actions be taken for which there are not adequate 
legal remedies may be specifically enforced. 

 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 5 

c. The nondefaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or encumbrance 
necessary to cure the default and offset the cost thereof from monies otherwise 
due the defaulting Party or recover said monies from the defaulting Party. 

 
d. The nondefaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at law, it being 

the intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative and liberally enforced so as to 
adequately and completely compensate the nondefaulting Party. 

 
e. In the event Participant defaults under this Agreement, CCDC (the nondefaulting 

Party) shall have the right to suspend or terminate its payment under this 
Agreement, as more specifically defined in this Agreement, for so long as the 
default continues and if not cured, CCDC’s obligation for payment shall be deemed 
extinguished.  In addition, if CCDC funds shall have been paid, Participant shall 
reimburse CCDC for any such funds Participant received. 

 
 10. Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings in this Agreement are for 
reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of any of the terms, 
covenants, conditions, or agreements contained herein. 
 
 11. No Joint Venture or Partnership.  CCDC and Participant agree that nothing 
contained in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection with this Agreement 
shall be construed as making CCDC and Participant a joint venture or partners. 
 
 12. Successors and Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable except that 
the Participant may assign Participant’s rights or obligations under this Agreement to a third 
party only with the written approval of CCDC, at CCDC’s sole discretion which cannot be 
reasonably denied. 
 
 13. Notices and Receipt.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United States 
express mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal Express) with 
postage or delivery charges prepaid and return receipt requested, or by electronic mail (e-mail) 
addressed to the appropriate Party at the address set forth below: 
 
If to Participant: Barret Jones 

Brownfield’s Building, LLC 
4023 N Croft Pl. 
Eagle, ID 83616 
208-631-5924 

   barry@brownfieldstech.com    
 
If to CCDC:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation 
   121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
   Boise, Idaho  83702 
   208-384-4264 

jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com         
  
 14. Applicable Law; Attorney Fees.  This Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho.  Should any legal action be brought 
by either Party because of breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision of this 

mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com


TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 6 

Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and 
such other costs as may be found by the court. 
 
 15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the Parties.  Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows: 
 
  Exhibit A Project Site Map 
  Exhibit B Streetscape Project Plan 
  Exhibit C Schedule of Eligible Costs  
  

  16. Indemnification.  Participant shall indemnify and hold CCDC and its officers, 
agents, and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, 
penalties, claims, costs, charges, and expenses, including reasonable architect and attorney 
fees (collectively referred to in this section as “Claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred 
by or asserted against CCDC or its respective officers, agents, and employees relating to the 
construction or design of the Streetscape Project or otherwise arising out of Participant’s actions 
or inactions.  In the event an action or proceeding is brought against CCDC or its respective 
officers, agents, and employees by reason of any such Claim, Participant, upon written notice 
from CCDC shall, at Participant’s expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Participant shall have no obligation to indemnify, defend, or hold 
CCDC and its respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any matter 
to the extent it arises from the active negligence or willful act of CCDC or its respective officers, 
agents, or employees.  

 
  17. Antidiscrimination During Construction.  Participant, for itself and its 

successors and assigns, agrees that in the rehabilitation and/or construction of improvements 
on the Project Site provided for in this Agreement, the Participant will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity/expression, national origin or ancestry, marital status, age, or 
physical disability. 

 
  18. Maintenance. Participant recognizes CCDC has no specific authority to accept 

maintenance responsibility of the Streetscape Project or any improvements constructed by 
Participant and that no agreement has been reached with CCDC or City to accept any 
maintenance obligations for such improvements.  
 
 19. Promotion of Project.  Participant agrees CCDC may advertise the Streetscape 
Project and CCDC’s involvement with the Streetscape Project.  Such promotion includes 
reasonable signage at the Site notifying the public of CCDC’s involvement with the Streetscape 
Project. 
 
 

End of Agreement 
[Signatures appear on the following page.]  



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 7 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement with an 
Effective Date as of the last date written below. 
 
 
CCDC: CCDC: the urban renewal agency of the City of Boise, 

a public body, corporate and politic 
 
 
             

John Brunelle, Executive Director 
   

Date         
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
             
 
 
 
PARTICIPANT: Brownfield’s Building, LLC 
 
 

_________________________________________  
Barret Jones, Owner 

   
Date         

 
 
 

 
 
Exhibits 
A: Project Site 
B: Streetscape Project 
C: Schedule of Eligible Streetscape and Infrastructure Costs 
 

Budget Info / For Office Use 
Fund/District 302 
Account 6251 
Activity Code 18082 
PO # 180071 
 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 8 

Exhibit A: Project Site Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Idaho Street 
5

th Street 
 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 9 

Exhibit B: Streetscape Project Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 10 

Exhibit C: Schedule of Eligible Costs 
 
 

NOTE: Total reimbursement Not-to-Exceed $150,000. 



Page 4 
 

  Attachment 2 – Existing Conditions 

Looking South to Existing Building 

Looking Southwest along 5th Street  

Looking Southeast along Idaho Street  



Page 5 
 

 

 

Rendering 



Page 1 
 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution # 1534 approving the Type Four Participation Agreement 
with Boise School District. 
  

Date: 
3/12/2018 

Staff Contact: 
Laura Williams  

Attachments: 
1) Resolution and Agreement 
2) Rendering and Site Plan 

 
Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution #1534 approving the Type 4 Agreement with Boise School District.  
 

 
Background: 

A new Whittier Elementary School has been planned for many years, and initial discussions 
between CCDC staff and the Boise School District regarding CCDC participation began during 
the 30th Street District formation dating back to 2013. In March 2017, the school district passed 
a $172.5 million bond, which included funding for a Whittier construction. 

The original Whittier Elementary School was built in 1948 and is now only large enough to 
accommodate half of the students, and the other half are housed in temporary classroom 
buildings on site. The Boise School District is currently building a new 68,000 SF elementary 
building with off-street parking and drop-off areas, a playground, a public plaza, additional site 
landscaping, and substantial right-of-way improvements. The existing elementary school will 
remain in use while the new building is under construction, and will be renovated for use as a 
community center after the new school is operational. 

The school property, located on Whitewater Park in the 30th Street URD, will be improved with 
new streetscapes and landscaping on 29th, Idaho, and Jefferson Streets, and a large public 
plaza at the corner of Jefferson and 29th streets. They will also be reconstructing portions of the 
streets and rerouting a sewer line. These construction expenses are eligible for CCDC 
Participation through the Type 4 Participation Program.  

The construction at Whittier will be completed in two phases. The first phase includes building 
the new school and reconstructing Jefferson Street streetscapes. This phase is currently 
underway, scheduled to be complete in December of 2018. The second phase includes 29th 
Street, Idaho Street, and the public plaza and is scheduled to begin in April 2019 to be 
completed late that year.   

As part of the Participation Program, approved by the Board of Commissioners in 2014, the 
Type 4 program was approved. The Type 4 Participation Program coordinates capital 
improvement activities with other public agencies and allows CCDC to enter into 



Page 2 

intergovernmental agreements to cooperatively participate in joint capital improvement projects. 
Projects eligible for Type 4 participation are generally those identified in the adopted Capital 
Improvements Plan (CIP). Improvements around Whittier Elementary have been included in 
CCDC’s 5-year CIP, with a to-be-determined dollar amount. 

Project Summary and Timeline: 
• Located on between Whitewater Park, 29th, Jefferson, and Idaho Streets (30th Street

URD) 
• 2-story, 68,500 SF elementary School
• 20,000 SF public plaza
• 29 classrooms, library, cafeteria, and gym
• $15.5 Million estimated Total Development Costs
• June 13, 2017 – Condition Use Permit Approval
• October 9, 2017 – Construction Start
• February 12, 2018 – CCDC Board Type 4 Agreement Designation
• March 12, 2018 – CCDC Board Approval of Type 4 Agreement
• December 2018 – Phase 1 of Construction Complete. 1st Reimbursement made.
• April 2019 – Phase 2 of Construction begins.
• July 2019 – Phase 2 of Construction Complete. 2nd Reimbursement made.

Fiscal Notes: 
Preliminary information shows that the project has eligible expenses that will reach 
approximately $540,000. CCDC’s 5-year CIP has planned $540,000 for the Whittier Elementary 
project and the reimbursement payments can be phased in coordination with the project 
construction phasing. Both phases will be complete in FY 2019. The updated cost estimates are 
reflected in the Amended 2018-2022 CIP on the March Agenda for approval.  

Staff Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution #1534 approving the Type 4 Agreement with Boise School District. 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution #1534 approving the Type 4 Agreement with Boise School 
District.  



RESOLUTION NO. 1534 Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  1534 

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING THE TYPE 4 PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND BOISE SCHOOL DISTRICT; 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE 
THE AGREEMENT AND ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, 
SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY 
TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning 
urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Boise City, Idaho (“City”), after notice duly published, conducted 
a public hearing on the 30th Street Area Urban Renewal Plan (the “30th” Street Plan”); and, 

WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6868 on 
December 4, 2012, approving the 30th Street Plan and making certain findings; and, 

WHEREAS, Boise School District owns certain real property (the “Site”) located in the 
30th Street Urban Renewal District (“30th Street District”), as created by the 30th Street Plan; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Boise School District’s plans to build a new Whittier Elementary on the 
Site and the project will include significant improvements to the property with the assistance of 
CCDC funding including new streetscapes, utility work, and a public plaza; and, 

WHEREAS, the Agency has in place a Participation Program which includes the Type 4 
Assistance Program under which the Agency reimburses developers for construction of public 
improvements; and, 

WHEREAS, attached hereto as Attachment 1, and incorporated herein as if set forth in 
full, is the Agreement and exhibits thereto whereby Boise School District will construct the 
Project and the Agency will reimburse Boise School District for constructing public 
improvements as specified in the Agreement; and,    

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to approve 
the Agreement and to authorize the Executive Director to execute the Agreement. 

Attachment 1 – Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 1534  Page 2  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Agreement, which is attached hereto as Attachment 1 and 
incorporated herein by reference, is hereby approved. 
 
 Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to sign 
and enter into the Agreement and to execute all necessary documents required to implement 
the actions contemplated by the Agreement, subject to representations by the Agency staff and 
the Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to such actions have been met; and 
further, any necessary technical changes to the Agreement or other documents are acceptable, 
upon advice from the Agency’s legal counsel that said changes are consistent with the 
provisions of the Agreement and the comments and discussions received at the  March 12, 
2018, Agency Board meeting; the Agency is further authorized to appropriate any and all funds 
contemplated by the Agreement and to perform any and all other duties required pursuant to 
said Agreement. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on March 12, 2018.  
Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the 
Board of Commissioners on March 12, 2018. 
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
      By:          
            Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      David Bieter, Secretary 
 



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 1 

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

AND 

BOISE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

WHITTIER ELEMENTARY PROJECT 

ATTACHMENT 1 - AGREEMENT



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 2 

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT  
 

 THIS TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, 
also known as the Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body, 
corporate and politic, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho and known as 
the urban renewal agency of the City of Boise City, Idaho (“CCDC”) and Boise School District 
(“Participant”).  CCDC and Participant may be collectively referred to as the “Parties” and 
individually referred to as a “Party.”  

 
 

RECITALS 
 

Participant owns certain real property located at 301 N 29th Street, Boise, Idaho, which is 
more accurately described and depicted on attached Exhibit A (the “Project Site”). The Boise 
School District is currently building a new 68,000 SF elementary building with off-street parking 
and drop-off areas, a playground, a public plaza, additional site landscaping, and substantial 
right-of-way improvements (“Project”). 
 
 As part of the Project, Participant intends to construct certain streetscape, road, and 
utility infrastructure in the public right-of way adjacent to the Project Site (the “Public 
Improvements”). The Public Improvements are more accurately depicted on attached Exhibit B. 
 

The Project and Public Improvements are located in the 30th Street Area Urban 
Renewal District (“30th District”), as defined by the 30th Street Plan (the “Plan”). The Project will 
contribute to enhancing and revitalizing the 30th District and will generate revenue allocation 
proceeds to Agency. 

 
The CCDC Board of Commissioners and the Boise City Council have adopted the 

Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards & Specifications Manual (“Streetscape Standards”) to 
govern how sidewalk improvements are designed and installed in the Boise Central, River 
Myrtle-Old Boise, Westside Downtown, and 30th Street Area urban renewal districts.   
 

CCDC has been asked to assist with the Project consistent with Agency’s 
Participation Program (the “Participation Program”), adopted by CCDC and subsequently 
amended. Under the provisions of the Plan and the Participation Program, CCDC may 
participate in the funding of certain improvements. 
 

Agency and Participant have negotiated the terms and conditions of CCDC’s 
participation in the Project. 
 

As a result of the proposed participation by Agency, the Project will be enhanced with 
public improvements including new streetscapes, utility work, and a public plaza. 

 
 CCDC deems it appropriate to reimburse Participant for certain eligible public 
improvements as detailed in this Agreement to achieve the objectives set forth in the Plan and 
in accordance with CCDC’s Participation Program.  
 
 
 
  



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 3 

AGREEMENTS 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are incorporated into 
this Agreement, the mutual covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby 
agree as follows:  
 
 1. Effective Date.  The Effective Date (“Effective Date”) of this Agreement shall be 
the date when this Agreement has been signed by the Participant and Agency (last date signed) 
and shall continue until: (1) the completion of all obligations of each Party; or (2) December 31, 
2019, whichever comes first. Provided, if Participant has not completed construction of the 
Project and the Public Improvements by December 31, 2019, Agency may, in its sole discretion, 
deem Participant to be in default and, subject to Section 10 below, terminate this Agreement 
without penalty. An additional one hundred eighty (180) day extension may be granted upon 
written approval by Agency. At CCDC’s sole discretion an extension may be granted for a 
period not to exceed one year. 
 
 2. Construction of the Public Improvements.  Participant agrees to construct the 
Public Improvements consistent with the following: 
 

a. The Public Improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the overall 
City of Boise (“City”) infrastructure plans, policies, and design standards and 
with the applicable portions of the Streetscape Standards adopted as part of 
the Plan. 
 

b. The Parties agree that Public Improvements are depicted on Exhibit B, with 
cost estimates for eligible items described in the Schedule of Eligible 
Expenses in Exhibit C (“Estimated Eligible Expenses”).  Any other public 
improvements that are constructed by the Participant as part of the 
Participant’s Project are not eligible for reimbursement pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Additionally, CCDC’s reimbursement obligation is limited to the 
amount set forth in Section 6 of this Agreement. 

 
 3. Initial Construction Funding.  Participant shall pay for all of the costs of 
construction for the Project and Public Improvements.  CCDC acknowledges that the Schedule 
of Eligible Expenses attached as Exhibit C is an estimate by Contractor and that actual costs 
for the Public Improvements, as well as each line item of cost, may be more or less than is 
shown. 
 

4. Review of Construction Plans.  Upon Agency’s request, Agency shall have the 
right and the opportunity to review Participant’s construction plans, budgets, and bids for the 
Eligible Streetscape and Infrastructure Costs (collectively the “Public Improvement Construction 
Documents”).  Participant will utilize commercially reasonable contracting, budgeting and bidding 
practices to ensure that the Public Improvements are constructed consistent with the Public 
Improvement Construction Documents and are undertaken in a reasonable manner.  For 
purposes of this Section 4, Participant shall be presumed to have utilized commercially 
reasonable contracting, budgeting and bidding practices if its general contractor solicits or 
solicited competitive bids for the Agency Funded Public Improvements and such work is not 
performed by an affiliate or subsidiary of Participant. 

 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 4 

5. Notification of Completion; Inspection.  Upon completion of construction, 
Participant shall notify CCDC in writing and request a final construction inspection and/or a 
meeting with CCDC to determine if the Public Improvements meet the requirements of this 
Agreement.  At CCDC’s sole discretion, CCDC may require proof of completion, such as a 
Certificate of Occupancy, before providing written confirmation of compliance.  CCDC shall 
provide Participant with written confirmation that the Public Improvements have been completed 
in compliance with this Agreement.  

  
6. CCDC’s Reimbursement Payment Amount.  In accordance with the 

Participation Program, CCDC agrees to reimburse Participant 100% of Actual Eligible Costs not 
to exceed FIVE HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($540,000).  Actual Eligible Costs 
shall not include soft costs (e.g., architectural and engineering design, permits, traffic control, 
mobilization, and overhead). Reimbursement shall be paid upon completion of the Project as 
outlined in Exhibit C. 
 

7. Dedication of Public Improvements.  Reserved. 
 

8. Determining Actual Eligible Costs.  Participant shall provide appropriate 
documentation (“Cost Documentation”) to CCDC that Participant has expended funds for 
eligible costs in order to receive payment under the terms of this Agreement. Any Cost 
Documentation shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of Participant’s notification to CCDC 
that construction of the Project is complete and shall include: 

 
a. Schedule of values that includes line items for the Public Improvements approved 

by CCDC for reimbursement so they are identifiable and separate from other line 
items (“Schedule of Values”). 

 
b. Invoices from Participant’s general contractor, subcontractor(s), and material 

suppliers for each type of eligible cost item (e.g. concrete, pavers, benches, 
historic street lights).  Invoices shall specify quantities and unit costs of installed 
materials and a percentage estimate of how much installed material was used for 
the Public Improvements in comparison to the amount used for the remainder of 
Participant’s project (“Invoices”). 

 
c. Explanation of any significant deviation between the initial cost estimates 

in Exhibit C and the actual costs in the Cost Documentation as requested by 
CCDC. 

 
d. A notarized affidavit by Participant that all materials have been paid for, that all 

subcontractors have been paid, that no liens exist on the work performed, and that 
the Cost Documentation is complete whereupon payment by CCDC shall constitute 
full accord and satisfaction of all the Agreement obligations. 

 
e. Additional documentation or clarifications may be required and requested by 

CCDC.  
 
f.  The Participant attests that all requested reimbursement expenses are for eligible 

public improvements within the public right-of-way. 
 
CCDC shall have the right to review the Cost Documentation and to obtain independent 

verification that the quantities of work claimed, the unit costs, and the total costs for eligible 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 5 

costs are commercially reasonable and consistent with the cost estimates provided by 
Participant to CCDC prior to construction.  In the event Participant fails to timely deliver the Cost 
Documentation, CCDC may, in its discretion, elect to terminate its payment obligations under 
this Agreement by providing Participant with written notice of such default.  Participant shall 
have thirty (30) days from such written notice to cure the default.  In the event Participant fails to 
cure such a default, CCDC’s payment obligations under this Agreement may be terminated in 
CCDC’s sole discretion. 
 

Within thirty (30) calendar days of CCDC’s receipt of the Cost Documentation, CCDC 
will notify Participant in writing of CCDC’s acceptance or rejection of the Cost Documentation 
and CCDC’s determination of the Actual Eligible Costs to be reimbursed.  CCDC shall, in its 
discretion, determine the Actual Eligible Costs following its review of the Cost Documentation, 
verification of the commercial reasonableness of the costs and expenses contained in such 
Cost Documentation, and comparison of the amounts in the Cost Documentation to the 
amounts in Exhibit C.  IN NO EVENT SHALL THE TOTAL FOR THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS EXCEED THE AMOUNT ALLOWED BY SECTION 6.    

 
If Participant disagrees with CCDC’s calculation of the Actual Eligible Costs, Participant 

must respond to CCDC in writing within three (3) business days explaining why Participant 
believes CCDC’s calculation was in error and providing any evidence to support any such 
contentions Participant wants CCDC to consider.  CCDC shall respond to Participant within 
three (3) business days with a revised amount for the Actual Eligible Costs or notifying 
Participant CCDC will not revise the initial amount calculated.  At that point, the determination of 
the Actual Eligible Costs will be final.  CCDC’S DETERMINATION OF THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS IS WITHIN ITS SOLE DISCRETION. 

 
9. Conditions Precedent to Agency’s Payment Obligation.  Agency agrees to 

reimburse Participant in the amount as determined in compliance with Sections 6 and 7 no later 
than forty-five (45) days after completion of all of the following: 

 
a. City issues a Certificate of Occupancy or Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 

for the Project Site. 
 

b. Agency provides written confirmation to Participant that the Public 
Improvements has been completed in compliance with this Agreement. 

 
Failure to comply with all Agreement provisions shall be a basis for termination of 

Agency’s reimbursement obligation. 
 

10. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations.  The Parties agree this 
Agreement does not provide Participant with a security interest in any Agency revenues for the 
30th Street District or any other urban renewal plan area, including but not limited to revenue 
from any “Revenue Allocation Area” (as defined in Title 50, Chapter 29 of the Idaho Code) or 
any revenue from Agency’s parking garages. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement, the obligation of Agency to make the payments as specified in this Agreement shall 
be subordinate to all Agency obligations previously entered into which have committed available 
Agency revenues for all Districts and may be subject to consent and approval by Agency 
Lenders. 

 
11.  Default.  Neither Party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement 

except upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days [ten (10) days in the event of failure to pay 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 6 

money] from receipt of written notice from the other Party specifying the particulars in which 
such Party has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement unless such Party, prior to 
expiration of said 45-day period [ten (10) day period in the event of failure to pay money], has 
rectified the particulars specified in said notice of default.  In the event of a default, the non-
defaulting Party may do the following: 

 
a. The non-defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to 

the defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party all direct damages 
incurred by the non-defaulting Party. 
 

b. The non-defaulting Party may seek specific performance of those elements of 
this Agreement which can be specifically performed, in addition, recover all 
damages incurred by the non-defaulting Party.  The Parties declare it to be 
their intent that elements of this Agreement requiring certain actions be taken 
for which there are not adequate legal remedies may be specifically enforced. 
 

c. The non-defaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or encumbrance 
necessary to cure the default and offset the cost thereof from monies otherwise 
due the defaulting Party or recover said monies from the defaulting Party. 

 
d. The non-defaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at law, it 

being the intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative and liberally 
enforced so as to adequately and completely compensate the non-defaulting 
Party. 

 
e. In the event Participant defaults under this Agreement, Agency (the non-

defaulting Party) shall have the right to suspend or terminate its payment under 
this Agreement, as more specifically defined in this Agreement, for so long as 
the default continues and if not cured, Agency’s obligation for payment may be 
deemed extinguished by Agency in its discretion.  In addition, if Agency funds 
shall have been paid, Participant shall reimburse Agency for any such funds 
Participant received. 

 
12. Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings in this Agreement are 

for reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of any of the 
terms, covenants, conditions, or agreements contained herein. 

 
13. No Joint Venture or Partnership.  Agency and Participant agree that nothing 

contained in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection with this Agreement 
shall be construed as making Agency and Participant a joint venture or partners. 

 
14. Successors and Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable except that 

the Participant may assign Participant’s rights or obligations under this Agreement to a third 
party only with the written approval of Agency, which approval may be granted or denied in 
Agency’s sole discretion.   
 

15. Notices and Receipt.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United States 
express mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal Express), postage 
or delivery charge prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the appropriate Party at the 
address set forth below: 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 7 

 
If to Participant: Tom Willis, Project Manager 

Boise School District: Whitter Elementary Project 
   8169 W. Victory Road  
   Boise, Idaho  83709 
 
 
If to Agency:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation 
   121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
   Boise, Idaho  83701 
       
 The person and address to which notices are to be given may be changed at any time 
by any Party upon written notice to the other Party.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be deemed given upon receipt.  For the purpose of this Agreement, the term “receipt” shall 
mean the earlier of any of the following: 
 

(i) date of delivery of the notice or other document to the address 
specified above as shown on the return receipt; 

 
(ii) date of actual receipt of the notice or other document by the 

person or entity specified above; or 
 
(iii) in the case of refusal to accept delivery or inability to deliver the 

notice or other document, the earlier of: 
 

(a) date of the attempted delivery or refusal to accept delivery, 
 
(b) date of the postmark on the return receipt, or 
 
(c) date of receipt of notice of refusal or notice of non-delivery 

by the sending Party. 
 

16. Applicable Law/Attorney Fees.  This Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho.  Should any legal action be brought 
by either Party because of breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and 
such other costs as may be found by the court. 
 

17. Inspection of Books and Records.  Agency has the right, upon not less than 
seventy-two (72) hours’ notice, at all reasonable times, to inspect the books and records of 
Participant pertaining to the Public Improvements. No inspection by Agency shall, however, 
cause any document, information, or record of Participant to become a public record subject to 
public disclosure pursuant to Title 74, Chapter 1 of the Idaho Code, unless such document, 
information, or record is actually delivered to Agency by Participant. Except as set forth in this 
Agreement or other agreement executed by the Parties, recorded by the Parties, or made part 
of the records of Agency, the Parties acknowledge that Participant’s documents, records, plans, 
and information in any form related to the Project shall be confidential unless and until such 
documents are provided to Agency, and then Agency shall take such action as is permissible 
under Title 74, Chapter 1 of the Idaho Code to protect the confidentiality of documents provided 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 8 

by Participant that have been clearly marked as confidential with reference to the applicable 
section of Idaho Code under which the documents are deemed not subject to public disclosure. 
   

18. Indemnification.  Participant shall indemnify and hold Agency, City, and their 
respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, 
damages, penalties, claims, costs, charges, and expenses, including reasonable architect and 
attorney fees (collectively referred to in this Section as “Claim”), which may be imposed upon or 
incurred by or asserted against Agency, City, or their respective officers, agents, and employees 
by reason of any of the following occurrences: 
 

a) Any work done in, on, or about the Site, including the Public Improvements, or work 
related to the Public Improvements; or 

b) Any use, nonuse, possession, occupation, condition, operation, maintenance, or 
management of the Site or any part thereof; or  

c) Any negligent or intentional act or omission on the part of Participant or any of its 
agents, contractors, servants, employees, subtenants, operators, licensees, or 
invitees; or 

d) Any accident, injury, or damage to any person or property occurring in, on, or about 
the Site or any part thereof; or  

e) Any failure on the part of Participant to perform or comply with any of the terms, 
provisions, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement to be performed 
or complied with on its part; or 

f) Funding, by Agency, of the Public Improvements. 

In case any claim, action, or proceeding is brought against Agency, City, or their respective 
officers, agents, and employees by reason of any such Claim, Participant, upon written notice 
from Agency or City, shall, at Participant’s expense, resist or defend such claim, action, or 
proceeding. Participant shall have no obligation to indemnify, defend, or hold Agency or City, 
respectively, and their respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against 
any matter to the extent it arises from the active negligence or willful act of Agency or City, 
respectively, or their respective officers, agents, or employees.  
 

19. Insurance Requirements.  Participant shall, or through its contractor, agents, 
representatives, employees or subcontractors shall, at its sole cost, obtain and maintain in force 
for the duration of the construction of the improvements to the Site as part of the Project, 
insurance of the following types, with limits not less than those set forth below and in a form 
acceptable to Agency, against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may 
arise from, or in connection with, the performance of the services hereunder by Participant, its 
agents,  representatives, employees or subcontractors:  

 
 a. Commercial General Liability Insurance (“Occurrence Form”) with a 

minimum combined single limit liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury and 
property damage; with a minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 each person for personal and 
advertising injury liability.  Such policy shall have a general aggregate limit of not less than 
$2,000,000, which general aggregate limit will be provided on a per project basis.  The policy 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 9 

shall be endorsed to name Agency, including its respective affiliates, and City as additional 
insureds.   

 
 b. Workers’ Compensation Insurance, including occupational illness or 

disease coverage, in accordance with the laws of the nation, state, territory, or province having 
jurisdiction over Participant’s employees, and Employer’s Liability Insurance.  Participant shall 
not utilize occupational accident or health insurance policies, or the equivalent, in lieu of 
mandatory Workers’ Compensation Insurance or otherwise attempt to opt out of the statutory 
Workers’ Compensation system.   

 
c. Automobile Liability Insurance covering use of all owned, non-owned, and 

hired automobiles with a minimum combined single limit of liability for bodily injury and property 
damage of $1,000,000 per occurrence.  This policy shall be endorsed to name Agency, 
including its respective affiliates, directors, and employees, as additional insureds.   

 
 d. All insurance provided by Participant under this Agreement shall include a 

waiver of subrogation by the insurers in favor of Agency.  Participant hereby releases Agency, 
including its respective affiliates, directors, and employees, for losses or claims for bodily injury, 
property damage covered by Participant’s insurance or other insured claims arising out of 
Participant’s performance under this Agreement or construction of the Development.   

 
 e. Certificates of insurance satisfactory in form to Agency (ACORD form or 

equivalent) shall be supplied to Agency evidencing that the insurance required above is in force, 
that, to the extent commercially reasonable, not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice will be 
given to Agency prior to any cancellation or restrictive modification of the policies, and that the 
waivers of subrogation are in force.  Participant shall also provide, with its certificate of 
insurance, executed copies of the additional insured endorsements and dedicated limits 
endorsements required in this Agreement.  At Agency’s request, Participant shall provide a 
certified copy of each insurance policy required under this Agreement.   

 
 f. The foregoing insurance coverage shall be primary and noncontributing 

with respect to any other insurance or self-insurance that may be maintained by Agency.  The 
fact that Participant has obtained the insurance required in this Section shall in no manner 
lessen or affect Participant’s other obligations or liabilities set forth in the Agreement.   

 
20. Antidiscrimination During Construction.  Participant, for itself and its 

successors and assigns, agrees that in the rehabilitation and/or construction of improvements 
on the Project Site provided for in this Agreement, the Participant shall not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin or ancestry, age, or handicap.  Violations of this 
section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and be deemed grounds for 
cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by Agency, in whole or in part. 
 

21. Approvals of Project and Public Improvements.  Participant shall be 
responsible for obtaining necessary approvals for the Project (including the Public 
Improvements) from the governmental entities and other entities necessary, including to the 
extent necessary, but not limited to, City, the Ada County Highway District, Idaho Transportation 
Department, and other governmental entities having approval authority for the Project 
(“Approving Entities”). Participant shall keep Agency advised of the approval process of the 
Approving Entities and advise Agency immediately if any action of Approving Entities shall affect 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 10 

the scope and purpose of the Agreement. The Public Improvements shall be designed, 
constructed, and installed in compliance with the requirements of the Approving Entities. 
 

22. Maintenance.  Participant shall maintain or arrange for the maintenance of the 
Public Improvements as may be required by the Boise City Code or the Ada County Highway 
District.  Participant’s obligations, as set forth in this Section 21 shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement.  Participant acknowledges and agrees Agency has no obligations to maintain 
the improvements constructed as part of the Public Improvements or any other maintenance 
obligations under this Agreement. 

 
23. Promotion of Project.  Participant agrees CCDC may promote the Public 

Improvements and CCDC’s involvement with the Public Improvements. Such promotion 
includes reasonable signage at the Project Site notifying the public of CCDC’s involvement with 
the Public Improvements. 

 
24. Warranty.  Participant warrants that the materials and workmanship employed 

in the construction of the Public Improvements are of good quality and conform to generally 
accepted standards within the construction industry.  Such warranty shall extend for a period of 
two (2) years after completion of the Public Improvements, being the date CCDC acknowledged 
completion of the Public Improvements.  Provided, nothing herein shall limit the time within 
which Agency may bring an action against Participant on account of Participant’s failure to 
otherwise construct such improvements in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
25. Dispute Resolution.  In the event that a dispute arises between Agency and 

Participant regarding the application or interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the 
aggrieved party shall promptly notify the other party to this Agreement of the dispute within ten 
(10) days after such dispute arises.  If the Parties shall have failed to resolve the dispute within 
thirty (30) days after delivery of such notice, the Parties agree to first endeavor to settle the 
dispute in an amicable manner by mediation or other process of structured negotiation under 
the auspices of a nationally or regionally recognized organization providing such services in the 
Northwestern States or otherwise, as the Parties may mutually agree before resorting to 
litigation.  Should the Parties be unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction within 
thirty (30) days after such completion of mediation or other process of structured negotiation, 
each Party shall have the right to pursue any rights or remedies it may have at law or in equity. 

 
26. Entire Agreement, Waivers, and Amendments.  This Agreement, including 

Attachments A through C, inclusive, incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the entire 
understanding and agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement integrates all of the terms and 
conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto and supersedes all negotiations or previous 
agreements between the Parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter thereof.  All 
waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by the appropriate 
authorities of Agency and Participant, and all amendments hereto must be in writing and signed 
by the appropriate authorities of Agency and Participant. 

 
27. Amendments to this Agreement.  Agency and Participant agree to mutually 

consider reasonable requests for amendments to this Agreement and any attachments hereto 
which may be made by any of the Parties hereto, lending institutions, bond counsel, financial 
consultants, or underwriters to Agency, provided said requests are consistent with this 
Agreement and would not alter the basic business purposes included herein or therein.  Any 
such amendments shall be in writing and agreed to by the Parties. 

 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 11 

28. Termination by CCDC.  In the event CCDC terminates this Agreement for any 
reason other than Participant’s breach of this Agreement, CCDC agrees to reimburse 
Participant for eligible costs incurred by Participant up to the date CCDC notified Participant of 
the termination of the Agreement.  Participant shall provide CCDC with a Termination Invoice 
and CCDC shall determine the amount to reimburse Participant in the manner set forth in 
Section 8.  Subject to Section 8, CCDC shall pay the Termination Invoice within thirty (30) days. 

 
   
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed this Agreement the day and 

year below written to be effective the day and year above written. 
 
 
 
 
AGENCY:    Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, 
     a public body, corporate and politic 
 
   
     By:         
          John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 
     Date:         
 
     APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
             
 
 
PARTICIPANT:   Boise School District 
 
     By:         

Tom Willis, Facilities and Operations 
Administrator 

 
Date:          

       
 
 
 
 
 
  

Budget Info / For Office Use 
Fund/District  
Account  
Activity Code  
PO #  
Contract Term  

 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 12 

Exhibit A 
 

Project Site 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Idaho Street 

29th Street 

W
hitew

ater Park B
lvd.  



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 13 

Exhibit B 
 

Public Improvements 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 14 

Exhibit C 

Public Improvements Eligible Expenses 

On following pages...



# ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL COST # ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL COST

SITE PREPARATION: SITE PREPARATION:

1 Surface demolition 0 0 0 $0.00 1 Surface demolition 0 0 0 $0.00

2 Asphalt demolition  0 0 0 $0.00 2 Asphalt demolition  0 0 0 $0.00

3 Curb and dutter demolition 0 0 0 $0.00 3 Curb and dutter demolition 0 0 0 $0.00

4 Saw cut  0 0 0 $0.00 4 Saw cut  0 0 0 $0.00

5 Replace subbase  0 0 0 $0.00 5 Replace subbase  0 0 0 $0.00

6 Stand alone tree removal 0 0 0 $0.00 6 Stand alone tree removal 0 0 0 $0.00

SIDEWALK WORK: 0 SIDEWALK WORK: 0

7 W Idaho St. Sidewalk Demo CY 0 20 $0.00 7 W Idaho St. Sidewalk Demo CY 8 20 $160.00

8 29th St. Sidewalk Demo CY 0 85 $0.00 8 29th St. Sidewalk Demo CY 8 85 $680.00

9 Jefferson St. Sidewalk Demo CY 8 6 $48.00 9 Jefferson St. Sidewalk Demo CY 0 6 $0.00

10 0 0 0 $0.00 10 0 0 0 $0.00

11 Lawn / Parkway SQFT 1 4,000 3,360 11 Lawn / Shrubs / Trees SQFT 1 12,000 10,080

12 Irrigation SQFT 1 4,000 4,200 12 Irrigation SQFT 1 12,000 12,600

OTHER: OTHER:

13 W. Idaho St. Curb and Gutter LF 0.00 321 $0.00 13 W. Idaho St. Curb and Gutter LF 35.22 321 $11,305.62

14 29th St. Curb and Gutter LF 0.00 619 $0.00 14 29th St. Curb and Gutter LF 35.22 619 $21,801.18

15 Jefferson St. Curb and Gutter LF 35.22 555 $19,547.10 15 Jefferson St. Curb and Gutter LF 0.00 555 $0.00

16 Meyers cabinet 0 0 0 $0.00 16 Meyers cabinet 0 0 0 $0.00

17 Water meter 0 0 0 $0.00 17 Water meter 0 0 0 $0.00

SITUATIONAL FURNISHINGS: SITUATIONAL FURNISHINGS:

18 Street trees EA 330 23 7,590 18 Street trees EA 330 29 9,570

19 Tree grates & frames EA 2,255 0 0 19 Tree grates & frames EA 2,255 4 9,020

20 Trench drain cover  0 0 0 $0.00 20 Trench drain cover  0 0 0 $0.00

21 Historic street light 0 0 0 $0.00 21 Historic street light 0 0 0 $0.00

22 Bench 1,480 0 0 $0.00 22 Bench 1,480 0 0 $0.00

23 Bike rack 0 0 0 $0.00 23 Bike rack 0 0 0 $0.00

24 Litter receptacle 0 0 0 $0.00 24 Litter receptacle 0 0 0 $0.00

25 Pre‐cast planter 0 0 0 $0.00 25 Pre‐cast planter 0 0 0 $0.00

OTHER: OTHER:

26 N 29th St. Silva Cells LS 0 1 $0.00 26 N 29th St. Silva Cells LS 65,829 1 $65,829.43

27 TBD 0 0 $0.00 27 TBD 0 0 $0.00

Total Streetscape Costs: $34,745.10 Total Streetscape Costs: $141,046.23

UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL COST UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL COST

UTILITIES: 0 0 $0.00 UTILITIES: 0 0 $0.00

31 Power line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00 31 Power line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

32 Water line (new/relocation/extension) 11,187 1 $11,187.00 32 Water line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

33 N 29th St. Sewer Manhole Re‐Channelize/ Plug SeLS 9,000 1 $9,000.00 33 N 29th St. Sewer Manhole Re‐Channelize/ PlugLS 0 1 $0.00

34 Sewer Reroute down Jefferson 108,088 1 $108,088.00 34 Geothermal Line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

35 Natural gas line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00 35 Natural gas line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

36 Phone line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00 36 Phone line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

37 Fiber line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00 37 Fiber line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

38 ACHD power box relocation 0 0 $0.00 38 ACHD power box relocation 0 0 $0.00

STREET:  STREET: 

39 Asphalt demolition  N 29th St. CY 8 120 $960.00 39 Asphalt demolition  N 29th St. CY 8 120 $960.00

40 N 29th St. Excavate to Subgrade CY 31 419 $12,989.00 40 N 29th St. Excavate to Subgrade CY 31 419 $12,989.00

41 N 29th St. Subbase and Prep CY 20 400 $8,000.00 41 N 29th St. Subbase and Prep CY 20 400 $7,836.00

42 N 29th St. Base and Prep CY 31 78 $2,418.00 42 N 29th St. Base and Prep CY 31 78 $2,418.00

43 Asphalt paving 29th St. SF 5.2 8,803 $45,775.60 43 Asphalt paving 29th St. SF 5.2 8,803 $45,775.60

PATH: PATH:

Jefferson 0 0 $6,583.06 Jefferson 0 0 $0.00

29th Street 0 0 $0.00 29th Street 0 0 $11,767.03

Idaho Street 0 0 $0.00 Idaho Street 0 0 $5,257.34

PLAZA:  PLAZA: 

Surface demolition 0 0 $0.00 Surface demolition 0 0 $0.00

Surface prep 0 0 $0.00 Surface prep 0 0 $0.00

Paving material 0 0 $0.00 Paving material 0 0 $0.00

$205,000.66 $87,002.97

$239,745.76 $228,049.20TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS:

Important Note: 

Each program where eligible costs are identified will only pay for those
approved expenses not otherwise paid for by another public entity.

INFRASTRUCTURE & UTILITIES: (In right‐of‐way)

Total Infrastructure & Utilities Costs:

STREETSCAPE: (In right‐of‐way)

CCDC Participation Program
Type 2 Eligible Costs Application Form
Actual Eligible Costs To Be Determined by CCDC

Project Name: Whittier Elementary 

School Phase 2

Plan Date: 1/15/18 By:  Beniton

CCDC Participation Program

INFRASTRUCTURE & UTILITIES: (In right‐of‐way)

Type 2 Eligible Costs Application Form

TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS:

By:  BenitonPlan Date: 1/15/18

Actual Eligible Costs To Be Determined by CCDC

Project Name: Whittier Elementary 

School Phase 1

STREETSCAPE: (In right‐of‐way)

approved expenses not otherwise paid for by another public entity.

Important Note: 

Each program where eligible costs are identified will only pay for those

Total Infrastructure & Utilities Costs:



# ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICEQUANTITY TOTAL COST

SITE PREPARATION:

1 Surface demolition 0 0 0 $0.00

2 Asphalt demolition  0 0 0 $0.00

3 Curb and dutter demolition 0 0 0 $0.00

4 Saw cut  0 0 0 $0.00

5 Replace subbase  0 0 0 $0.00

6 Stand alone tree removal 0 0 0 $0.00

SIDEWALK WORK: 0

7 W Idaho St. Sidewalk Demo CY 0 20 $0.00

8 29th St. Sidewalk Demo CY 0 85 $0.00

9 Jefferson St. Sidewalk Demo CY 0 6 $0.00

10 0 0 0 $0.00

11 Lawn / Shrubs / Trees SQFT 1 8,000 6,720

12 Irrigation SQFT 1 8,000 8,000

OTHER:

13 W. Idaho St. Curb and Gutter LF 0.00 321 $0.00

14 29th St. Curb and Gutter LF 0.00 619 $0.00

15 Jefferson St. Curb and Gutter LF 0.00 555 $0.00

16 Meyers cabinet 0 0 0 $0.00

17 Water meter 0 0 0 $0.00

SITUATIONAL FURNISHINGS:

18 Street trees EA 330 12 3,960

19 Tree grates & frames EA 2,255 3 6,765

20 Trench drain cover  0 0 0 $0.00

21 Historic street light 0 0 0 $0.00

22 Bench 1,480 4 5,920 $23,680.00

23 Bike rack 0 0 0 $0.00

24 Litter receptacle 0 0 0 $0.00

25 Pre‐cast planter 0 0 0 $0.00

OTHER:

26 N 29th St. Silva Cells LS 0 1 $0.00

27 TBD 0 0 $0.00

Total Streetscape Costs: $49,125.00

UNIT UNIT PRICEQUANTITY TOTAL COST

UTILITIES: 0 0 $0.00

31 Power line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

32 Water line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

33 N 29th St. Sewer Manhole Re‐Channelize/ Plug LS 0 0 $0.00

34 Geothermal Line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

35 Natural gas line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

36 Phone line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

37 Fiber line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 $0.00

38 ACHD power box relocation 0 0 $0.00

STREET: 

39 Asphalt demolition  N 29th St. CY 0 0 $0.00

40 N 29th St. Excavate to Subgrade CY 0 0 $0.00

41 N 29th St. Subbase and Prep CY 0 0 $0.00

42 N 29th St. Base and Prep CY 0 0 $0.00

43 Asphalt paving 29th St. SF 0.0 0 $0.00

PATH:

Jefferson 0 0 $0.00

29th Street 0 0 $0.00

Idaho Street 0 0 $0.00

PLAZA: 

Surface demolition LS 4,650 1 $4,650.00

Surface prep LS 8,310 1 $8,310.00

Paving material LS 27,781 1 $27,781.00

$40,741.00

$89,866.00TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS:

Important Note: 

Each program where eligible costs are identified will only pay for those
approved expenses not otherwise paid for by another public entity.

INFRASTRUCTURE & UTILITIES: (In right‐of‐way)

Total Infrastructure & Utilities Costs:

By:  Beniton

STREETSCAPE: (In right‐of‐way)

CCDC Participation Program
Type 2 Eligible Costs Application Form
Actual Eligible Costs To Be Determined by CCDC

Project Name: Whittier Elementary 

School Plaza

Plan Date: 1/15/18



Page 4 
 

 

 

Attachment 2 – Rendering and Site Plan 





 
 
 
 
 

FY2018 Year‐to‐Date Financial Report (Unaudited) 
Through FIRST QUARTER 

October 1, 2017 – December 31, 2017 

STATUS: Good. Normal.  

With the Agency’s capital projects‐focused budget, the bulk of the expenses are paid‐out later in 
the fiscal year when construction is underway and being completed.  Project planning and 
bidding occurs primarily during the First and into the Second quarters.   

Seemingly large Year‐to‐Date Actual‐to‐Budget Variance percentages are typical for the First 
Quarter.  For example, Q1 actual tax increment revenue is 59% less than Budget‐to‐Date 
amount, which is the difference between $43, 451 and $17,676 from a full‐year estimate of 
$17.4 million.  On a percentage basis, almost all of the tax increment revenue is received from 
Ada County in January and July.  The Budget‐to‐Date tax increment revenue estimate is based 
on actuals for the previous three years.  

REVENUES:  

The 21% negative variance in Total Revenue is due primarily to pulling 30% or $694,000 less 
from Working Capital than was estimated in the budget.   

Parking revenues are 9% below budget due to the delayed completion and opening of the 
Agency’s two new parking garages at 5th & Broad and 11th & Front.  CCDC will purchase 89 and 
250 space parking condos from the developers in The Fowler and Pioneer Crossing 
developments.  

EXPENSES:  

Consultants are finishing up project design, Professional Services expenses will catch up to 
budget starting in Q2.  Street & Facilities Repair & Maintenance begins in earnest in spring.  The 
Q1 budget for CIP projects is only 5% of the full year amount.  

 

ABOUT THIS REPORT.  Includes all budgeted funds. 
Revenues 

 Ada County distributes property tax revenue to local governments monthly as received; however, almost 
99% of the total budgeted amount are distributed twice a year in January (about 60%) and in July (about 
40%) after property tax due dates (December and June). 

 Parking garage revenue is generated and received daily throughout the year. 

 Fund Balance: Transfer‐in if revenues exceed expenses, transfer‐out if expenses exceed revenues.  
Expenses 

 Parking garage debt service payments are made twice per year: interest only in March; principal & interest 
in September. 

 Capital projects are typically designed and planned during the first half of a fiscal year with construction and 
most expenses occurring in the second half.  

 Revenues received from sub‐lessee (Civic Plaza) are equal to the expenses distributed to Ada County for the 
Ada County Courthouse Master/Surplus Ground Lease. They are passed through only. 

 









 
 
 
 

 



Page 1 
 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Approval of 2017 Annual Report 
 

Date: 
March 12, 2018 
 

Staff Contact: 
John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 

Attachments: 
1 - Draft of 2017 Annual Report 
 

Actions Requested: 
Approve the 2017 Annual Report and direct staff to finalize the document and fulfill the statutory 
publication and access requirements. 
 
 
Background: 
Idaho Code requires public agencies like CCDC to report on their activities each year including 
complete financial statements setting forth assets, liabilities, revenues, and operating expenses.  
These annual reports must be filed annually by March 31 with the agency’s local governing 
body, which for CCDC is Boise City.  
 
Agencies such as CCDC must also conduct a public meeting to report these activities and take 
public comment. This meeting’s agenda includes the required public meeting which allows for 
public comment. Any member of the public is invited to comment on the draft 2017 Annual 
Report.  
 
Once approved by the Board, the report will be finalized and filed with the Boise City Clerk’s 
Office. Notice will be published in the Idaho Statesman that the report has been filed and is 
available for inspection during business hours at the City Clerk’s Office and CCDC.  The Agency 
also publishes each year’s report on its website.  
 
Fiscal Notes: 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Accept the 2017 Annual Report and to direct staff to finalize and deliver it to the Boise City 
Clerk, post it on the Agency’s website, and publish notice in the Idaho Statesman that it has 
been filed and is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office as well as at CCDC and on 
CCDC’s website. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move to approve the 2017 Annual Report and to direct staff to finalize the document and fulfill 
statutory publication and access requirements. 
 
 



CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION  •  121 N 9TH ST, STE. 501 - BOISE, ID 83702  •  (208) 384-4264  •  WWW.CCDCBOISE.COM 

2017 ANNUAL REPORT

DR
AFT



21

2017 ANNUAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

3  JOHN HALE, OUTGOING BOARD CHAIR

4  DANA ZUCKERMAN, INCOMING BOARD CHAIR

5  JOHN BRUNELLE, CCDC EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

6  ABOUT CCDC  |  VISION STATEMENT  |    
MISSION STATEMENT

7  FIVE KEY STRATEGIES  |  FIVE CORE VALUES 
GOALS  |  TEN GUIDING PRINCIPLES

9  AGENCY OWNED PROPERTY  | 
PROPERTIES AQUIRED FOR PUBLIC USAGE 
& FOR REHABILITATION OR RESALE

11  KEY STRATEGIES (TYPES OF PROJECTS)

13  HOUSING 
THE AFTON  |  THE WATERCOOLER 
THE FOWLER  |  ASH STREET  
5TH & IDAHO

16  HOTELS 
INN AT 500  |  HYATT PLACE 
RESIDENCE INN  |  HILTON GARDEN INN 
5TH & FRONT HOTEL & PARKING GARAGE

19  8TH STREET

20  TRAILHEAD

KEY STRATEGY 1: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT12

25

33

21

29

35

21  BROAD STREET

23  UTILITY LINE UNDERGROUND 
2017 STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS

24  TYPE 1 PARTICIPATION PROJECTS 
RIVER STREET LOFTS 
NEW PATH COMMUNITY HOUSING 
VERRASO

KEY STRATEGY 2: INFRASTRUCTURE

29  THE GROVE PLAZA

31  PIONEER CORNER 
JULIA DAVIS PARK ENTRY

32  CITY HALL PLAZA

KEY STRATEGY 4: PLACE MAKING

35  2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

37  FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

39  CCDC OVERVIEW

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & OVERVIEW

26  PARKBOI GARAGES

27  11TH & FRONT PARKING GARAGE 
BIKE RACK INFILL PROJECTS 
BOISE GREENBIKE STATION AT RED LION

28  PARK AND RIDE SHUTTLE 
FRONT AND MYRTLE ALTERNATIVES 
ANALYSIS

KEY STRATEGY 3: MOBILITY & PARKING

33  ATHLOS ACADEMIES

34  SHORELINE DISTRICT

KEY STRATEGY 5: SPECIAL PROJECTS



43

JOHN HALE, OUTGOING BOARD CHAIR
Last year was a remarkable time for downtown Boise. It was my great pleasure to 

serve as Board Chair during this exciting time. Our economy expanded and real estate 

development continued a head turning pace. In 2017, CCDC catalyzed downtown 

investment by contributing over $11 million to public and private partnerships.

These exceptional collaborations were too numerous to list in their entirety.  

Accomplishments ranged from downtown housing, the new City Hall Plaza, and the 

new Athlos Academy headquarters – a charter school organization that brought their 

national headquarters to Boise and saved the historic Macy’s building. 

Above all else, our capstone project was the renovation of CCDC’s flagship property -The 

Grove Plaza. We upgraded and expanded this wonderful public amenity. We measure the success of this project by 

the constant crowds enjoying the fountain, shade umbrellas, public art and open air music in the heart of downtown.  

2017 was my last year serving on the CCDC Board of Commissioners, and it was easily the most intense of my ten 

years. I am exceedingly proud of the work done by the CCDC staff and Board. They are a dedicated, high caliber group 

of professionals who daily make downtown Boise THE incredible living and visiting experience. I am grateful for the 

opportunity to have served with such fine folks. I can’t wait to see all the great they will make next. 

DANA ZUCKERMAN, INCOMING BOARD CHAIR
Wow! Just look around, up, down- any which way in downtown Boise and something 
exciting is happening. From the newly installed pavers on The Grove Plaza to the cranes 
in the sky, CCDC is always on the move, working to make this thriving downtown ever 
more successful with the just the right balance of buildings and open space, residents 
and visitors, drivers, cyclists and pedestrians.

We are closing in on the end of the Central District, what that means is the ten square 
blocks in the center of downtown will soon no longer be in an urban renewal district.  
We saw this coming and prepared the district with a completely rebuilt Grove Plaza for 
all of Boise and our visitors to enjoy complete with shade, lighting, a light show and a 
sky-bridge that seamlessly encloses the plaza. Encircling the Grove Plaza, our agency 
helped finance a key element of the Boise Centre East, the expanded convention center 
that will accommodate larger conventions and bring more visitors to stay in our hotels, 

eat in our restaurants and enjoy the boutique retail our downtown has to offer. Just down the street City Hall 
Plaza has never looked better. The plaza boasts a modern landscape complete with a large metal sculpture jointly 
commissioned by the City and CCDC that celebrates our roots as The City of Trees and our present and future as a 
city that embraces cutting edge art. 

The city set out to build 1,000 new dwelling units in the downtown in five years and look how far we’ve come - The 
Afton is open and starting on Phase II, The Watercooler Apartments are fully leased, and couldn’t look cooler. The 
ground floor retail is bringing street life to a once too quiet block. The townhouses on Idaho Street are sold out and 
the next set is going up - stretching the boundaries of the west side of downtown. Just down the street an innovative 
concept in low income, supportive housing is rising out of the ground in a joint venture involving numerous agencies. 
On the opposite end of our expanding downtown, the construction of the 5th and Idaho Apartments project is 
underway, supplying our city with more options in downtown housing and a much needed pocket park to provide 
a respite in our ever growing city. The Fowler, with its undulating brick is set to welcome its new residents and its 
restaurant and coffee shop are already bustling and sending a hipster vibe down the newly reconstructed Broad 
Street. Broad Street has taken on a life of its own. The street now is attached to the city’s geothermal system and 
boasts permeable pavers which allow for storm water infiltration. This street is a harbinger of things to come. 
Always looking for new avenues to improve our downtown and eradicate blight, our agency identified alleys as an 
opportunity and we recently embarked upon an alley improvement project between 9th and Capitol.

We are looking ahead to two of the most monumental projects the city has seen in decades. First, CCDC is ready to 
do its part to build a Sports Park which will further enliven the underused perimeter of our downtown. This park 
will bring baseball, minor league soccer and other sporting and cultural events to our residents with easy access 
by car, bike or bus. The park project will include apartment buildings and retail opportunities, which in turn will 
provide our agency with the tax increment financing that will allow us to put the money generated by the project 
right back into it. In simple terms, the inclusion of apartments and stores will produce revenue that will pay for 
financing of the Sports Park. 

In more news of transformational projects, our agency is fired up and ready to assist with the city’s plan to build 
the main library project this city deserves. With a world renowned architect, we will have a center of learning, 
community and culture in a building that matches the natural beauty of our surroundings. The people of Boise 
deserve a structure of this magnitude and we are eager to do our part in making it happen.

The dramatic growth in population and the explosion of activity in our downtown require a balance - we are careful 
to insure what we all love about our city, its small town charm with big city amenities, remains as we grow into a 
bigger, more vibrant version of our past selves.

BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

SCOT LUDWIG
Commissioner

BEN QUINTANA 
Commissioner

MARYANNE JORDAN 
Commissioner

PAT SHALZ
Outgoing Secretary-Treasurer

RYAN WOODINGS 
Vice Chair

DAVE BIETER 
Secretary-Treasurer

GORDON JONES 
Commissioner



65

JOHN BRUNELLE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Our 2017 Annual Report captures CCDC’s commitment to and collaboration with the 

City of Boise by aligning our goals to have a meaningful, permanent, and positive 

impact on our community. Based on priorities set by the City, CCDC recently adopted 

seven STRATEGIC GOALS for 2018: Safe and Secure Community; Healthy Community; 

Connected Community; Environmentally Sustainable Community; Strong, Diverse Local 

Economy; Creative and Engaged Culture; Innovative and High Performing Organization.

In 2017 two of our longstanding commissioners, John Hale, and Pat Shalz, concluded 

their outstanding service on the CCDC Board, and Dana Zuckerman stepped up to take 

on the role of Board Chair. The agency benefits greatly from the collective leadership 

of the entire Board, and with their thoughtful guidance CCDC maximizes our unique 

financial powers to catalyze private investment and facilitate public projects while maintaining stable and consistent 

resource management. 

With the success of the past comes the promise of more collaboration and development in the months ahead, which 

will include the Sunset of Central District, and with that, a series of improvements in the district to ensure we leave 

the heart of downtown in perfect shape for the City, its visitors, and residents. The sunrise of a new Urban Renewal 

District is also on the horizon, and will include 131 acres along the Boise riverfront south of River Street. Our team 

of motivated professionals will continue to work with our partners to help our community thrive by building a more 

diverse, accessible, and bodacious Boise. 

In the words of Jane Jacobs, urbanist, activist and author of the The Death and Life of Great American Cities, 

“Designing a dream city is easy; rebuilding a living one takes imagination.”

ABOUT CCDC
Boise’s Redevelopment Agency, Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC), catalyzes investment in 
the city through its own projects and public/private partnerships. CCDC focuses its work on economic 
development, infrastructure, place making, and mobility in its four redevelopment districts. The agency’s 
staff work hand-in-hand with local partner organizations and companies to redevelop underutilized 
properties and improve public places.

VISION STATEMENT
Help the Boise community thrive in a sustainable economy where an exceptional built environment and 
excellent business opportunities are in perfect balance.

MISSION STATEMENT
CCDC ignites diverse economic growth, builds vibrant urban centers, and promotes healthy community design.

30TH STREET
District Term: FY 2014 - 2033   |   Acreage: 249

CENTRAL
District Term: FY 1989 - 2018   |   Acreage: 34

WESTSIDE
District Term: FY 2003 - 2026   |   Acreage: 144

RIVER MYRTLE-OLD BOISE
District Term: FY 1996 - 2025   |   Acreage: 340

6
The CCDC team at The Grove Plaza Grand Opening Ceremony. 



87

Working in public service provides a 
great opportunity to help thousands of 
other people by making a meaningful, 
permanent, and positive impact on our 
community. 

Creating places and neighborhoods 
people love is a key element in making a 
city desirable for residents, visitors, and 
investors.

Expanding mobility choices, improving 
infrastructure and encouraging innovation 
are imperative actions to making Boise 
competitive and equitable. 

Communicating with our stakeholders for 
guidance and buy-in helps build trust and 
a stronger community.

Questioning, observing, networking and 
experimenting triggers associational 
thinking and are catalysts for innovation 
and creative ideas.

• PROFESSIONALISM

• LEADERSHIP

• ACCOUNTABILITY

• INTEGRITY

• TRANSPARENCY

Fostering the expansion of local 
enterprise and career opportunity 
creates economic energy in our districts 
and beyond.

Redeveloping properties within 
our districts enhances the urban 
environment, honors our heritage, and 
fuels economic growth.

Focusing on community involvement 
enhances our holistic approach to 
building a diverse and bodacious Boise.

Maximizing our unique financial powers 
to catalyze investment, facilitate public 
projects, and increase agency revenue 
is paramount to stable and consistent 
resource management.

Collaborating with public and private 
partners to proactively plan and 
complete high quality development 
projects advances our planning goals 
and enriches Boise’s prosperity.

01 06

02
07

03
08

04

09

05 10

This icon highlights working examples of our 
Guiding Principles throughout this publication.

ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT INFRASTRUCTURE PLACE MAKING SPECIAL

PROJECTSMOBILITY

FIVE KEY STRATEGIES

GOALS

STRONG, DIVERSE LOCAL ECONOMY

FIVE CORE VALUES

87

CREATIVE & ENGAGED COMMUNITY

ENVIRONMENTALLY SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY

INNOVATIVE & HIGH PERFORMING ORGANIZATION

SAFE & SECURE COMMUNITY

HEALTHY COMMUNITY

CONNECTED COMMUNITY

TEN GUIDING PRINCIPLES



109

PROPERTIES ACQUIRED FOR REHABILITATION OR RESALE
1) 503/509/511/623/647 S ASH (0.7 ACRES) 
These small parcels were acquired in 2006, 2007, and 2011 for the Pioneer Corridor pathway project which 
connected the Boise River Greenbelt to the city center. These properties were included in a competitive 
RFQ/P in 2016 and the project was awarded to deChase miksas. The Design and Development Agreement 
is in place, and construction is scheduled to begin in 2018. The property will be conveyed at the start of 
construction.

2) 617 S ASH (0.14 ACRES)  
Like the above parcels, this was acquired in 2011 for the Pioneer Corridor project. It includes The Hayman 
House, a historic home of cultural value to be preserved in the River Street neighborhood. CCDC is working 
with the City of Boise Arts and History department to convey the property for preservation as a cultural site.

3) 429 S. 10TH (0.08 ACRES) 
This land was acquired in 2001 to help bundle property for a private development in the River Street 
neighborhood. With ownership changes on the block, the completion of the new Simplot HQ/JUMP project, 
and construction underway on the Pioneer Crossing project, CCDC is working with area property owners 
to identify the best strategy for disposition.

4) 620 S. 9TH (0.6 ACRES)
Acquired in 2001 as a Cultural District redevelopment property, this parcel went through a competitive RFQ/P 
process, and “The Afton” housing project was the selected. The Boise based developer is constructing a phased 
$31-million, 54-unit condo project which incorporates structured parking, retail space, and live-work units. The 
first phase located at 611 S 8th Street is complete, and 620 S 9th will be the location of Phase Two of The Afton. 
Construction of Phase Two and disposition of this parcel are scheduled for later in 2018. 

5) FRONT STREET REMNANT (0.32 ACRES)  
Left over from the Front Street realignment, this parcel 
was acquired in 2007 with intentions of combining 
it with adjacent land in a mixed-use development. 
In late 2016, CCDC issued a competitive RFQ/P and 
the project was awarded to Capitol Partners for a 
commercial and parking development. CCDC and the 
developer are formalizing the disposition agreement 
terms and expect the parcel to be conveyed in 2018. 

PROPERTIES ACQUIRED FOR PUBLIC USAGE
THE GROVE PLAZA: This property is owned by CCDC as an urban public park. Plans for disposition will be 
addressed in the Central District Termination Plan in 2018. 

8TH STREET FROM MAIN TO BANNOCK: This property is a public street and sidewalk managed by CCDC 
as a festival, café and public event street segment. Plans for disposition will be addressed in the Central 
District Termination Plan in 2018.

PUBLIC PARKING GARAGES: CCDC owned 6 parking garages in 2017: 8th & Main, Capitol & Main, Capitol & 
Front, 9th & Front, 10th & Front, and Capitol & Myrtle. 

AGENCY OWNED PROPERTY
CCDC obtains strategic properties with redevelopment potential. Generally, the Agency will issue a 
Request for Qualifications/Proposals (RFQ/P) to the public with specific information about redevelopment 
objectives for the property and how the private sector can participate in the project. CCDC owns the 
following properties and is actively planning for redevelopment. Idaho Code 50-2011(f) requires certain 
reporting on Agency owned properties. 

MAP OF PROPERTIES 
ACQUIRED FOR PUBLIC USE, 

REHABILITATION, FOR RESALE

30TH STREET 

WESTSIDE

RIVER MYRTLE-OLD BOISE

N

52 31 4

CENTRAL



39%
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

17%
INFRASTRUCTURE

1%
SPECIAL

PROJECTS

24%
PLACE MAKING

19%
MOBILITY & 

PARKING

1211

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CULTIVATE COMMERCE AND GROW RESILIENT, DIVERSIFIED, 
AND PROSPEROUS LOCAL ECONOMIES.

INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE TO ATTRACT NEW 
INVESTMENT AND ENCOURAGE BEST USE OF PROPERTY.

PLACE MAKING
DEVELOP PUBLIC SPACES AND ENERGIZED ENVIRONMENTS 
WHERE A BLEND OF CULTURES AND CONCENTRATED MIX OF 
USES CREATE A VALUED SENSE OF PLACE.

1
2
3
4
5

MOBILITY & PARKING
EXPAND MOBILITY CHOICES THAT INCLUDE PARKING AND 
MULTIPLE TRANSIT MODES TO ENABLE UNIVERSALLY 
ACCESSIBLE URBAN DISTRICTS.

SPECIAL PROJECTS
INVEST IN PROJECTS THAT RESPOND TO EMERGING 
REVITALIZATION OPPORTUNITIES INCLUDING PUBLIC 
AMENITIES, HISTORIC PRESERVATION, AND SUPPORT 
OF LOCAL ARTS AND CULTURE.

KEY STRATEGIES KEY STRATEGY 1

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

INVESTMENT BY KEY STRATEGY



1413

THE FOWLER
PROJECT NAME: 401 S 5th – Fowler – PP Type 3

DEVELOPER: LocalConstruct

SIZE: 159 Apartments, 192 Structured Parking Spaces

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $28 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $650,000 Type 3

PROJECT STATUS: Complete Spring 2018

THE WATERCOOLER
PROJECT NAME: 1401 W Idaho – The Watercooler Project, LLC – PP Type 5

DEVELOPER: LocalConstruct

SIZE: 27 Apartments

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $7 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $795,000 Type 5

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

THE AFTON
PROJECT NAME: 620 S 9th – The Afton – PP Type 5

DEVELOPER: RMH Company

SIZE: 54 Condominiums (Phase 1 and 2)

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $31 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $2,000,000 Type 5

PROJECT STATUS: Phase 1 Complete, Phase 2 Under Construction

HOUSING



1615

INN AT 500
PROJECT NAME: 550 S Capitol – Inn at 500 – PP Type 2

DEVELOPER: Obie Development

SIZE: 112 Rooms

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $24 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $269,500 – Type 2

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

ASH STREET
PROJECT NAME: 530 Ash Street – Ash Street Townhomes – PP Type 5

DEVELOPER: deChase Miksis

SIZE: 31 Apartments

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $8 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $997,000 – Type 4

PROJECT STATUS: Planning / Permitting 

5TH & IDAHO
PROJECT NAME: 5th & Idaho Apartments – PP Type 4

DEVELOPER: 5th and Idaho Development, LLC

SIZE: 79 Apartments

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $15.5 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $300,000 – Type 4

PROJECT STATUS: Under Construction

HOTELSRedeveloping properties within 
our districts enhances the urban 
environment, honors our heritage, 
and fuels economic growth.



1817

HYATT PLACE
PROJECT NAME: 1024 W Bannock – Hyatt Place – PP Type 2

DEVELOPER: PEG Development

SIZE: 146 Rooms

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $20 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $452,500 – Type 2

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

5TH & FRONT HOTEL & PARKING GARAGE
PROJECT NAME:  5th and Front - Hotel and Parking Garage – PP Type 3

DEVELOPER: Capitol Partners

SIZE: 130 Rooms, 500 Parking

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $25 million

CCDC PARTICIPATION: TBD

PROJECT STATUS: Planning

HILTON GARDEN INN
PROJECT NAME: 1100 Front Street – Hilton Garden Inn – PP Type 3

DEVELOPER: Gardner Company

SIZE: 136 Rooms

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $17 million

CCDC PARTICIPATION: CCDC Participation to $4.3 million for public 
improvements (includes improvements for entire 4 block,  
$52 million development project) 

PROJECT STATUS: Under Construction

RESIDENCE INN
PROJECT NAME: 410 S Capitol – Residence Inn by Marriott – PP Type 2

DEVELOPER: Pennbridge Capital

SIZE: 186 Rooms, 103 Parking Spaces

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: 35 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $875,000 – Type 2

PROJECT STATUS: Complete



2019

8TH STREET
PROJECT NAME: 8th Street

LOCATION: 8th Street between Main and Bannock 

DESCRIPTION: CCDC owns 2 blocks of 8th street from building front to building front. 
The agency takes great care in making sure this area of downtown is vibrant and 
helps promote economic development in the area by making 8th Street available 
for community events such as the Capital City Public Market, and providing patio 
licenses for outdoor dining along the corridor

TOTAL COST: $16,366 (operations and maintenance such as cleaning and brick repair)

PROJECT STATUS: Ongoing

TRAILHEAD
PROJECT NAME: Trailhead

LOCATION: 500 South 8th Street 

DESCRIPTION: In March 2015, CCDC helped establish Boise’s newest space for 
innovators and entrepreneurs, Trailhead. This collaborative professional place 
encourages gathering, connecting, and learning. Educational programming, unique 
networking opportunities, along with structured and unstructured events and 
drop-in sessions are offered. Trailhead is a non-profit, community effort focused on 
helping develop the next generation of business successes in the Boise valley. 

TOTAL COST: $75,000 annually for rent, maintenance, and utility assistance

PROJECT STATUS: Ongoing

Fostering the expansion of local 
enterprise and career opportunity 
creates economic energy in our 
districts and beyond.

19



2221

INFRASTRUCTURE
KEY STRATEGY 2

BROAD STREET
PROJECT NAME: Broad Street Improvements 

LOCATION: Broad Street between Capitol and 2nd Street 

DESCRIPTION: The City of Boise created a vision for the Central District to 
be an “eco-district” structured on principles of sustainable development, 
operations and Boise’s LIV culture – Lasting, Innovative, Vibrant. CCDC 
partnered with the City to reconstruct Broad Street with creative design and 
streetscape amenities (lights, benches, trees/planters, permeable pavers, 
green storm water infrastructure, etc.), extend the geothermal system down 
Broad Street and into the injection well at Julia Davis Park, install additional 
Fiber Optic resources, and utilize innovative storm water solutions.

TOTAL COST: $6.2 million

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

22



2423

2017 STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS
PROJECT NAME: 2017 Streetscape Improvements 

LOCATION: 2 blocks on Main Street between Capitol and 5th Street, ½ block on 
Capitol Blvd. between Main and alley, 1 block on 6th between Main and Idaho, 
and ½ block on Main between 14th and alley.  

DESCRIPTION: The project includes 5 block faces with improvements including 
new sidewalks, curb and gutter, street trees and grates, historic streetlights, 
pedestrian ramps, and furnishings such as bike racks, litter receptacles and 
benches for public use. The streetscapes are constructed per the Boise City 
Streetscape Standards Manual using brick and concrete sidewalks. The project 
also includes installation Silva Cells. Silva cells are a suspended pavement 
system that allows street trees to grow larger and live longer healthier lives in 
an urban environment, and reduces storm water runoff into the river.

TOTAL COST: $1.1 million

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

UTILITY LINE UNDERGROUND
LOCATION: 5th Street between Idaho and Bannock, 
alley between Main and Idaho from 5th to 6th

DESCRIPTION: CCDC is working with the City, 
ACHD, and private property owners to make 
sidewalks and alleys safer and more inviting by 
undergrounding utility lines. This is an ongoing 
program that responds to new development and 
identifies high-need areas for CCDC managed 
projects.

TOTAL COST: $400,000

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

TYPE 1 PARTICIPATION PROJECTS

RIVER STREET LOFTS
PROJECT NAME: 535 15th Street – Rive Street Lofts – Type PP Type 1

DEVELOPER: River Street Lofts, LLC

SIZE: 10 Townhomes

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $1.6 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $150,000 – Type 1

PROJECT STATUS: Planning/Permitting 

VERRASO
PROJECT NAME: 1420 Front Street- Verraso - PP Type 1 

DEVELOPER: Envision 360, Inc

SIZE: 8 Apartments

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $1.6 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $150,000 – Type 1

PROJECT STATUS: Under Construction

NEW PATH COMMUNITY HOUSING
PROJECT NAME: 2200 W Fairview - New Path Community Housing- PP Type 1

DEVELOPER: Thomas Development, Pacific Communities, and Northwest Integrity

SIZE: 40 Permanent Supportive Housing Units

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $7.3 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION:  $125,000– Type 1

PROJECT STATUS: Under Construction



2625

MOBILITY & PARKING
KEY STRATEGY 3

Expanding mobility choices, improving 
infrastructure and encouraging innovation 
are imperative actions to making Boise 
competitive and equitable. 

PARKBOI GARAGES
PROJECT NAME: ParkBOI Garage Painting and Signage

LOCATION: Downtown public parking garages 

DESCRIPTION: CCDC invested in updating its parking garages with new, highly 
visible signage, and interior painting of the garage stairwell and elevator 
lobbies. The exterior of the 9th & Front garage was also painted. The new 
signage and painting aligns with the new ParkBOI branding, a co-branding 
project with CCDC’s garages and the City of Boise’s on-street, metered parking.

TOTAL COST: $275,000 (Signage) $72,000 (9th and Front Exterior) 
$125,000 (interior painting 5 garages)

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

25



2827

BIKE RACK INFILL PROJECTS
PROJECT NAME: Bike Rack Infill projects

LOCATION: 8th and Main (in front of Taphouse) 
and 16th and Main (in front of HandleBar)

DESCRIPTION: Bike corrals were installed outside 
of Taphouse and HandleBar. The Bike Corrals hold 
approximately 15 bikes and are placed on the road, 
generally in a car park space, with permission from ACHD.

TOTAL COST: $3,000

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

11TH & FRONT PARKING GARAGE
PROJECT NAME: 11th & Front Parking Garage - 
Purchase and Sale Agreement

DEVELOPER: Gardner Company

SIZE: 827 parking spaces (250 owned by CCDC)

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $52 Million (approx.)

CCDC PARTICIPATION:  $5.4 Million

PROJECT STATUS: Open February 2018

FRONT AND MYRTLE ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS
PROJECT NAME: Front and Myrtle Alternatives Analysis

LOCATION: Front and Myrtle Street from 13th Street to Broadway

DESCRIPTION: Through the Front and Myrtle Alternatives Analysis, CCDC 
worked with ITD to identify a number of improvements along Front and Myrtle 
that could be accomplished immediately as part of a road maintenance project. 
These included installing conduit to allow for installation of future signals, 
improving the Pioneer Pathway connection at 11th and Myrtle, and extending  
20 corners at various intersections. When this work is complete in early 2018,  
it will create almost 1,400 square feet of new sidewalk at various corners  
along Front and Myrtle.

TOTAL COST: $200,000 for study

PROJECT STATUS: Ongoing

PARK AND RIDE SHUTTLE
PROJECT NAME: Park and Ride Shuttle

LOCATION: Elder Street to Downtown

DESCRIPTION: CCDC and the City of Boise in 
partnership with Valley Regional Transit and 
Boise State University are running a Park and 
Ride Shuttle. This FREE service runs from the 
Elder Street Park & Ride lot to downtown. It runs 
between 7am-10am and 4pm-7pm.

TOTAL COST: $55,000 (FY 2017)

PROJECT STATUS: Ongoing

BOISE GREENBIKE STATION AT RED LION
PROJECT NAME: Boise GreenBike Station at Red Lion

LOCATION: 22nd and Fairview

DESCRIPTION: Boise GreenBike and CCDC are partnering to improve 
mobility in downtown Boise with the installation of a new bicycle 
rental location near the Red Lion Hotel. The new station, which will 
have space for 5 bikes, is among 15 planned installations by Boise 
GreenBike as the service expands to meet demand. 

TOTAL COST: $4,300

PROJECT STATUS: Complete



3029

PLACE MAKING
KEY STRATEGY 4

THE GROVE PLAZA
PROJECT NAME: The Grove Plaza

LOCATION: 8th and Grove Pedestrian Plaza

DESCRIPTION: In 2017, CCDC celebrated the Grand Re-Opening of The Grove Plaza. 
The plaza was originally built in 1987, and CCDC renovated the public space to keep
it in tip-top condition before the end of the Central District. The project included
rebuilding the fountain and adding LED lighting, installing a plaza-wide sound system, 
repaving the entire plaza and spokes, implementing green storm water infrastructure, 
replacing declining trees, building public restrooms, buying new furniture and a portable 
stage for events, adding umbrellas for additional shade, and installing free public Wi-Fi.

TOTAL COST: $5.4 million

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

30



3231

JULIA DAVIS PARK ENTRY
PROJECT NAME: Julia Davis Park Entry

LOCATION: 5th and Myrtle to Julia Davis Park

DESCRIPTION: In partnership with the City of Boise, CCDC built a pathway 
connection from the south end of 5th Street into Julia Davis Park. The 
pathway project reconstructed 5th Street south of Myrtle with stamped 
concrete sidewalks, street lights, trees, and a vehicular turnaround, that 
serves pedestrians and cyclists entering Julia Davis Park.

TOTAL COST: $410,000

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

PIONEER CORNER
LOCATION: 11th and Myrtle Streets

DESCRIPTION: This improved connection 
accommodates bicyclists and pedestrians 
transitioning to and from the Pioneer Pathway 
from 11th Street at Myrtle. The project included a 
realigned crosswalk on Myrtle Street and wider 
the pathway paver area on the southwest corner of 
Myrtle and 11th Streets, additional trees, benches, 
and a waste bin.

TOTAL COST: $125,000

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

CITY HALL PLAZA
PROJECT NAME: City Hall Plaza

LOCATION: Capitol Boulevard between Main and Idaho

DESCRIPTION: In 2017 the City of Boise renovated 
the City Hall Plaza to create an enhanced pedestrian 
and visitor experience with features to enliven the 
downtown core. CCDC partnered with the City to 
share the cost of construction for the civic plaza. The 
renovation includes a new “skim” fountain, a protected 
bike lane along Capitol, new hardscape, green storm 
water infrastructure, and water-wise landscaping.

TOTAL COST: $1.3 million

PROJECT STATUS: Phase 1 Complete, 
Phase 2 Under Construction

Communicating with our stakeholders for guidance and 
buy-in helps build trust and a stronger community.



3433

SPECIAL PROJECTS
KEY STRATEGY 5

Collaborating with public and private partners 
to proactively plan and complete high quality 
development projects advances our planning 
goals and enriches Boise’s prosperity.

ATHLOS ACADEMIES
PROJECT NAME: 918 W Idaho Street – Athlos – PP Type 3

DEVELOPER: Athlos Academies

DESCRIPTION: An important building in Downtown Boise was saved from the wrecking 
ball thanks to a unique, locally-founded private company serving the education sector, 
Athlos Academies. The charter school organization has transformed the building into 
its new corporate headquarters and training facility. CCDC partnered with Athlos to pay 
for historic façade improvements and new streetscape construction.

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS: $9.2 million

CCDC PARTICIPATION: $750,000 – Type 3 Reimbursement

PROJECT STATUS: Complete

SHORELINE DISTRICT
PROJECT NAME: Shoreline District Planning

DESCRIPTION: CCDC, in collaboration with the City of Boise, is beginning 
work on forming the Shoreline Urban Renewal District. Located along 
the Boise River between Americana Boulevard and Capitol Boulevard, 
the district includes portions of the River Street Neighborhood and the 
Lusk District. With large catalytic development sites at each end of the 
proposed district, a need for infrastructure and mobility improvements 
will be necessary to support the neighborhood as the area develops into a 
vibrant urban shoreline neighborhood.

CCDC BUDGET: $350,000 for economic assessments and urban renewal 
plan creation

PROJECT STATUS: Underway



3635

2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Approximately 44% of the Agency’s net position is invested in Capital Assets (i.e. land, buildings, equipment, 
parking facilities, and other) with the remaining balance in other net assets to provide for ongoing 
obligations and subsequent year activities.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

Expenses: Community Development includes the general expenses of the Agency related to fulfilling its 
mission. Interest on Long-Term Debt includes the interest portion of payments related to long-term financing 
arrangements. Parking Facilities includes the cost of operating the public parking system. Overall, total 
Agency expenses in fiscal year 2017 increased $5,679,748.  The change was primarily due to the major 
community development projects such as Grove Plaza renovation and Broad Street improvement. The 
change was also related to the increase in interest on long-term debt. In 2017, the Series 2010 B bond 
was refunded, the Series 2010 C bond was redeemed, and the Series 2017 A bond was issued. These debt 
activities resulted in one-time total redemption fee of $135,303 and total issuance costs of $136,759 in 
2017.

Current & Other Assets

Capital Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Long-term Debt Outstanding

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted & Unrestricted

Total Net Position

2016

$50,877,527

24,619,146

75,496,673

494,324

21,578,832

2,304,877

23,883,709

14,311,086

14,533,359

23,262,843

$37,796,202

2017

$65,673,842 

 26,090,765 

 91,764,607 

 336,452 

 28,600,443 

 3,264,541 

 31,864,984 

 17,010,785 

 18,908,624 

 24,316,666 

 $43,225,290

Percentage 
Change

2016-2017

29.1%

6.0%

21.5%

(31.9%)

32.5%

41.6%

33.4%

33.4%

30.1%

4.5%

14.4%

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for Services

Operating Grants & contributions

Parking

Total Program Revenue

General Revenue 

Property Tax Increment

Unrestricted Investment

Earnings

Total Revenues

Expenses

Program Expenses

Community Development

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Parking Facilities

Total Program Expenses

Increase in Net Position

Net Position -  Beginning

Net Position - Ending

2016

 $194,372 

 1,652,113 

 6,065,718 

 7,912,203 

 13,337,201 

 22,541 

 21,271,945 

 8,372,953 

 989,701 

 3,312,031 

 12,674,685 

 8,597,260 

 29,198,942 

 $37,796,202

2017

 $227,215 

 1,599,082 

 6,825,914 

 8,652,211 

 15,092,756 

 38,554 

 23,783,521 

 13,468,656 

 1,183,687 

 3,702,090 

 18,354,433 

 5,429,088 

 37,796,202 

 $43,225,290

Percentage 
Change

2016-2017

16.9%

(3.2%)

12.5%

9.4%

13.2%

71.0%

11.8%

60.9%

19.6%

11.8%

44.8%

29.4%

14.4%

Revenues:  Charges for Services include lease revenues from the Ada County Courthouse Corridor Project. 
Operating Grants & Contributions include various reimbursements. Parking revenues include proceeds 
generated from operating the public parking garages. General Revenues include earnings on investments. 
Overall, total Agency revenues increased $2,511,576 compared with the prior year. Additionally, tax 
increment revenues increased $1,755,555 compared to fiscal year 2016, reflecting strong economic 
conditions and higher property values.

The Statement of Activities provides a summary of the Agency’s operation for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2017. Prior year data is presented for comparison purposes.



3837

Maximizing our unique financial powers to catalyze investment, 
facilitate public projects, and increase agency revenue is 
paramount to stable and consistent resource management.

 
 

• Total revenues increased by $2,511,576.  The majority of the increase was a result of increased property 
tax increment revenue. 

• Interest and fees expense on long-term debt in governmental activities increased by $193,986 compared 
with fiscal year 2016. The Agency has refunded the Series 2010 B-1 bond and redeemed early the 
Series 2010 C bond in fiscal year 2017. The Agency also paid issuance costs for the refunded debt. 
Over the long term, the refunding and redemption will provide the agency savings in interest payments. 
Additional cost of issuance were incurred to issue the 2017 A bond as well.

• The Agency’s key revenues are parking revenues and revenue allocation district revenues (tax 
increment revenue). Parking revenues increased $760,196 primarily due to: 1) increased parking 
activity and 2) continued parking revenue collection efficiency.  Revenue allocation increased about 
13.2% or $1,755,555 in fiscal year 2017 as compared to the prior year due to the increased property 
valuations and new construction in Agency urban renewal districts.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 
• The fiscal year 2017 budget was amended once during the year. The budget was decreased for amounts 

related to the timing of capital improvement projects that were continued into the next fiscal year or for 
capital improvement projects that were added, deleted or modified during the fiscal year.

• The Agency’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflow 
of resources at the close of the fiscal year 2017 by $43,225,290. Of this total, $18,908,624 is invested in 
capital assets (net of debt).

• At fiscal year close, the Agency’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of 
$46,019,380, of which $45,205,774 is nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned.

• During fiscal year 2017 the Agency’s expenses were $18,354,433 compared to the $12,674,685 reported 
in 2016. The change was primarily due to the increase in community development expenses related to 
the Grove Plaza renovation project and Broad Street improvement project in 2017.



34
A C R E S

340
A C R E S

144
A C R E S

249
A C R E S

CENTRAL RIVER MYRTLE 30TH STREETWESTSIDE

BASE VALUE

DISTRICT

2017 VALUE

$31 MIL

$353 MIL

$129 MIL

$673 MIL

$139 MIL

$331 MIL

$81 MIL

$128 MIL

1989 1994 2004 2014

2018 2033

2025 2026

ESTIMATED VALUE 
AT DISTRICT END

$833 
M I L L I O N

$370 
M I L L I O N

$394 
M I L L I O N

$143 
M I L L I O N

CENTRAL

RIVER MYRTLE 

30TH STREET

WESTSIDE

9t
h

8t
h

Main

Broad

Front

Broadw
ay

Myrtle

C
ap

it
ol

14
th

Am
er

ic
an

a

Idaho

Bannock

Jefferson

State

Grove

6t
h

10
th

11
th

12
th

13
th

15
th

16
th

5t
h

4t
h

3r
d

2n
d

1s
t

FultonRiver

Grand

Main

Fairv
iew

I-1
84

W
hitew

ater Park

27th

THE YEAR A DISTRICT IS CREATED IS REFERRED TO AS ITS 
BASE YEAR. ALL PROPERTY TAX REVENUE COLLECTED IN 
SUBSEQUENT YEARS IN EXCESS OF THE BASE  YEAR AMOUNT 
IS DISTRIBUTED TO CCDC DURING THE TERM OF A DISTRICT. 
AT THE END OF A DISTRICT’S TERM, THE ADDITIONAL TAX 
VALUE CREATED GOES TO THE EXISTING  TAXING DISTRICTS.

PROPERTY VALUE GROWTH IN CCDC DISTRICTS

URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT MAP

39% – 
ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT

17% – 
INFRASTRUCTURE

1% – SPECIAL PROJECTS

24% – PLACE MAKING

19% – MOBILITY

INVESTMENT BY KEY STRATEGY

PARTICIPATION PROGRAM

SINCE THE INCEPTION OF THE PARTICIPATION PROGRAM 
IN MARCH 2014, CCDC HAS INVESTED...

IN 
PRIVATE 
DEVELOPMENT.

IN PUBLIC
INVESTMENT,
LEVERAGING

$29
M I L L I O N $587 

M I L L I O N

million

5-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

OF THE ANNUAL BUDGET IS INVESTED IN 
THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

CCDC RE-INVESTS THE TAX INCREMENT REVENUE INTO EACH 
DISTRICT THROUGH CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

$88
87%

Boise’s Redevelopment Agency, Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC), catalyzes investment in the city through 
its own projects and public/private partnerships. CCDC focuses its work on economic development, infrastructure, place 
making, and mobility in four redevelopment districts. The Agency works hand-in-hand with local partner organizations 
and companies to redevelop underutilized properties and improve public places.

HELP THE BOISE COMMUNITY THRIVE IN 
A SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY WHERE AN EXCEPTIONAL 
BUILT ENVIRONMENT AND EXCELLENT BUSINESS 
OPPORTUNITIES ARE IN PERFECT BALANCE.

CCDC IGNITES DIVERSE 
ECONOMIC GROWTH, BUILDS VIBRANT 
URBAN CENTERS, AND PROMOTES 
HEALTHY COMMUNITY DESIGN.

VISION MISSION

CCDC STRATEGIC GOALS FOR 2018
(1) Safe and Secure Community; (2) Healthy Community; (3) Connected Community; (4) Environmentally Sustainable Community; (5) Strong, 
Diverse Local Economy; (6) Creative and Engaged Culture; (7) Innovative and High Performing Organization.

FIVE KEY STRATEGIES

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Cultivate commerce and grow resilient, 
diversified, and prosperous local economies.

INFRASTRUCTURE
Improve public infrastructure to attract 
new investment and encourage best use of 
property.

PLACE MAKING
Develop public spaces and energized 
environments where a blend of cultures and 
concentrated mix of uses create a valued 
sense of place.

SPECIAL PROJECTS
Invest in projects that respond to emerging 
revitalization opportunities including public 
amenities, historic preservation, and support 
of local arts and culture.

MOBILITY
Expand mobility choices that include parking 
and multiple transit modes to enable 
universally accessible urban districts.

CCDC owns six parking garages in downtown Boise 
totaling 2,567 parking spaces. Structured parking 
contributes to a vibrant city and strong economy.

ParkBOI GARAGES

IN PARKING REVENUE                    GIVEN AWAY BY CCDC EVERY YEAR!
“FIRST HOUR FREE” ACCOUNTS FOR $2 MILLION+

COLLABORATE. CREATE. DEVELOP. COMPLETE.



 

 

AGENDA BILL 

 
Agenda Subject: 
CCDC Capital Improvement Plan 2018-2022 (CIP) Amendment 
 

 
Date: 
March 12, 2018 

 
Staff Contact: 
Laura Williams and Todd 
Bunderson 
 

 
Attachments: 
1 – Fiscal Summary of 2018 CIP Amendment 
2 – 2018-2022 CIP Amendment Project Details 
3 – 2018-2022 CIP Original Project Details 

 
Action Requested: 
Approve Mid-Year CIP Amendment 
 

 
 
Background: 
 
The development of a multi-year capital improvement plan has been a valuable tool for 
coordinating capital improvements with intergovernmental agencies and working with private 
partners through the Agency’s Participation Program. The CCDC Board approved the original 
2018-2022 Capital Improvement Plan in August of 2017 as part of the fiscal 2018 budget. This 
process anticipated a mid-year update.  
 
Most changes for this amendment relate to project timing due to coordination with public or 
private partners and/or changes in cost estimates related to advancement of construction 
design documents and/or design refinement. Specifics on the key changes and more notable 
funding amount changes are highlighted below. 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
 
The original CIP total approved amount was $87,691,400. 
The amended CIP total proposed amount is $95,952,900. 
 
ALL DISTRICTS + $8,261,500 
The net increase of $8.2 million in the 2018-2022 CIP is primarily accounted for in two ways 

• First, the anticipated sale of the Capitol & Front garage will increase agency revenue by 
approximately $6.8 million and is proposed for a S. 8th Street parking facility. 

• Second, a strong market has resulted in $1.4 million of additional tax increment revenue 
which has allowed for several amended line items 
 

 
 
 
 



Project highlights are included below to indicate key changes (amounts do not add to total 
change because multiple project amounts have been adjusted in amounts both upward and 
downward as well). All changes are shown on line item adjustments in the attachments. 
 
CENTRAL + $928,900 

• $425,000 for the Main and Idaho Streets bike/pedestrian improvement are not possible 
in FY2018 due to currently adopted ACHD improvement plans for these streets therefore 
budgeted resources have been moved to 3 new potential Participation Program projects 
in the 8th Street area to allow these projects to occur before Central sunset in FY2018. 

• $300,000 was added to allow for painting the Capitol & Main parking garage at the same 
time as the private development which is occurring this summer, as well as, the design 
and construction of a secure bike storage area most likely in the 9th & Main Garage. 

• $133,000 new project funding to participate in a public art project at Main Street Station 
 
RIVER MYRTLE + $5,507,500 

• $5 million in property acquisition funding in FY 2018 was reallocated to South 8th Street 
improvements. The S. 8th Street Project will include parking, streetscapes, and a plaza 

• $500,000 added to FY 2019 for Downtown Mobility Infrastructure 
• $750,000 added to FY 2019 for Utility Line Undergrounding on 5th Street (Front to Main) 
• $100,000 added to FY 2019 for Utility and Conduit Line Installation on 15th Street 

 
WESTSIDE + $1,575,000 

• $2,100,000 of $3,800,000 of planned parcel acquisition funds were used to purchase 
property at 421 South 10th Street for strategic redevelopment plans.  

• The $14.6M bond has been divided up into multiple line items with same total amount 
• $700,000 added to FY 2019 for Downtown Mobility Infrastructure 

 
30TH STREET + $250,100  

• $700,000 allocated in FY ‘21 and ‘22 for Planned Boise Sports Park Bond Payment 
• $540,000 allocated in FY ‘19 for Whittier School streetscape public improvements  
• $250,000 allocated in FY ‘19 for Adare Manor streetscape/infrastructure improvements 
• $250,000 allocated for Main/Fairview mobility Improvements 
• $150,000 allocated for mobility infrastructure  

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Approve CIP Amendment 
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move to approve the CIP Amendment as presented. 
 

 



FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 TOTAL
ORIGINAL 4,866,800$     N/A N/A N/A N/A 4,866,800$              
AMENDED 5,795,700$     N/A N/A N/A N/A 5,795,700$              
CHANGE 928,900$        N/A N/A N/A N/A 928,900$                 

FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 TOTAL
ORIGINAL 19,789,200$   6,907,600$      6,332,200$     5,837,200$   7,403,200$       46,269,400$            
AMENDED 10,726,200$   21,403,100$   7,407,200$     5,837,200$   6,403,200$       51,776,900$            
CHANGE (9,063,000)$   14,495,500$   1,075,000$     -$               (1,000,000)$      5,507,500$             

FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 TOTAL
ORIGINAL 21,704,900$   3,037,100$      3,620,000$     2,395,000$   2,592,000$       33,349,000$            
AMENDED 22,004,900$   3,712,100$      3,620,000$     2,595,000$   2,992,000$       34,924,000$            
CHANGE 300,000 675,000 0 200,000 400,000 1,575,000

FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 TOTAL
ORIGINAL 1,046,200$     520,000$         540,000$        550,000$      550,000$          3,206,200$              
AMENDED 226,300$        1,190,000$      400,000$        820,000$      820,000$          3,456,300$              
CHANGE (819,900) 670,000 (140,000) 270,000 270,000 250,100

FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 TOTAL
ORIGINAL 47,407,100$   10,464,700$   10,492,200$   8,782,200$   10,545,200$     87,691,400$            
AMENDED 38,753,100$   26,305,200$   11,427,200$   9,252,200$   10,215,200$     95,952,900$            
CHANGE (8,654,000)$   15,840,500$   935,000$        470,000$      (330,000)$         8,261,500$             

ALL DISTRICTS
2018 Amendment

5-Year CIP Comparison

WESTSIDE DISTRICT
2018 Amendment

5-Year CIP Comparison

30TH STREET DISTRICT
2018 Amendment

5-Year CIP Comparison

RIVER-MYRTLE DISTRICT
2018 Amendment

5-Year CIP Comparison

2018‐2022 CIP Amendment Summary
CENTRAL DISTRICT

2018 Amendment
5-Year CIP Comparison



 

 

 

 

 

CCDC 

ORIGINAL 5-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2022 

EXCERPT 

APPROVED AUGUST 29, 2017 



- 17 -CCDC  |  CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 5-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  |  2018 – 2022

CENTRAL DISTRICT PROJECTS

CENTRAL DISTRICT FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 STATUS

Estimated Resources  $4,866,800 N/A N/A N/A N/A
INFRASTRUCTURE

1 176 Capitol Blvd - Business Interiors of Idaho - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Tentative
2 150 8th Street - Capitol Terrace - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Tentative
3 8th Street Streetscape Improvements - Main to Bannock 650,000 Designtated
4 Capitol Blvd. Streetscape Imp - east side, Front St to alley between Grove and Main St. 450,000 Designtated
5 Capitol Blvd. Streetscape Imp - east side, Idaho to Bannock 154,800 Designtated
6 Treegrates repair/replacement - district wide 150,000 Designtated
7 Paving, furnishings, misc. spot repair/replacement - district wide 169,500 Designtated
8 Loading Zone/Sidewalk Enhancement - @ 5 locations 125,000 Designtated
9 Idaho Street Pedestrian/Bike Improvements - North side, Capitol BLVD to 9th St 275,000 Designtated

MOBILITY
10 Idaho Street Pedestrian/Bike Improvements - 9th - Capitol, see #9 Designated
11 Main Street Pedestrian/Bike Improvements - 9th - Capitol 150,000 Designated
12 151,500 Designated
13 Pedestrian Scramble - 8th and Main Intersection 100,000 Tentative
14 Pedestrian Scramble - 8th and Idaho Intersection 100,000 Tentative
15 Pedestrian Scramble - 8th and Bannock Intersection 100,000 Tentative

PLACEMAKING
16 8th Street Retractable Event Bollards 100,000 Obligated
17 419,000 Obligated
18 City Hall Plaza Improvements 787,000 Obligated
19  City Hall Streetscapes West Side 655,000 Obligated

SPECIAL PROJECTS
20    Protective Bollards at Capitol Blvd. & Front St. 30,000 Designated

Estimated Expenses  $4,866,800 

DISTRICT CLOSED

Obligated:

Designated: 

Tentative:



- 19 -CCDC  |  CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 5-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  |  2018 – 2022

RIVER MYRTLE DISTRICT PROJECTS
RIVER MYRTLE DISTRICT FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 STATUS

Estimated Resources  $19,789,200  $6,907,600  $6,332,200  $5,837,200  $7,403,200 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

1 1099 Front Street - JUMP and Simplot HQ - Type 3 Participation Program 875,000 Obligated
2 1150 Myrtle Street - Pioneer Crossing - Type 3 Participation Program 311,200 313,200 553,200 553,200 Obligated
3 401 5th Street - Fowler Apartment - Type 3 Participation Program 550,000 Obligated
4 410 Capitol Blvd. - Residence Inn Marriott - Type 2 Participation Program 360,000 360,000 156,000 Obligated
5 500 Capitol Blvd. - Inn at 500 Hotel - Type 2 Participation Program 269,500 Obligated
6 502  Front Street - Remnant Parcel - Type 5 Participation Program (Conveyance Costs) 5,000 Obligated

7 
503 - 647 Ash Street - Ash Street Properties - Type 5 Participation Program 
(Land Development, Alley Purchase, Public Improvements)

40,000 318,000 Obligated

8 503 Idaho St. - 5th & Idaho Apartments - Type 2 Participation Program 156,000 156,000 53,000 Obligated
9 T5 Participation: Parcel Acquisition/Redevelopment 2,000,000 3,350,000 Tentative

INFRASTRUCTURE
10 1420 Front Street - Verraso - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Obligated
11 535 15th Street - River Street Lofts - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Obligated
12 610 Julia Davis Drive -  Idaho Historical Museum - Type 4 Participation Program 146,000 Obligated
13 6th Street Streetscapes, Main to Front St 600,000 950,000 Tentative
14 8th Street Improvements, State to Bannock (split with Westside District) 200,000 Designated
15 Bannock Street Improvements, 8th to Capitol Blvd, North side (split with Westside District) 400,000 Designated
16 Capitol Boulevard Streetscape, Boise River to Fulton St 2.5 blocks 950,000 Tentative
17 Front Street, Capitol Blvd. to 5th Street , North Side (Pending ITD Permission) 330,000 Tentative
18 Main Street, Capitol - 5th, South Side 150,000 Obligated
19 Myrtle Street, Capitol - 2nd, Both Sides (Pending ITD Permission) 610,000 493,000 Tentative
20 River Street Streetscapes, Ash to 12th St. 150,000 Tentative
21 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 Tentative
22 Type 1 Participation Program Streetscape Reimbursements (Not yet awarded) 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 Tentative

MOBILITY
23 Front & My tle Street Improvements: Enhanced Crosswalk Treatments Post Microsealing 200,000 Tentative
24 Front & My tle Street Improvements: Signalized Crossing at 10th & Front 200,000 Tentative
25 Front & My tle Street Improvements: Signalized Crossing at 12th & Front 200,000 Tentative
26 5th & 6th Street 2-Way Conversions; Front to Myrtle 50:50 Cost Share w/ ACHD 750,000 Tentative
27 Signalized Crossing  at 5th & Myrtle 200,000 Designated
28 11th & Myrtle - Pioneer Corner Improvements - Type 4 Participation Program 125,000 Obligated
29 Downtown Circulator Preliminary Engineering 354,100 327,900 Designated
30 Idaho Street Pedestrian/Bike Improvements, Capitol Blvd - 2nd St. 150,000 Designated

...continued on page 20



- 20 -CCDC  |  CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 5-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  |  2018 – 2022

RIVER MYRTLE DISTRICT PROJECTS CONTINUED
RIVER MYRTLE DISTRICT CONTINUED.... FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 STATUS
MOBILITY

31 Main Street Pedestrian/Bike Improvements, Capitol Blvd. - Broadway St. 150,000 Designated
32 Public Parking Supporting Julia Davis Park (see TBD parking garage) Tentative
33 200,000 Tentative
34 650,000 Tentative
35 RM Parking Garage - Partial Ownership Property Acquisition 3,000,000 Tentative
36 401 5th Street - 5th & Broad Garage- Purchase 89 Public Parking Spaces (BOND) 2,590,000 Obligated
37 1150 Myrtle Street - 11th & Front Garage - Purchase of 250 Public Parking Spaces (BOND) 5,400,000 Obligated
38 770,100 Designated
39 VRT Transit Improvements 26,000 Obligated

PLACEMAKING
40 8th Street Corridor Improvements  Phase 1 359,000 Designated
41 8th Street Corridor Improvements Phase 2 1,200,000 300,000 Tentative
42 Broad Street, Capitol - 2nd, Street and Infrastructure Improvements 240,000 Obligated
43 CCDC Alley Program - between 5th and 6th, Myrtle to Broad 30,000 250,000 Tentative
44 CCDC Alley Program - between 8th and 9th, River to Fulton 25,000 200,000 Tentative
45 CCDC Alley Program - between 9th and 10th, Miller to Myrtle 15,000 150,000 Tentative
46 CCDC Alley Program - between Front and Grove, 11th to 12th 250,000 Designated
47 CCDC Alley Program - between Front and Grove, 15th to 16th 200,000 Tentative
48 CCDC Alley Program - between Grove and Main, 4th to 5th 25,000 250,000 Tentative
49 CCDC Alley Program - between Grove and Main, 5th to 6th 25,000 250,000 Tentative
50 CCDC Alley Program - between Grove and Main, 6th to Capitol 30,000 250,000 Designated
51 CCDC Alley Program - between Idaho and Bannock, 6th to Capitol 30,000 250,000 Tentative
52 CCDC Alley Program - between Main and Idaho, 3rd to 5th 250,000 Obligated
53 Downtown Urban Parks Plan / Development Catalyst TBD Tentative
54 Grove Street Pedestrian Street Plan (16th to 10th) per ACHD/DBIP 75,000 100,000 2,700,000 Tentative
55 Grove Street Pedestrian Street Plan (6th to 3rd) per ACHD/DBIP 75,000 3,900,000 Tentative
56 Main Library Area Pre-Development Improvements 1,000,000 Designated
57 Pioneer Corridor Pathway Monument Signage 75,000 Designated
58 503 Idaho St. - 5th & Idaho Public Park and Undergrounding Utilities - Type 4 Participation 744,000 Designated

SPECIAL PROJECTS
59 620 S 9th Street Phase II Site Remediation 240,000 Obligated
60 70,000 Designated
61 10,000 Tentative

Total River Myrtle Estimated Expenses  $19,789,200  $6,907,600  $6,332,200  $5,837,200  $7,403,200 



- 22 -CCDC  |  CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 5-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  |  2018 – 2022

WESTSIDE DISTRICT PROJECTS

WESTSIDE DISTRICT FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 STATUS

Estimated Resources  $21,704,900  $3,037,100  $3,620,000  $2,395,000  $2,592,000 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

1 Parking Garage + Mixed Use Catalyst Development, e.g. Public Market (BOND) 14,600,000 Tentative
2 1024 Bannock Street - Hyatt Place - Type 2 Participation Program 120,000 120,000 120,000 92,000 Obligated
3 918 Idaho Street - Athlos Acadamies - Type 3 Participation Program 750,000 Obligated
4 Type 5 Participation Program - Parcel Acquisition for Redevelopment 3,300,000 1,900,000 1,950,000 Tentative

INFRASTRUCTURE
5 8th Street Streetscapes, State - Bannock, Both Sides (Split w RM) 400,000 Tentative
6 Bannock Street Streetscapes, 9th - Capitol (Split with RM) 500,000 Tentative
7 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 Tentative
8 100,000 Designated
9 450,000 Designated

10 Type 1 Participation Program Streetscape Reimbursements (Not yet awarded) 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 Tentative
MOBILITY

11 Rightsizing per ACHD DBIP 15th & 16th Streets, Grove to Idaho 200,000 Tentative
12 Downtown Circulator Preliminary Engineering 234,400 217,100 Tentative
13 Idaho Street Pedestrian/Bike Improvements, 16th St - 9th St. 150,000 Designated
14 Main Street Pedestrian/Bike Improvements, 16th St. to 9th St. 150,000 Designated
15 110,500 Designated

PLACEMAKING
16 Canal Daylighting / Development Catalyst 950,000 Tentative
17 25,000 200,000 Tentative
18 Downtown Urban Parks Plan / Development Catalyst 2,000,000 Tentative
19 Grove Street Pedestrian Plazas, 16th - 10th 2,700,000 Tentative
20 Westside Public Space 250,000 Tentative

SPECIAL PROJECTS
21 10,000

Estimated Expenses  $21,704,900  $3,037,100  $3,620,000  $2,395,000  $2,592,000 



- 24 -CCDC  |  CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 5-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  |  2018 – 2022

30TH STREET DISTRICT PROJECTS

30TH STREET DISTRICT FY FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 STATUS

Estimated Resources  $1,046,200  $520,000  $540,000  $550,000  $550,000 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

1 74,900 100,000 90,000 85,000 90,000 Tentative
2 Whitewater and Main -  College of Western Idaho Boise Campus - Participation Type TBD Tentative
3 Whitewater and Main - Mixed Use Development - Participation Type TBD Tentative
4 Tentative
5 24th & Fairview - Housing First Development - Participation Type TBD Tentative
8 27th & Stewart - Whitewater Station - Participation Type TBD Tentative

INFRASTRUCTURE
7 3200 Moore Street - Sandhill Crane Apartments - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Designated
8 Capital Improvements General 595,000 420,000 450,000 465,000 460,000 Tentative
9 301 N 29th Street - Whittier School - Type 1 Participation Program Tentative

10 Type 1 Participation Program Streetscape Reimbursements (Not yet awarded) 150,000 Tentative
MOBILITY

11 Downtown Circulator Preliminary Engineering Tentative
12 Main Fairview Improvements TBD Tentative
13 Shared Parking and Transit Improvements (Park and Ride) Tentative
14 61,300 Designated

PLACEMAKING
15 Downtown Urban Parks Plan / Development Catalyst (TBD) Tentative

SPECIAL PROJECTS
16 15,000

Estimated Expenses  $1,046,200  $520,000  $540,000  $550,000  $550,000 



 

 

 

 

 

CCDC 

AMENDED 5-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2022 

EXCERPT 

PROPOSED MARCH 12, 201 



CENTRAL DISTRICT FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 STATUS
Estimated Resources 5,795,700$         N/A N/A N/A N/A

INFRASTRUCTURE
1 176 Capitol Blvd - Business Interiors of Idaho - Type 1 Participation Program 120,000 Obligated
2 150 8th Street - Capitol Terrace - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Obligated
3 222 8th Street - Diablo & Sons - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 DISTRICT CLOSED Designated
4 801 Main Street - Retail Awnings  - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Tentative
5 TBD Type 1 Participation Program Project 150,000 Tentative
6 Public Art Participation 50,000 Tentative
7 8th Street Streetscape Improvements - Main to Bannock 740,000 Designtated
8 Capitol Improvements- east side, Front to alley between Grove &  Main, and Idaho to Bannock 1,148,500 Designtated
9 Loading Zone/Sidewalk Enhancement, and misc. spot repair/replacement 550,000 Designtated

10 Newspaper Stand Consolidation 50,000 Designated
MOBILITY

11 Downtown Secure Bike Parking Design and Construction 100,000 Designated
12 Capitol & Main Garage Painting 200,000 Tentative
13 Wayfinding Project Installation 151,500 Designated
14 Main Street Station/Capitol and Main Public Art / Enhancements 114,300 Tentative

PLACE MAKING
15 8th Street Retractable Event Bollards Included in #3 Obligated
16 Alley Place making Project (8th to Capitol between Idaho and Bannock) 570,000 Obligated
17 City Hall Plaza Improvements 716,400 Obligated
18 City Hall Streetscapes West Side 655,000 Obligated

SPECIAL PROJECTS
19 Protective Bollards at Capitol Blvd. & Front St. 30,000 Designated

Estimated Expenses 5,795,700$         

3/9/2018 Page 1 of 5

2018-2022 Capital Improvement Plan Amendement Project Details Excerpt



RIVER MYRTLE DISTRICT FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 STATUS
Estimated Resources 10,726,200$      21,403,100$     7,407,200$    5,837,200$    6,403,200$    

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
1 1099 Front Street - JUMP and Simplot HQ - Type 3 Participation Program 875,000 Obligated
2 1150 Myrtle Street - Pioneer Crossing - Type 3 Participation Program 311,200 313,200 553,200 553,200 Obligated
3 401 5th Street - Fowler Apartment - Type 3 Participation Program 550,000 Obligated
4 410 Capitol Blvd. - Residence Inn Marriott - Type 2 Participation Program 360,000 360,000 156,000 Obligated

5 500 Capitol Blvd. - Inn at 500 Hotel - Type 2 Participation Program 240,000 15,000 Obligated
6 502  Front Street - Remnant Parcel - Type 5 Participation Program (Conveyance Costs) 5,000 Obligated
7 503 Ash Street - Ash Street Properties, Alley Purchase, Streetscape, Infrastructure Improvements - T 40,000 318,000 Obligated
8 503 Idaho St. - 5th & Idaho Apartments - Type 2 Participation Program 156,000 156,000 53,000 Obligated
9 T5 Participation: Parcel Acquisition/Redevelopment 3,300,000 Tentative

INFRASTRUCTURE
10 1420 Front Street - Verraso - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Obligated
11 535 15th Street - River Street Lofts - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Obligated
12 610 Julia Davis Drive -  Idaho Historical Museum - Type 4 Participation Program 176,000 Obligated
13 6th Street Streetscapes, Main to Front St 600,000 Tentative
14 8th Street Improvements, State to Bannock (split with Westside District) 200,000 Designated
15 Bannock Street Improvements, 8th to Capitol Blvd, North side (split with Westside District) 400,000 Designated
16 Capitol Boulevard Streetscape, westside River St to Fulton and eastside .5 block Fulton to alley 950,000 Tentative
17 Front Street, Capitol Blvd. to 5th Street , North Side (Pending ITD Permission) 330,000 Tentative
18 Main Street, Capitol - 5th, South Side 150,000 Obligated
19 Myrtle Street, Capitol - 2nd, Both Sides (Pending ITD Permission) 610,000 493,000 Tentative
20 River Street Streetscapes, Ash to 12th St. 150,000 Tentative
21 Streetscape - Design Next Year's Projects 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 Tentative
22 122 5th Street - Shops at 5th - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Designated
23 Type 1 Participation Program Streetscape Reimbursements (Not yet awarded) 150,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 Tentative
24 15th Street Utility Undergrounding and Conduit 100,000 Designated
25 5th Street Utility Undergrounding Front to Main 500,000 Tentative
26 Newspaper Stand Consolidation 50,000 Tentative
27 South 8th Street Sitework ($2.59M BOND) / Streetscapes 5,200,000 Designated

MOBILITY
27 Front & Mrytle Street Improvements: Enhanced Crosswalk Treatments Post Microsealing 200,000 Tentative
28 Front & Mrytle Street Improvements: Signalized Crossing at 10th & Front 200,000 Tentative
29 Front & Mrytle Street Improvements: Signalized Crossing at 12th & Front 200,000 Tentative
30 5th & 6th Street 2-Way Conversions Traffic Mitigation 250,000 Tentative
31 Signalized Crossing  at 5th & Myrtle 200,000 Designated
32 11th & Myrtle - Pioneer Corner Improvements - Type 4 Participation Program 125,000 Obligated
33 Downtown Circulator Preliminary Engineering 354,100 327,900 Designated
36 Public Parking Supporting Julia Davis Park (see TBD parking garage) Tentative
37 River Street Neigborhood Traffic Calming and 8th & River Bike/Ped Raised Intersection 200,000 Tentative
38 River Street Traffic Calming, Medians 650,000 Tentative
39 RM Parking Garage - Partial Ownership Property Acquisition Tentative
40 1150 Myrtle Street - 11th & Front Garage - Purchase of 250 Public Parking Spaces (BOND) 5,200,000 Obligated

3/9/2018 Page 2 of 5



41 Wayfinding Project Installation 770,100 Designated
42 VRT Transit Improvements 26,000 Obligated
43 Downtown Mobility Infrastructure 500,000 Tentative
44 South 8th Street Parking and Mobility 6,800,000 Designated

PLACEMAKING
45 8th Street Corridor Improvements  Phase 1 359,000 Designated
46 8th Street Corridor Improvements Phase 2 1,200,000 300,000 Tentative
47 Broad Street, Capitol - 2nd, Street and Infrastructure Improvements 240,000 Obligated
48 CCDC Alley Program - between 5th and 6th, Myrtle to Broad 30,000 250,000 Tentative
49 CCDC Alley Program - between 8th and 9th, River to Fulton 25,000 200,000 Tentative
50 CCDC Alley Program - between 9th and 10th, Miller to Myrtle 15,000 150,000 Tentative
51 CCDC Alley Program - between Front and Grove, 15th to 16th 200,000 Tentative
52 CCDC Alley Program - between Grove and Main, 4th to 5th 25,000 250,000 Tentative
53 CCDC Alley Program - between Grove and Main, 5th to 6th 25,000 250,000 Tentative
54 CCDC Alley Program - between Grove and Main, 6th to Capitol 30,000 250,000 Designated
55 CCDC Alley Program - between Idaho and Bannock, 6th to Capitol 30,000 250,000 Tentative
56 CCDC Alley Program - between Main and Idaho, 3rd to 5th 250,000 Obligated
57 Downtown Urban Parks Plan / Development Catalyst TBD Tentative
58 Grove Street Pedestrian Street Plan (16th to 10th) per ACHD/DBIP 75,000 75,000 2,700,000 Tentative
59 Grove Street Pedestrian Street Plan (6th to 3rd) per ACHD/DBIP 75,000 3,900,000 Tentative
60 South 8th Street Public Plaza 3,000,000 Designated
61 Pioneer Corridor Pathway Monument Signage 75,000 Designated
62 503 Idaho St. - 5th & Idaho Public Park and Undergrounding Utilities - Type 4 Participation 744,000 Designated

SPECIAL PROJECTS
63 620 S 9th Street Phase II Site Remediation 240,000 Obligated
64 Hayman House Capital Projects 277,000 Designated
65 Traffic Box Art Wraps 10,000 Tentative

Total River Myrtle Estimated Expenses 10,726,200$      21,403,100$     7,407,200$    5,837,200$    6,403,200$    

3/9/2018 Page 3 of 5



WESTSIDE DISTRICT FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 STATUS
Estimated Resources 22,004,900$      3,712,100$        3,620,000$    2,595,000$    2,992,000$    

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
1 Westside Public Parking Garage Partial Ownership Property Acquisition (BOND) 6,000,000 Tentative
2 Property Acquisition - Catalytic Development (BOND) 3,000,000 Tentative
3 1024 Bannock Street - Hyatt Place - Type 2 Participation Program 120,000 120,000 120,000 92,000 Obligated
4 918 Idaho Street - Athlos Acadamies - Type 3 Participation Program 750,000 Obligated

5 Catalytic, Mixed Use Development - Parcel Acquisition for Redevelopment 1,700,000 2,100,000 2,350,000 Tentative
6 10th & State - 421 N. 10th Street - Parcel Acquisition 2,100,000 Obligated
7 10th & State Area  - Catalytic, Mixed Use Dev. Parcel Acquisition, Public Parking (BOND) 5,600,000 Tentative

INFRASTRUCTURE
8 8th Street Streetscapes, State - Bannock, Both Sides (Split w RM) 400,000 Tentative
9 Bannock Street Streetscapes, 9th - Capitol (Split with RM) 475,000 Tentative

10 Design Upcoming Streetscape Projects 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 Tentative
11 Main Street Streetscapes, 13th - 14th, 1/2 block Streetscape Infill, NW corner 100,000 Designated
12 State Street Streetscapes, 16th - 8th, Both Sides (Joint Project w/ACHD) 450,000 Designated
13 1005 Main Street - 10th & Main - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Obligated
14 Type 1 Participation Program Streetscape Reimbursements (Not yet awarded) 150,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 Tentative
15 15th Street Utility Undergrounding and Conduit 300,000 Designated
16 Newspaper Stand Consolidation 50,000 Tentative

MOBILITY
17 Rightsizing per ACHD DBIP 15th & 16th Streets, Grove to Idaho 200,000 Tentative
18 Downtown Circulator Preliminary Engineering 234,400 217,100 Tentative
19 Wayfinding Project Installation 110,500 Designated
20 Downtown Mobility Infrastructure 700,000

PLACEMAKING
21 Development Catalyst / Placemaking Project, i.e. canal daylighting 950,000 Tentative
22 CCDC Alley Program - Between Bannock and Jefferson, 8th to 9th 25,000 200,000 Tentative
23 Downtown Urban Parks Plan / Development Catalyst 2,000,000 Tentative
24 Grove Street Pedestrian Plazas, 16th - 10th 2,700,000 Tentative

SPECIAL PROJECTS
25 Traffic Box Art Wraps 10,000 Designated

Estimated Expenses 22,004,900$      3,712,100$        3,620,000$    2,595,000$    2,992,000$    

3/9/2018 Page 4 of 5



30TH STREET DISTRICT FY FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 STATUS
Estimated Resources 226,300$            1,190,000$        400,000$        820,000$        820,000$        

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
1 Whitewater and Main - Sports Park (Total $9.1 million through 2033) 700,000 700,000 Tentative
2 Whitewater and Main -  College of Western Idaho Boise Campus - Participation Type TBD Tentative
3 Whitewater and Main - Mixed Use Development - Participation Type TBD Tentative
4 27th & Fairview - Medical Office Development - Participation Type TBD Tentative
5 24th & Fairview - Adare Manor - Type 2 Participation Program 120,000 120,000 Obligated
6 24th & Fairview - Adare Manor - Type 4 Participation Program 250,000 Obligated
7 27th & Stewart - Whitewater Station - Participation Type TBD Tentative

INFRASTRUCTURE
8 301 N 29th Street - Whittier School - Type 4 Participation Program 540,000 Designated
9 2200 Fairview - New Path Community Housing - Type 1 Participation Program 150,000 Obligated

10 Connectivity Improvements 400,000 Tentative
MOBILITY

11 Downtown Circulator Preliminary Engineering Tentative
12 Main Fairview Improvements, Transit Islands, Etc… 250,000 Tentative
13 Downtown Mobility Infrastructure 150,000 Tentative
14 Wayfinding Project Installation 61,300 Designated

PLACEMAKING
15 Downtown Urban Parks Plan / Development Catalyst (TBD) Tentative

SPECIAL PROJECTS
16 Traffic Box Art Wraps 15,000 Tentative

Estimated Expenses 226,300$            1,190,000$        400,000$        820,000$        820,000$        

3/9/2018 Page 5 of 5



Page 1 
 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Capitol & Front Garage Disposition – Discuss and Approve Disposition 
Process and Request for Proposals 

Date: 
March 12, 2018 
 

Staff Contact: 
Laura Williams and Todd 
Bunderson 
 

Attachments: 
1) Garage Site 
2) Garage Photos 
3) Proposed RFP 
4) Parking Property Advisors Consultant Letter 

Action Requested: 
Authorize the Executive Director to finalize the Capitol & Front Garage Request for Proposals, 
and publish the RFP using the process as outlined. 

Background: 
 
CCDC currently owns six garages that make up the structured parking in the ParkBOI system. The 
Capitol & Front garage (formerly, Boulevard Garage) is located underground on the southeast corner of 
The Grove Plaza. The Grove Hotel and Century Link Arena are directly above. The garage has 207 
functional spaces and was built as part of a 1996 Development Agreement with Block 22, LLC. The 
hotel and arena were built in conjunction with CCDC’s public parking component, and CCDC 
purchased the garage from Block 22 in 1998 for the cost of construction, approximately $5.3 million.  
 
The garage has several use agreements with Block 22, LLC which dictate some of the operation. Along 
with public parking The Grove Hotel uses the garage for its guests valet and self-parking. Additionally, 
Boulevard Two Fifty Five condominiums, located on the upper levels of building, have an existing lease 
agreement for 21 spaces for the condominium owners. Lastly, CCDC offers Century Link Arena 
special-rate event parking for their season ticket holders. These operations are listed in existing Lease 
Agreements and the Operation, Maintenance, and Management Agreement with Block 22, LLC and 
would have to be taken into account by any future owner per that same agreement. 
 
In an effort to keep spaces available for hotel guests and event goers, CCDC does not assign its typical 
oversell ratio to monthly passes in the Capitol & Front garage. Also, the Grove Hotel pays CCDC for its 
guests who valet or validate parking through the hotel at a rate that is at nearly half the market rate the 
agency charges for a daily maximum at the other ParkBOI garages ($8 for The Grove Hotel, and $15 
for other garages). It has also been reported that hotel staff often closes the garage to hotel guests 
only, on nights of high occupancy. 
 
The tandem parking spaces also present an operational challenge, and currently the hotel uses the 
triple stack spaces (approx. 40 spaces) to valet park. The double stack spaces (approx. 30) are sold at 
a discounted monthly rate.   
 



Page 2 
 

This operational arrangement has come with its challenges for CCDC, and the Capitol & Front Garage 
produces the least amount of net revenue out of any garage in the ParkBOI system.  In total the garage 
accounts for only 5% of the system revenue and the revenue per space is $974 annually compared to 
the system average of $1,869.  
 
From an economic development perspective, CCDC has achieved many goals through ownership of 
the garage, most importantly of which is the development project that has become a cornerstone of 
downtown. The Grove Hotel was the city’s first luxury hotel that caters to convention travelers, and 
upscale consultants and visitors. The arena has brought thousands to downtown to see sporting and 
entertainment events. Overall, CCDC is extremely pleased with the outcome of the overall project and 
sees a great amount of success in the partnership.  
 
However, regarding the parking now is the right time to consider divesting from an underperforming but 
high-demand parking asset, the revenue from which can be used to fund other redevelopment projects 
in need of urban renewal funding.  
 
Garage Value 
In January 2018, CCDC hired a nationally recognized parking consultant and appraisal company, 
Parking Property Advisors, to determine a market value for the garage. The consultant reviewed sales 
comparisons and evaluated market considerations and concluded the market value to be $6.8 million. 
Staff recommends using $6.8 million as a minimum bid amount in the Request for Proposals. 
Consultant letter attached (attachment 4). 
 
Kimley Horn, a national parking design and engineering consulting firm, determined current 
replacement costs at $11,300,000 for a subterranean garage of a similar size and type built in 
downtown Boise, but because the garage is nearly 20 years old, depreciation must also be taken into 
account. Staff has also received an income-based appraisal for the garage for $3,850,000. Due to the 
restricted uses and operational challenges of the facility the traditional income based appraisal 
approach does not accurately represent the asset’s true value in use. 
 
Disposition Process  
This garage was built as part of a development agreement, which did not include a provision for resale 
to the original development entity unlike some other projects. As such, CCDC must follow a public 
disposition process per state statute. This disposition proposed is slightly different from other property 
disposition processes CCDC has previously undertaken because this property has already been fully 
redeveloped. Agency counsel has advised that CCDC can follow the typical processes set forth in state 
statute (such as auction Idaho Code 50-2011) or, because the property has already been developed, 
can consider an alternative competitive process. Staff recommend the alternative process. 
 
Staff recommends using a competitive Request for Proposals selection process with a pre-determined 
minimum bid value. This process should ensure that a future owner will have a positive impact on the 
garage operations both the benefit of the users, will not harm downtown Boise’s economy, and will give 
the Board authority to choose an appropriate buyer for the asset. The process will be similar to many of 
our past RFPs, but will be focused more on the impact of a sale rather than future development goals. 



Page 3 
 

A sub-committee of Board Commissioners will meet at least once to review the proposals facts and 
findings. Staff and sub-committee plan to present findings at May 14 Board meeting. 
 
Capitol & Front Garage Request for Proposal (RFP) Overview 

A. Minimum bid price: $6.8 million 
B. CCDCs Selection Criteria: 

1. How the proposed use of the Garage will impact the current users of the Garage; 
2. How the proposed use will help advance economic vitality in downtown Boise; 
3. The Proposer’s Parking Management Plan including how well the proposed use takes 

into account the parking needs of adjacent public and private development and the 
existing lease arrangements with The Grove Hotel; 

4. The Proposer’s experience with and understanding of the downtown Boise business 
community and experience working with the public and private sectors in Boise;  

5. The Proposer’s experience in operating or owning a parking structure and demonstrated 
ability to do so in a safe and secure manner;  

6. The Proposer’s willingness to purchase the Garage for an amount that exceeds the 
stated minimum purchase price.  

7. The Proposer’s ability to purchase in terms of financial capacity (with or without investors 
or lenders). Documentation of Proposer’s financial capacity and/or commitment letters 
from lenders are indications of proof of financial capability; and 

8. Proposer’s ability to close in a timely manner; 
 
TENTATIVE Disposition Timeline 

• March 12 – Board Review / Approve Process and RFP 
• March – Finalize RFP with comments from Board 
• April  – Publish RFP and notice at least twice 
• May 1 – Proposals Due 
• May 8 – Executive Committee Review 
• May 14 – Board Awards Proposal 
• 90 – 120 Day Due Diligence 
• September – Closing 

 
Restrictions of Use on the Capitol & Front Garage 

1. Subject to the terms of the Agreement Of Operation, Maintenance, and Management of the 
Block 22 Public Parking Facility 

a. A provision in this agreement requires that any sale of the Garage “include an 
appropriate covenant that will require the garage to be operated in compliance with the 
Agency’s Public Parking Management Plan.” Specifically, the overnight validation 
program and event parking provisions.  

2. Subject to the terms of the Parking Lease Agreement between CCDC and Block 22, LLC, and 
Boulevard Two Fifty Five Condominiums. 

a. Spaces made available to Hotel guests – not specified, in practice it is the 40 triple 
stack tandem spaces 

b. 21 Spaces leased to Condo Owners 



Page 4 
 

c. Storage lockers leased to Condo owners 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
There is money in the budget for legal fees associated with the disposition of Capitol & Front Garage.  
Staff intends to close on the sale not later than the end of this fiscal year. The parking net income to the 
system will be reduced by approximately $200,000 a year, about 5% of the ParkBOI system revenue.   
 
The sale of the garage as proposed would produce at least $6.8 million. CCDC intends to use the 
revenue from the sale to invest in a new parking facility in the River Myrtle District most likely in the 
south 8th Street area. 
 
A bond was originally issued to pay for the acquisition of this parking garage. This bond has been paid 
for in full and no debt service remains; however, the garage revenue is cross-collateralized as part of 
the public parking system pledged for other bond payments on other parking garages in the system. 
The bond covenants set out the requirements for disposition of any parking facility in the system. 
Because the revenue generated by this garage is not a substantial portion of the total system revenue, 
the dispensation of this garage complies with the bond covenants. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Authorize the Executive Director to finalize the Capitol & Front Garage Request for Proposals, and 
publish the RFP using the process as outlined. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Authorize the Executive Director to finalize the Capitol & Front Garage Request for Proposals, 
and publish the RFP using the process as outlined. 

 

  



Page 5 
 

Attachment 1: Garage Site 

  

Front Street 

Ca
pi

to
l B

lv
d.

 



Page 6 
 

Attachment 2: Garage Photos 

 



Page 7 
 

 

  



Page 8 
 

Attachment 3: Request for Proposals Draft 

  



 

1 
 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR 

PROPOSALS FROM INTERESTED BUYERS 
 

 

CAPITOL & FRONT PUBLIC PARKING GARAGE 

(216 UNDERGROUND PARKING SPACES) 

BOISE, IDAHO 

 

Minimum Purchase Price: $6,800,000 
 

DUE FRIDAY MAY 1st, 3:00 PM BOISE TIME 



 

2 
 

 
INVITATION 
Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC) is requesting proposals from interested Buyers 
for the purchase of its Capitol & Front Public Parking Garage, formerly known as the Boulevard 
Public Parking Garage (“Garage”).  The Garage is located on west side of Capitol Boulevard 
between Main and Front streets in Downtown Boise, below The Grove Hotel, a 17-story mixed 
use building containing 250 hotel rooms below 20 residential condominiums.  The Garage is a 
unit in the Block Twenty-Two Condominiums established in 1998.  CenturyLink Arena, an 
approximately 6,000 seat multi-use arena and home to the Idaho Steelheads hockey team, is 
another condominium unit attached to The Grove Hotel building and facing The Grove Plaza.  
The Garage along with The Grove Hotel were completed in 1994 pursuant to a Disposition and 
Development Agreement between CCDC and Block 22, LLC. Responses to this Request for 
Proposals from Interested Buyers (the “Request”) is due on the Proposal Due Date listed below.   
 
PROPOSALS DUE BY: TUESDAY MAY 1st, 3:00 pm Boise time 
 
I. ABOUT CCDC 

 
CCDC is the urban renewal agency for Boise, Idaho.  In addition to overseeing four urban 
renewal districts, CCDC also owns and operates six downtown public parking garages with two 
additional partially public garages under construction. Since 1985 CCDC has focused on 
creating a lively, pedestrian-oriented, mixed-use urban center in downtown that includes office, 
retail, restaurants, lodging, convention facilities, regional health care, and educational, cultural 
and entertainment opportunities.  
 
A seven-member Board of Commissioners governs CCDC. The Boise City Mayor appoints the 
commissioners, subject to City Council confirmation. John Brunelle is CCDC’s Executive 
Director. More information about CCDC is available at www.ccdcboise.com.  
 
II. SUMMARY AND SITE INFORMATION 

 
A. MINIMUM PURCHASE PRICE: SIX MILLION EIGHT HUNDRED THOUSAND 

Dollars ($ 6,800,000) 
B. LOCATION: 245 S. CAPITOL BOULEVARD, BOISE, ID 83702 

 
The garage is a single condominium owned by CCDC within the Block Twenty Two 
Condominiums located in the heart of Downtown Boise.  It is subterranean and is accessed by a 
single entrance ramp on the western side of Capitol Boulevard between Front and Main Streets. 
A portion of the Garage is below one quadrant of the Grove Plaza, adjacent to or in close 
proximity to various downtown amenities, including The Grove Hotel (17 stories with 250 hotel 
rooms and 20 residential condominiums), US Bank Plaza (19-story office), Wells Fargo Center 
(11 story office) and Boise Centre (which includes a recently expanded and renovated 
convention center) and the Basque Block. The Garage includes 207 spaces of which 70 are 

http://www.ccdcboise.com/


 

3 
 

triple stacked or tandem. The triple stacked spaces have historically been used as valet for The 
Grove Hotel.   
 
Address 245 S. Capitol Boulevard, Boise, ID 83702 
Ownership Capital City Development Corporation 

Legal/Tax ID Condominium Unit 4 as shown on the Condominium plat of Block Twenty 
Two Condominiums, according to the official plat thereof, filed in Book 75 of 
Plats at pages 7829 through 7841, as Instrument No. 98015003, and as 
defined and described in that condominium declaration for Block Twenty Two 
Condominiums recorded February 20, 1998, as Instrument No. 98015004, 
official records of Ada County, Idaho. 
 
RO998100500 

Zoning and 
Current Use 

C-5DDC, Parking Garage Subterranean with 207 public parking spaces 
existing.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Any sale of the Garage is subject to the terms of the Agreement Relating to the Operation, 
Maintenance, and Management of the Block 22 Public Parking Facility, executed in 1998 
(the “Parking Agreement”) and the Parking Lease Agreement between the Agency and 
Block 22, LLC, and the Boulevard Two Fifty Five Condominium Association, Inc. (the 
“Parking Lease”).  Copies of the Parking Agreement and the Parking Lease are available on 
CCDC’s website.  Hard copies are available upon request at the cost of the requesting party. 
 



 

4 
 

Restrictions of Use on the Capitol & Front Garage 
1. Subject to the terms of the Agreement Of Operation, Maintenance, and Management of 

the Block 22 Public Parking Facility 
a. A provision in this agreement requires that any sale of the Garage “include an 

appropriate covenant that will require the garage to be operated in compliance 
with the Agency’s Public Parking Management Plan.” Specifically, the overnight 
validation program and event parking provisions.  

2. Subject to the terms of the Parking Lease Agreement between CCDC and Block 22, 
LLC, and Boulevard Two Fifty Five Condominiums. 

a. Spaces made available to Hotel guests – not specified, in practice it is the 40 
triple stack tandem spaces 

b. 21 Spaces leased to Condo Owners 
c. Storage lockers leased to Condo owners 

 
 
III. PROPOSAL MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS AND PRIORITIES 
 
All proposals must include a completed Submittal Form, which is Exhibit 2 to this Request for 
Interested Buyers.  All information requested must be provided.  At the discretion of CCDC staff 
the Respondent may have up to 24 hours to provide additional information as requested by 
CCDC staff.  All requests for additional information will be made in writing by CCDC staff.   
 

1. Acknowledgement & Release  
a. REQUIREMENT: The Acknowledgement & Release is Exhibit 1 and must be 

completed and signed.  
2. Submittal Form 

a. REQUIREMENT: Submittal Form (Exhibit 2) and must be completed. 
3. Confirm Purchase Price.  The Minimum Purchase Price is $6,800,000. 

a. REQUIREMENT: Proposals must clearly state the proposed purchase price, 
which may exceed the above stated minimum price.  

b. If the minimum purchase price is not met the proposal may not be accepted.  
4. Closing Schedule 

a. REQUIREMENT: Please describe when expected purchase closing could be 
completed and the length of any proposed due diligence period.  

5. Selection Criteria: CCDC will evaluate the proposals based on the following criteria: 
a. How the proposed use of the Garage impact the current uses of the Garage; 
b. How the proposed use will help advance economic vitality in the downtown Boise 

area; 
c. The Proposer’s Parking Management Plan including how well  the proposed use 

takes into account the parking needs of adjacent public and private development 
and the existing lease arrangements with The Grove Hotel; 

d. The Proposer’s experience with and understanding of the downtown Boise 
business community and experience working with the public and private sectors 
in Boise;  

e. The Proposer’s experience in operating or owning a parking structure and 
demonstrated ability to do so in a safe and secure manner; 



 

5 
 

f. The Proposer’s willingness to purchase the Garage for an amount that exceeds 
the stated minimum purchase price.  

g. The Proposer’s ability to purchase in terms of financial capacity (with or without 
investors or lenders).Documentation of Proposer’s financial capacity and/or 
commitment letters from lenders are indications of proof of financial capability; 
and 

h. Proposer’s ability to close in a timely manner; 
 

6. Broker 
a. CCDC will not be using a broker and will not be responsible for any Brokerage 

fees incurred by any party.  
7. Buyer Information - REQUIRED 

a. Identify the primary contact person for the Buyer. 
b. Include three professional references for the Buyer.   

 
8. Discretion of CCDC. 

c. CCDC retains the discretion to consider the Proposals and select the Proposal that 
will best serve the city of Boise, as determined by CCDC. 
  

SUBMISSION DEADLINE: MAY 1st, 3:00 pm Boise time. 
All proposals must be received by the submission deadline.  Proposals must be submitted to 
CCDC on a flash drive or hard copy. Submit proposals to: 

Capital City Development Corporation 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, ID 83702 
208-384-4264 
Attention: Mary Watson 

 
IV. SELECTION PROCESS 
CCDC envisions a three-step process for selection of a developer/project team for the project 
site. 
 

1. Request for Proposals 
This Request will be noticed in the Idaho Statesman newspaper, posted on the CCDC 
website and distributed to known and interested parties. Proposals must be received by May 
1st, 3:00 pm, Boise time.   
 
Proposals will not be accepted after the Submission Deadline. 
 
2.  Evaluation and Award of Proposals 
A subcommittee of Board members will meet to review the proposals. Proposals will be 
considered by CCDC Board of Commissioners at a regularly scheduled board meeting. 
Respondents may have an opportunity to present their proposals to the CCDC Board.  
 
Step 3.  Purchase and Sale Agreement  



 

6 
 

Upon selection of a proposal by the CCDC Board, staff will negotiate a Purchase and Sale 
Agreement (PSA) with the Purchaser.   

 
V. REQUEST CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Respondents may contact the Project Manager, Laura Williams, about this Request for 
Proposals at lwilliams@ccdcboise.com. Answers to questions may be shared with all 
Respondents. 
 
VI. PUBLIC NATURE OF SUBMISSIONS 

 
This Request for Proposals is a public process therefore information and materials collected 
under the Request are public records. The information received by CCDC may be subject to 
disclosure under the Idaho Public Records Act (Idaho Code, Title 74, Chapter 1). With the 
potential exception of some credit data, it is anticipated that submissions to this RFP will contain 
little or no material that is exempt from disclosure under the Idaho Public Records Act. 
Respondents are advised to discuss questions regarding the applicability of the Public Records 
Law with their own legal counsel PRIOR TO SUBMISSION. CCDC will not provide any opinion 
or guidance on whether or not any information or materials submitted in response to this 
Request would be considered exempt from disclosure under Idaho’s Public Records Act. Any 
proprietary or otherwise sensitive information contained in or with any proposals may be subject 
to potential disclosure. 
 
Respondents, in replying to this Request agree to release and hold CCDC harmless from any 
and all liability for disclosing any material or documents included in any proposals submitted to 
CCDC. 
 
VII. CCDC DISCRETION AND AUTHORITY, DISCLAIMERS 

 
CCDC may terminate this RFP process at any time for any reason with no requirement to 
disclose its reasoning.  
 
CCDC also reserves the right to reject any proposal at any time, or to terminate any 
negotiations initiated subsequent to this RFP being issued. 
 
CCDC may change any part of this RFP process at any time for any reason. 
 
CCDC may accept such proposals as it deems to be in the public interest and furtherance of the 
purposes of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law, the River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Plan.  
CCDC may also reject any or all proposals and proceed with additional selection processes or 
none at all. The CCDC Board of Commissioners will determine the proposal most qualified to 
meet the priorities set forth in this Request from the information submitted in the responses and 
any follow up presentations.  
 

mailto:srodriguez@ccdcboise.com


 

7 
 

The issuance of this Request for Proposals and the receipt and evaluation of proposals does 
not obligate the CCDC to select a proposal and/or enter into any agreement. A proposal 
submitted in response to this RFP does not constitute business terms under any eventual 
agreement. CCDC will not pay any costs incurred in responding to this RFP.  
 
VIII. EXHIBITS 

1. Acknowledgment & Release (Required) 
2. Submittal Form (Required) 
3. Site Maps 
4. Condominium Declarations 
5. Existing Leases/ Agreements known to CCDC 
6. Contact information for Block Twenty-Two Condominiums 



 

8 
 

Exhibit 1 

Acknowledgment & Release 
 
The undersigned (“Respondent”), on behalf of Respondent and all participants and parties 
included or subsequently added in/to Respondent’s development team, has read this 
Acknowledgment and Release and fully accepts the Capital City Development Corporation’s 
(“CCDC”) discretion and non-liability as stipulated herein, expressly for, but not limited to, 
CCDC’s decision to proceed with a selection process by issuing the Request for Proposals from 
Interested Buyers for the sale of the Capitol & Front Public Parking Garage (the “Request”). 
Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed in the Request. 
 
Respondent accepts and agrees to the terms and conditions as described or as may be 
modified as well as the following: 
 

1. CCDC reserves the right in its sole discretion and judgment, for whatever reasons it 
deems appropriate and at any time: 
a. To suspend or modify any part of the selection process or terminate the Request at 

any time for any reason with no financial or other obligation to Respondent.    
b. Obtain further information from any person, entity, or group, including, but not 

limited to, any person, entity, or group responding to the Request and to 
ascertain the depth of Respondent’s capability and desire to purchase the Capitol 
& Front Public Parking Garage; 

c. Waive any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or content with respect to 
its Request and any proposal by any respondent; 

d. Accept or reject any proposal or part thereof received in response to the Request, 
including any statement submitted by the undersigned, or select any one proposal 
over another; 

e. Accept or reject all or any part of any materials, plans, proposals or statements 
included in a proposal, including, but not limited to, the nature and type of proposal. 

 
2. CCDC is governed by Idaho Code as provided by Title 50, Chapter 20, and Title 50, 

Chapter 29 and other state and federal regulations that may apply, and Respondent 
acknowledges that the Request selection process and any assistance in the sale of 
the Capitol & Front Public Parking Garage from CCDC must conform to all applicable 
laws, rules and regulations. 

 
3. CCDC may, in its discretion, conduct public hearings during the Request selection 

process that would require disclosure of the Respondent’s proposal and related details 
to the public and the media. 
 

4. CCDC may accept or reject any proposal or statement and/or information received in 
response to the Request, including any proposal, statement, or information submitted 
by the undersigned, or select one developer over another. 
 



 

9 
 

5. Respondent understands that by responding to the Request, its proposal may be subject 
to review and comment by CCDC staff and consultants.   
 

6. Respondent agrees to waive any formalities or defects as to form, procedure, or 
content with respect to the Request and any responses by any respondent thereto. 
 

7. Respondent consents to the acquisition of information by CCDC in conjunction with this 
Request, and waives all claims, and releases CCDC from any liability in the acquisition 
of this information and use of this information. 
 

8. Respondent agrees that CCDC staff, officers or commissioners shall have no liability 
whatsoever of any kind or character, directly or indirectly, by reason of all or any 
decisions made at the discretion of CCDC with respect to the Request. 
 

9. Non-Liability of CCDC.  Respondent agrees that CCDC shall not have any liability 
whatsoever of any kind or character, directly or indirectly, by reason of all or any 
decision made at the discretion of CCDC as identified above.  Respondent hereby 
waives any claims against CCDC arising out of the selection of the Respondent to 
purchase the Capitol & Front Public Parking Garage or decision to not select any 
Respondent and to terminate this RFP process. 

 
10. Respondent, including all of its team members, have carefully and thoroughly reviewed 

the Request and have found the Request and all attachments thereto to be complete 
and free from ambiguities and sufficient for their intended purpose. 
 

11. Respondent participates in the Request process at its own risk. 
   

 

      
 By:____________________________________ 

      
 Its:____________________________________ 

      
 Date:_____________________________________ 

 

 

 



 

10 
 

Exhibit 2 

Submittal Form 
Date: _______________ 
 

1. Buyer Information:  
Buyer Name:_____________________________ 
Buyer Address:  

Street:_____________________________ 
 City, State: :_____________________________  Zip Code: __________ 
Buyer Phone Number : _________________________ 
Alternative Phone: _____________________________ 
Buyer Email: _____________________ 
 

2. General information (Responses to be provided on a separate sheet not to exceed ten 
(10) pages). Please provide a response to each of the Selection Criteria Questions.  
 

a. How will your proposal for Garage use impact the current users of the Garage? 
 

b. How will your proposal for Garage use help advance economic vitality in 
downtown Boise? 

 
c. Submit a proposed Parking Management Plan including how the proposal will 

take into account the parking needs of adjacent public and private development 
and the existing lease arrangements with The Grove Hotel. 
 

d. Describe your experience with and understanding of the downtown Boise 
business community and experience working with the public and private sectors 
in Boise.  

 
e. Describe your experience in operating or owning a parking structure and 

demonstrated ability to do so in a safe and secure manner. 
 

f. Describe your ability to purchase in terms of financial capacity (with or without 
investors or lenders). Including documentation of Proposer’s financial capacity 
and/or commitment letters from lenders are indications of proof of financial 
capability. 

 
g. When would you be willing and able to close on the Garage sale? 

 

 
 
 



 

11 
 

3. Proposed Financial Terms: 
 
Purchase Price : _________________________________________(words) 
       _________________________________________(numbers) 
  
Initial Deposit Money (to be deposited within 5 business days of CCDCs 
acceptance and will go towards purchase price):  
_________________________________________(words) 
_________________________________________(numbers) 
 
Describe Buyers financial capacity and ability to finance with investors and/or 
lenders: 

 
 

4. Other Terms: 
a. Earliest proposed closing date: _______________________ 

 
b. If earliest proposed closing date is not prior to September 30, 2018, provide an 

explanation as to why closing could not occur prior to September 30, 2018. 
 
Requested Title Company and Officer: ________________________ 
 
Signature Block: 
____________________________ 
By: ________________________ 
Its: _________________________ 



Page 9 
 

Attachment 4: Parking Property Advisors Consultant Letter 

 



February 17, 2018 

Capital City Development Corporation (“CCDC”) 
John Brunelle, Executive Director 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, ID 83702 

SUBJECT: Capitol & Front Garage 
245 S Capitol Boulevard 
Boise, Ada County, Idaho 83702 

Dear Mr. Brunelle: 

Parking Property Advisors (“PPA”)/Anglyn Property Advisors (“APA”) has appraised and consulted on 
parking garages nationwide for 11 years. CCDC obtained my services to assess the market value of 
the Capitol & Front Garage in downtown Boise.  

The purpose of this consulting letter is to address three issues: 

1. Use or Investment Value.
2. Cost Considerations.
3. Market Premium Considerations.

A significant issue that CCDC should study is the “Use” or “Investment” value a developer or a specific 
user or users would have to consider for any nearby development that would provide parking spaces in 
the vicinity of this particular property. Stated differently, this particular parking structure appears to 
currently strategically provide parking for both the Grove Hotel and the 255 Boulevard Condominiums. 
In the event the garage were sold to a third party user that party may eventually elect to not provide a 
reasonable parking arrangement for these users. In turn, the Grove Hotel and the 255 Boulevard 
Condominium occupants may be compromised to find near or proximate parking. Due to the current 
agreement/lease, this situation may not arise for some time. However, certain users often want full 
control of the parking facilities they use.  

PPA is aware of two such garages that transacted to adjacent users in 2017. These two garages sold for a 
significant premium to historic prices in their respective markets to adjacent users. These sales are 
depicted as follows: 

Parking Property Advisors, LLC 

4915 Rattlesnake Hammock Rd., Suite 107 
Naples, FL 34113 

C 770 289 4500 

Ted Anglyn 
President 
tanglyn@parkingproperty.net 



 
 
The first garage is located in New Orleans and was purchased by the adjacent office owner for a 
premium. The second garage is located in Savannah, Georgia and was purchased by an adjacent hotel 
owner for a significant premium with plans to add additional parking to this structure. 
 
Second Issue – Cost Considerations 
 
A significant issue with the subject property is that this garage represents a subterranean garage in a 
prime CBD location. Typical cost manuals available to most appraisers, (e.g. Marshall & Swift), are hard 
to compare to a subterranean garage.  
 
PPA has been provided a February 2, 2018 Opinion of Probable Cost – One Level Subterranean Garage 
report prepared by Kimley-Horn. Kimley-Horn is a respected National parking garage consulting firm. 
Reviewing the costs to complete provides an alternative cost type analysis to provide a replacement 
type property. The replacement type cost analysis is of a hypothetical 207 space garage without design 
issues associated with tandem and other design/layout issues confronted by this garage. This type 
analysis does provide a cost estimate for what someone in a densely developed location would have to 
consider in the event a nearby, proximate surface lot were not available as an alternative type parking 
facility. Following is the replacement cost analysis summary provided by Kimley-Horn, modified to 
reflect depreciation on an age-life method for this 20 year old garage. NOTE: the typical useful life for 
these type garages is commonly referenced as 50 years.   The specific details are attached to this 
consulting letter. 
 

Subject Comparable 1 Comparable 2

Property Name Capitol & Front EZ Park Manger Garage

Address 245 S Capitol Blvd 300 Caroldelet St. 115 E Congress St

City Boise New Orleans Savannah

County/Parish Ada Orleans Chatham

State Idaho Louisiana Georgia

Sale Date 6/26/2017 5/1/2017

Effective Sale Price $27,551,000 $20,100,000

Number of Spaces 207 529 399

Year Built 1998 2006 1974

Year Renovated

Price per Space $52,081 $50,376

ADDITIONAL SALES COMPARISON DISCUSSION



  
NOTE: due to the subterranean nature of the property, no specific site value was assigned; however, applying the 

same reported $60 psf unitary value applied in 2015 when used to purchase encroachments, easements and air rights 

for the Grove Plaza and Boise Centre development would provide an imputed site value for the garage. The specific 

allocation would have to be on a prorate share of the garage area to the total.  

 

Market Considerations 

 
Parking assets in the Boise (and Idaho) market represent desirable investments. Three properties that 
have transacted in the past 15 months from the Idaho Department of Lands reflect substantial 
premiums to their respective appraised market value. These three properties with the corresponding 
appraised values are summarized as follows: 
 

 
 
While the subject (improved with structures above) does not have the same alternative highest and best 
use, likely a premium would be reflected in an auction type environment based on the previous three 
comparable transactions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Concept Level Opinion of Probable Project Cost 

Cost Cost PSF Cost/Space

Construction Cost $9,064,000 $111.90 $43,787

Owner Soft Cost 25% $2,266,000 $10,947

Total Project Cost $11,330,000 $54,734

Estimated Age 20

Estimated Useful Life 50

Percent Depreciated 40% $4,532,000

Depreciated Cost New $6,798,000

Contributory Value of Stie 0

Indicated Hypothetical Depreciated Cost $6,798,000

Subject Comparable 1 Comparable 2 Comparable 3

Property Name Capitol & Front  Multiple Lincoln Road Lot

Address 245 S Capitol Blvd Multiple 816 - 826 Bannock St 961 E. Lincon Rd

Property Type Three Surface Lots Comm./20 spaces Parking w/excess land

City Boise Boise Boise Idaho Falls

County Ada Ada Ada Bonneville

State Idaho Idaho Idaho Idaho

Sale Date 12/6/2017 12/1/2016 12/1/2016

Number of Spaces 207 58 20  

Effective Sale Price $1,637,700 $6,575,000 $330,000

Appraised Value $3,850,000 $920,000 $4,545,000 $220,000

Sale Price/Appraised Value 78% 45% 50%



 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
In the event that the CCDC desires to dispose of the Capitol & Front Garage, PPA recommends a “Use” 
price strategy in addition to a pure income in place type analysis. This type analysis would consider the 
alternative costs to replace the garage with a facility with overall similar utility. Two other items to 
consider: 
 

1. The CCDC has raised parking rates significantly in the past few years. Purchasing this property 
may insulate a user or users from further parking rate increases. 

2. Parking demand downtown continues to be significant with most public garages experiencing 
long waiting lists.  

3. In the event this garage were to sell to a private user, property taxes going forward would need 
to be considered.  

 

For marketing, the CCDC may consider a possible auction type format or as an alternative marketing 

strategy for this asset, the CCDC may benefit from engaging a national parking broker operation.  

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Ted Anglyn 

 
Ted Anglyn, CRE, MAI, CCIM 
Parking Property Advisors 
tanglyn@parkingproperty.net 
770.289.4500 

mailto:tanglyn@parkingproperty.net


Page 1 
 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution No. 1536 Approval of the Termination of the Purchase and 
Sale Agreement for the Fowler Apartment Building –Unit 1 Parking Unit, 
commonly referred to as the 5th and Broad Garage.  
 

Date: 
 
3/12/2018 

Staff Contact: 
Shellan Rodriguez 

Attachments: 
1- Resolution No. 1536 
2- Termination of Purchase and Sale Agreement 
3- 2/8/2018 Local Construct’s Request for Termination  

  
Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1536 approving and authorizing the execution of the Termination of 
Purchase and Sale Agreement for Unit 1 Parking Unit of The Fowler Apartment Building.    
 

Background: 

Project Summary: 

The Fowler Apartment Building is a 159-unit mixed use market rate apartment project located in 
the LIV District within the River Myrtle Old Boise URD.  The project is nearly complete and 
includes studio, one and two-bedroom apartments as well as a restaurant, The Wylder, and a 
coffee shop, Form & Function. When the building is fully leased it will bring approximately 200 
residents to Downtown’s LIV District. The building includes 2 ½ floors of garage parking totaling 
approximately 185 spaces and 5 floors of apartment above.   

Local Construct, the developer, approached CCDC in 2014 to determine whether financial 
assistance was available to make the project feasible and to invest in the LIV district, and to 
provide much desired downtown urban housing. A timeline of events is outlined below.  

August 2014 - Local Construct approached CCDC and introduced the apartment project 
in hopes of working with CCDC.   

February – July 2015 - CCDC Board of Commissioners designated the project as a Type 
3 Special Assistance Participation Project and approved the Agreement which included 
reimbursement of public improvements and the purchase of approximately 89 spaces of 
parking to be used for the public. The approval was based, in part, on the analysis a 
third-party consultant which determined the proposed public investment was reasonable 
given the financial feasibility of the apartment project  



Page 2 
 

Late 2017:  Developer and CCDC work thru punch list and Temporary C of O for the 
CCDC portion of the garage received.  

February 8, 2018: CCDC Received Termination Request Letter, attached hereto, 
requesting the Agency’s consideration of terminating the PSA for the following reasons: 

• The mixed use urban residential project was the first of its kind and was not 
economically viable without the partnership commitment back in 2015.  

• Current economic landscape is more viable 
• Strong preleasing demand for apartments 
• Termination will better ensure project success 

March 2018- Termination Agreement as attached and with the following terms: 

• Both parties agree to terminate the PSA with no exchange of funds 
• Both parties have spent time and money and in good faith. 
• CCDC will obtain ownership all parking gates, ticketing equipment and parking 

signage at no cost. 

Fiscal Notes: 

The total development costs approximately $27,000,000 and will generate approximately 
$2,800,000 for the RMOB URD through the life of the District.  

$551,000 remains in the FY 2018 budget to be reimbursed for streetscapes and utility 
improvements within the public right of way.  Currently, CCDC is reviewing those costs and 
expects to fully reimburse in the coming weeks. 

The Agency committed approximately $2.6 million for the purchase of the garage that will no 
longer be needed. The tax-exempt bond has been funded and the funds may be available for 
another tax exempt eligible public project.   

Considerable staff time has been spent on this project as well as other costs that are difficult to 
quantify.  

To date CCDC has spent approximately $111,500 on costs directly associated with the garage: 

 

As part of the agreement CCDC will obtain the parking gate arms, ticket equipment and 
signage, which is valued at over $110,000, and some of which can be used in other garages.   

1) Kimley Horn & Associates 2,948$         
2) Elam & Burke 25,629$       
3) SB FRIEDMAN 14,500$       
4) Kittleson 3,765$         
5) Bond Fee and Interest (Carrying Costs June-now) 64,679$       
6) TOTAL 111,521$    



Page 3 
 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approval of the Termination of the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the Fowler Apartment 
Building –Unit 1 Parking Unit, commonly referred to as the 5th and Broad Garage.  

Suggested Motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1536 approving and authorizing the execution of the 
Termination of Purchase and Sale Agreement for Unit 1 Parking Unit of The Fowler Apartment 
Building.    
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1536 Page 1  

RESOLUTION NO.  1536 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING THE TERMINATION OF PURCHASE AND SALE 
AGREEMENT FOR THE FOWLER APARTMENT BUILDING UNIT 
1 PARKING UNIT, BETWEEN AGENCY AND THE ROOST 
PROJECT, LLC.; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
TO EXECUTE THE TERMINATION AGREEMENT AND ANY 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS OR AGREEMENTS, SUBJECT TO 
CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL 
CORRECTIONS TO THE TERMINATION AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning 
urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Boise, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly published, conducted a 
public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street Plan”), 
and following said public hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on December 6, 
1994, approving the River Street Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project 
(annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor Parcels) and Renamed 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); and, 

 
WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6362 on 

November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making certain findings; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 1396 passed on August 10, 2015, the Agency Board 
authorized the Executive Director to enter into a Type 3 Participation Agreement with The Roost 
Project, LLC.; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Type 3 Participation Agreement included as its Exhibit E a Purchase 
and Sale Agreement which was thereafter negotiated between Agency and The Roost Project, 
LLC., and effective dated December 21, 2015; and, 

 
WHEREAS, at the time of the Effective Date of the Purchase and Sale Agreement, both 

The Roost Project, LLC., and Agency in good faith entered into the agreement with the intent 
that Agency would purchase from The Roost Project, LLC., one (1) condominium unit, identified 
as the “Unit 1 Parking Unit,” to be owned and operated by Agency as a public parking garage in 
order to incentivize the project; and, 



RESOLUTION NO. 1536 Page 2  

 
WHEREAS, the Agency and The Roost Project, LLC., desire to execute the Termination 

of Purchase and Sale Agreement, attached hereto as EXHIBIT A, due to market conditions 
changing such that the Agency’s purchase is no longer needed to incentivize the project; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to approve 
the Termination of Purchase and Sale Agreement and to authorize the Executive Director to 
execute same. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Termination of Purchase and Sale Agreement, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as EXHIBIT A and incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby is 
approved. 
 
 Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to execute 
the Termination of Purchase and Sale Agreement, and to execute all necessary documents 
required to implement the actions contemplated by said agreement, subject to representations 
by the Agency staff and the Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to such actions 
have been met; and further, any necessary technical changes to the Termination Agreement or 
other documents are acceptable, upon advice from the Agency’s legal counsel that said 
changes are consistent with the provisions of the Termination Agreement and the comments 
and discussions received at the March 12, 2018, Agency Board meeting. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on March 12, 2018.  
Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the 
Board of Commissioners on March 12, 2018.   
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY   
 
 
      BY:         
             Dana Zuckerman, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:        
       David H. Bieter, Secretary 
 



 

LocalConstruct, Inc. | 3112 Los Feliz Blvd. | Los Angeles, CA | 90039 
phone: 310.997.2373 | fax: 310.295.1945 

February 8, 2018 
 
Casey Lynch 
CEO 
LocalConstruct, Inc.  
3112 Los Feliz Blvd 
Los Angeles, CA 90039 
 
John Brunelle and Shellan Rodriguez 
Capital City Development Corp 
121 N 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, ID  83702 

RE: Request to Terminate Fowler Parking Purchase and Sale Agreement 

Dear John and Shellan: 

On behalf of The Roost Project, LLC, LocalConstruct, its Manager, requests that CCDC consider the 
termination of the Purchase and Sale Agreement for The Fowler Apartment Building – Unit 1 Parking 
Unit dated December 21, 2018. CCDC, the City and LocalConstruct shared a vision to bring pioneering 
new housing options to Boise’s Central Addition at time when downtown lacked a precedent for rental 
apartment construction. In 2015, each party allocated financial resources and good faith to execute a 
public-private partnership that spurred the groundbreaking of The Fowler. At the time, this project 
would not have been economically viable without CCDC’s partnership.  

In late 2017, The Wylder and Form & Function successfully opened their doors to the public and have 
received an enthusiastic welcome from the neighborhood. On March 1, 2018, the building’s 159 
apartments will be ready for occupancy. Over three years after signing the agreement, today’s 
economic landscape is more favorable. Our preleasing activity to date reflects a strong demand for the 
type of urban housing that we all hoped would help activate downtown.  Concurrently, parking in 
downtown has also become supply constrained, reflecting increased parking rates.  

Our request to terminate the PSA and retain the parking garage hinges on the existing parking shortage 
downtown. The Fowler Apartments are slated to retain 97 parking spaces for 159 units. With a lack of 
alternative parking options for our residents, we fear a parking shortage may inhibit our ability to 
successfully lease apartments. Retaining CCDC’s 87 parking spaces will provide great relief to our 
parking constraints.  



 

LocalConstruct, Inc. | 3112 Los Feliz Blvd. | Los Angeles, CA | 90039 
phone: 310.997.2373 | fax: 310.295.1945 

We believe that the termination of the agreement will facilitate the best outcome for all parties. At a 
time when the market did not support the construction of housing and retail in Boise’s Central 
Addition, CCDC’s willingness to engage in a public private partnership gave life to a great project. 
CCDC’s willingness to terminate the sale of the parking garage will ensure that everyone’s goals are 
met —a new mixed-use housing development which will activate the downtown core and spur further 
development in downtown Boise.  

We greatly appreciate your consideration and look forward to your feedback.  

Sincerely, 

 
 
Casey Lynch 

 
 

 



Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution #1532 Central District CMGC Contract Amendment, GMP #2 

Date: 
March 12, 2018 
 

Staff Contact: 
Doug Woodruff and  
Mary Watson 
 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution #1532 which includes 2nd Amendment to 

CM/GC Contract with Guho Corp. 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1532 authorizing the amendment of the Central District CMGC contract.  
 

 
Background: 
 
On February 12, 2018 the Agency Board approved Amendment No. 1 to the Central District 
Improvements Construction Manager / General Contractor (CM/GC) contract with Guho Corp. to 
make improvements to 8th Street.   Construction of the 8th Street improvements began on 
February 26, 2018.  Construction progress is meeting the schedule and GMP#1 budget.   
 
This Amendment No. 2 to the CMGC contract sets a second Guaranteed Maximum Price 
(GMP #2) and authorizes Guho Corp. to proceed with construction of Freak Alley and 
Union Alley public improvements and procurement of long lead items—trash receptacles 
and flower planters for all construction areas.   

 
Later this spring, likely at the May Board meeting, CCDC and Guho Corp. will need to execute 
additional amendments to the contract to authorize construction of Capitol Boulevard 
streetscape and protected bike lane improvements, as well as a collection of miscellaneous, 
district-wide streetscape repairs, thereby finalizing all project components. 
 
The CM/GC construction delivery method contemplates that the construction agreement must 
be amended from time to time as the construction project moves forward so that the parties can 
best address construction complexities and pertinent financial details – such as procurement of 
long lead-time materials and the award of subcontracts.  Here, the CM/GC contract with Guho 
Corp. allows us to amend the contract by setting a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) to 
proceed with those portions of the project which have been approved and bid.   
 
Guho Corp. has competitively bid the various subcontractor packages included in this 
Amendment No. 2 and is required by state law to award the contracts to the lowest responsive 
bidders.  Representatives from CCDC have been present for bid openings.  Upon approval of 
Resolution #1532, Guho will begin awarding subcontracts and mobilizing for construction of the 
Freak Alley and Union Alley improvements. 
  



Page 2 
 

Fiscal Notes: 
 
Amendment No. 2 to the CM/GC contract with Guho Corp. approves the guaranteed maximum 
price amount of $569,033 for construction services to complete Freak Alley and Union Alley 
public improvements and procure long lead items—trash receptacles and flower planters.   
 
This Amendment does not include costs for construction of improvements on 8th Street, planned 
streetscape improvements on Capitol Boulevard, nor miscellaneous repairs throughout the 
district.  CCDC and Guho Corp. anticipate an additional third Amendment in the coming months 
to approve construction costs for the remaining phases of the Central District Public 
Improvements Project.  
 

Guho Corp. Contract Summary  

 Estimate Approved 

Pre-construction Services  $ 80,060 

Amendment GMP No. 1 – 8th Street & long lead-time items  $ 762,238 

TODAY:  Amendment GMP No. 2 – Freak & Union Alleys  $ 569,033* 

Amendment GMP No. 3 – Capitol Blvd, Misc. Repairs $ 1,060,000  

Estimated Subtotal:  $ 1,060,000  

Amended Contract Amount:  $ 1,323,258 

   

Estimated Final Contract Amount: $ 2,471,685  

* Approved upon today’s adoption of Resolution #1532, this agenda bill’s recommendation. 

 
The Estimated Final Contract Amount is within the approved FY2018 agency budget.   
 
In order to address any unforeseen circumstances that can arise during construction, Resolution 
#1532 authorizes the Executive Director to amend the GMP amount up to 5%, if determined 
necessary in his best judgment. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends the Board find it in the best interest of CCDC and the public to adopt 
Resolution #1532 approving Amendment No. 2 to the CM/GC contract with Guho Corp. for 
GMP #2 Freak Alley and Union Alley public improvements. 
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution #1532 authorizing the amendment of the Central District CMGC 
Agreement with Guho Corporation.  
 

 



RESOLUTION No. 1532:  Amendment 2 to the Central District CM/GC Contract  Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1532 
 
 
BY  THE  BOARD  OF  COMMISSIONERS  OF  THE  URBAN  RENEWAL  AGENCY  OF 
BOISE CITY, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, APPROVING AMENDMENT 
NO. 2 TO THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER / GENERAL CONTRACTOR 
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND GUHO CORP. 
TO INCREASE THE GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE (GMP) FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE CENTRAL DISTRICT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE 
AMENDMENT NO. 2; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

THIS RESOLUTION, is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively the "Act"), a duly created and functioning urban 
renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the "Agency." 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly 

published, conducted a public hearing on the 1987 Amended and Restated Urban Renewal 
Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Boise 
Central District Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City adopted its 
Ordinance No. 5026 on August 19, 1987, approving the Boise Central District Urban Renewal 
Plan and making certain findings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 1994 

Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “1994 Amended Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public 
hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5597 on December 6, 1994, approving the 1994 
Amended Urban Renewal Plan and making certain findings; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 2007 

Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Central District Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City 
adopted its Ordinance No. 6576 on June 26, 2007, effective upon publication on July 23, 2007, 
approving the Central District Plan; and, 

 
WHEREAS, upon approval of Resolution No. 1510 by its Board of Commissioners on 

October 9, 2017, the Agency entered into a Construction Manager / General Contractor 
(CM/GC) construction agreement with Guho Corp, for the Central District Public Improvements 
Project (“Project”) using the CM/GC construction delivery method; and   

 
WHEREAS, the CM/GC construction delivery method contemplates that the construction 

agreement must be amended from time to time as the construction project moves forward so 
that the parties to the agreement can best address construction complexities and pertinent 
financial details, including procurement of materials and buy-out of subcontracts; and  

 



RESOLUTION No. 1532:  Amendment 2 to the Central District CM/GC Contract  Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2018, the Agency Board of Commissioners adopted 
Resolution No. 1526 approving and authorizing the Executive Director to execute “Amendment 
No. 1 to Standard Agreement and General Conditions Between Owner and Construction 
Manager” with Guho Corp. in order to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the 
initial phase of construction services, including early procurement of long lead-time materials for 
the Project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency and Guho Corp. desire to amend the CM/GC construction 

agreement at this time with the execution of “Amendment No. 2 to Standard Agreement and 
General Conditions Between Owner and Construction Manager,” attached as Exhibit A, in order 
to increase the GMP by FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY-NINE THOUSAND THIRTY-THREE 
DOLLARS ($569,033.00) in order to include the costs associated with construction for Freak 
and Union Block Alleys, as well as long lead procurement of site furnishings; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it to be in the best public interest to 
approve the Amendment and to authorize the Executive Director to execute same. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
Section 2:  That Amendment No. 2 to the Construction Manager / General Contractor 

construction agreement between the Agency and Guho Corp., attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by reference, is approved as to both form and content. 

 
Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to execute 

Amendment No. 2 to the Construction Manager / General Contractor construction agreement 
with Guho Corp., which will increase the Guaranteed Maximum Price of the Project to ONE 
MILLION THREE HUNDRED TWENTY-THREE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FIFTY-EIGHT 
DOLLARS ($1,323,258.00), plus allowing up to 5% of this amount to address unforeseen 
circumstances if determined necessary in his best judgment. 

 
Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval. 
 
PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on March 12, 2018.  

Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the 
Board of Commissioners on March 12, 2018. 
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 
By:         

ATTEST:           Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
 
 
By:        
      David H. Bieter, Secretary 



CM/GC – CENTRAL DISTRICT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PAGE 1 
AMENDMENT NO. 2 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE 
STANDARD AGREEMENT AND GENERAL CONDITIONS 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 

(WHERE THE CM IS AT-RISK) 
 
 
 
DATED MARCH 12, 2018 
 
Pursuant to Section 3.4 of the Agreement dated November 21, 2017, between the Owner, 
Capital City Development Corporation, and the Construction Manager, Guho Corp., for the 
Central District Public Improvements Project located in downtown Boise, the Owner and the 
Contractor desire now to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price (the “GMP”) for the Work.  The 
Owner and the Contractor hereby agree as follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE 1 GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 
 
The Contractor’s GMP for the Work, including the Cost of the Work as defined in Article 8 and 
the Contractor’s Fee as set forth in Section 7.3, is ($ 1,323,258). 
 
The GMP is for the performance of the Work in accordance with the exhibits listed below, which 
are a part of this Agreement. 
 
 EXHIBIT A:  Contract GMP Summary (2 pages) 
 EXHIBIT B: Schedule of Values (1 pages) 
 EXHIBIT C: Cost Estimate Detail (3 pages) 
 EXHIBIT D: Allowances (1 page) 
 EXHIBIT E:  General Conditions (1 page) 
 EXHIBIT F:  Purchase Orders (1 page) 
 EXHIBIT G:  Subcontract (1 page) 
 EXHIBIT H:  Self Perform Work (1 page) 
 EXHIBIT I:  Assumptions and Clarification (2 pages) 
 EXHIBIT J: Schedule (1 pages) 
 EXHIBIT K: Plans (12 pages) 
  
  

ARTICLE 2 DATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
 
The Date of Substantial Completion of the Work is June 15, 2018  
 
 

ARTICLE 3 DATE OF FINAL COMPLETION 
 
The Date of Final Completion of the Work is Twenty-One (21) Days after the Date of Substantial 
Completion, subject to adjustments as provided for in the Contract Documents. 
 
 

[ End of Amendment No. 2  |  Signatures appear on the following page. ] 
  

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



CM/GC – CENTRAL DISTRICT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PAGE 2 
AMENDMENT NO. 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Construction Manager have executed this 
Agreement with an effective date as first written above. 
 
 
OWNER: Capital City Development Corporation 
 
 
By:         
      John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
        
Mary Watson, General Counsel | Contracts Manager 
 
 
 
 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER:  Guho Corp. 
 
 
By:         
      Anthony Guho, Vice-President 
 
Attest: 
 
 
        
 
 
 

Budget Info / For Office Use 
Fund/District 301 
Account 6250 
Activity Code 18008 
PO #  
Contract Term September 30, 2018 

 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE #1 GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE #2 Total GMP 1 + 2

Approved February 12, 2018

Job Cost Phase Description GMP 1  Area Total GMP 1 Total GMP 2  Area Total GMP 1 Total CONTRACT TOTAL  Area Total CONTRACT TOTAL

1

1 8th Street Streetscapes

Jan-19 TESTING AND INSPECTIONS 12,000 12,000

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 10,719 10,719

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 54,444 54,444

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 317 317

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 27,600 27,600

01-5529 STAGING AREAS 20,900 20,900

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 3,120 3,120

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 1,200 1,200

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 1,000 1,000

02-4113 DEMO / SALVAGE 29,328 1,623 30,951

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 12,189 23,853 36,042

26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR 60,724 60,724

26-0100 ELECTRICAL SERVICES 33,600 33,600

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 33,547 33,547

31-1313 TREE REMOVAL 2,160 2,160

31-2000 EXCAVATION 8,992 8,992

32-1100 BASE COURSE 2,824 1,571 4,395

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 32,373 4,446 36,819

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 53,759 6,113 59,872

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 8,001 8,001

32-1726 PED RAMPS 15,407 15,407

32-3913 BOLLARDS 8,145 8,145

32-8000 IRRIGATION 45,380 45,380

32-9100 LANDSCAPING 5,060 5,060

32-9443 TREE GRATES/FRAMES 56,964 56,964

34-4000 SIGNAGE 2,000 2,000

Flower Pots 0

541,753$              37,606$                579,359$              

40,631$                2,820$                   43,452$                

27,088$                1,880$                   28,968$                

7,612$                   402$                      -$                      

617,084$          42,709$            651,779$          

2 Freak / Union Alleys

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 5,024 5,024

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 18,688 18,688

01-3223 SURVEY 2,500 2,500

01-4123 PERMITS 6,750 6,750

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE 10,000 10,000

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 181 181

01-5510 PARKING FEES 7,500 7,500

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 20,664 20,664

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 780 780

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 1,200 1,200

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 1,000 1,000

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 25,739 25,739

03-8100 SAW CUTTING 1,050 1,050

26-0010 ELECTRICAL COLUMNS AND BASES 23,699 23,699

26-0100 ELECTRICAL 24,336 24,336

26-5613 LIGHT FIXTURE PACKAGE 43,009 43,009

32-1100 BASE COURSE 24,916 24,916

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 2,000 2,000

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 68,484 68,484

32-1413 CONCRETE UNIT PAVERS 34,000 34,000

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 9,034 9,034

32-3913 BOLLARDS 36,552 36,552

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE 22,536 22,536

33-8126 COMMUNICATION VAULTS 6,160 6,160

VAULT ALLOWANCE 15,000 15,000

ART ALLOWANCE STAINLESS STEEL 10,000 10,000

Total Cost 420,802$              420,802$              

CM/GC Fee 31,560$                31,560$                

10% Contingency 42,080$                42,080$                

Bond 4,697$                   4,697$                   

2 Freak / Union Alleys Total 499,140$          499,140$          

3 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 0

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 0

01-4123 PERMITS 0

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE 0

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 0

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 0

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 0

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 0

Anthony
Text Box
CONTRACT GMP SUMMARY

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT A

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 0

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 0

03-8100 CONCRETE SAW CUTTING 0

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 1,526 6,680 8,206

26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR 0

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 18,870 18,870

31-1313 TREE REMOVAL 0

32-1100 BASE COURSE 0

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 0

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 0

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 0

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 0

32-1726 PED RAMPS 0

32-9100 LANDSCAPING 0

32-9443 TREE GRATES/FRAMES 31,701 31,701

32-9446 TREE GRIDS (SILVA CELL) 0

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE 0

33-5000 FIBER CONDUITS 0

Total Cost 52,097$                6,680$                   58,777$                

CM/GC Fee 3,907$                   501$                      4,408$                   

Contingency -$                      -$                      -$                      

Bond 699$                      68$                        768$                      

3 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes 56,704$          7,249$            63,953$          

4 Repair Work

01-4123 PERMITS 0

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 0

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 0

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 0

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 0

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 0

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 0

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 7,462 18,370 25,832

0

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 0

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 0

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 0

32-1613 CURB & GUTTER 0

32-1726 PED RAMPS 0

32-3913 BOLLARDS 0

32-9443 TREE GRATES/FRAMES 73,803 73,803

Total Cost 81,265$                18,370$                99,635$                

CM/GC Fee 6,095$                   1,378$                   7,473$                   

10% Contingency -$                      -$                      -$                      

Bond 1,091$                   188$                      1,279$                   

4 Repair Work Total 88,451$          19,935$          108,386$        

GMP 1 TOTAL 762,238$        GMP 2 TOTAL 569,033$        GMP 1+2 TOTAL 1,323,258$     

Anthony
Text Box
CONTRACT GMP SUMMARY

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT A

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Job Cost Phase Description Total Amount Area Total GMP 1 Total

2

1 8th Street Streetscapes

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 1,623

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 23,853

32-1100 BASE COURSE 1,571

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 4,446

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 6,113

Total Cost 37,606$                

CM/GC Fee 2,820$                  

5% Contingency 1,880$                  

Bond 402$                     

1 8th Street Streetscapes Total 42,709$                   

2 Freak / Union Alleys

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 5,024

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION 18,688

01-3223 SURVEY 2,500

01-4123 PERMITS 6,750

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE 10,000

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES 181

01-5510 PARKING FEES 7,500

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL 20,664

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES 780

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP) 1,200

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL 1,000

02-4113 DEMO-SITE 25,739

03-8100 SAW CUTTING 1,050

26-0010 ELECTRICAL COLUMNS AND BASES 23,699

26-0100 ELECTRICAL 24,336

26-5613 LIGHT FIXTURE PACKAGE 43,009

32-1100 BASE COURSE 24,916

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING 2,000

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING 68,484

32-1413 CONCRETE UNIT PAVERS 34,000

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS 9,034

32-3913 BOLLARDS 36,552

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE 22,536

33-8126 COMMUNICATION VAULTS 6,160

VAULT ALLOWANCE 15,000

ART ALLOWANCE STAINLESS STEEL 10,000

Total Cost 420,802$              

CM/GC Fee 31,560$                

10% Contingency 42,080$                

Bond 4,697$                  

2 Freak / Union Alleys Total 499,140$                 

3 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 6,680

Total Cost 6,680$                  

CM/GC Fee 501$                     

Contingency -$                      

Bond 68$                       

3 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes 7,249$                     

4 Repair Work

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS 18,370

Total Cost 18,370$                

CM/GC Fee 1,378$                  

10% Contingency -$                      

Bond 188$                     

4 Repair Work Total 19,935$                   

GMP 1 TOTAL 569,033$           

Anthony
Text Box
GMP 2 Schedule of Values

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT B

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



GMP AREA Job Cost Phase Description Takeoff Quantity Total Cost/Unit Total Amount

2

1 8th Street Streetscapes

02-4113 DEMO-SITE

Concrete /Paver  Demo at Alley Approach 741.00 sf 2.19 /sf 1,623

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 10.00 ea 1,690.40 /ea 16,904

Precast Planters 16.00 ea 434.31 /ea 6,949

32-1100 BASE COURSE

Road Base Section 741.00 sqft 2.12 /sqft 1,571

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING

Concrete Driveway Approach (Wear Slab) 741.00 sqft 6.00 /sqft 4,446

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS

I Paver Approaches 741.00 sqft 8.25 /sqft 6,113

3 FREAK AND UNION ALLEY

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Project Manager 30.00 HR 83.74 /HR 2,512

Project Manager 30.00 HR 83.74 /HR 2,512

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION

Superintendent Senior 30.00 HR 83.74 /HR 2,512

Superintendent Senior 30.00 HR 83.74 /HR 2,512

Superintendent 100.00 HR 68.32 /HR 6,832

Superintendent 100.00 HR 68.32 /HR 6,832

01-3223 LAYOUT

Survey & Staking 1.00 ls 2,500.00 /ls 2,500

01-4123 PERMITS

ACHD ROW Permit Fee 45.00 day 75.00 /day 3,375

ACHD ROW Permit Fee 45.00 day 75.00 /day 3,375

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE

Testing and Inspections 1.00 allo 5,000.00 /allo 5,000

Testing and Inspections 1.00 allo 5,000.00 /allo 5,000

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES

Portable Toilet 1.00 mth 90.68 /mth 91

Portable Toilet 1.00 mth 90.68 /mth 91

01-5510 PARKING FEES

Parking Fees 12.00 mth 150.00 /mth 1,800

Parking Fees 38.00 mth 150.00 /mth 5,700

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL

Traffic Control (Lane on Capitol/9th) 6.00 wk 1,819.00 /wk 10,914

Custom Signage 1.00 ls 1,000.00 /ls 1,000

Ped Traffic Control / Block 4.00 mth 500.00 /mth 2,000

Traffic Control (Lane on Capitol) Daily Set/Removal 45.00 day 150.00 /day 6,750

01-5600 TEMP BARRIERS AND ENCLOSURES

Temporary Orange Plastic  Fencing 4' x 100' 300.00 ft 1.30 /ft 390

Temporary Orange Plastic  Fencing 4' x 100' 300.00 ft 1.30 /ft 390

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP)

SWPPP Allowance 1.00 allo 600.00 /allo 600

SWPPP Allowance 1.00 allo 600.00 /allo 600

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL

Trash 1.00 mth 500.00 /mth 500

Trash 1.00 mth 500.00 /mth 500

Anthony
Text Box
Cost Estimate Detail

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT C

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



02-4113 DEMO-SITE

Concrete Demo 6,103.00 sf 2.19 /sf 13,366

Concrete Demo 5,650.00 sf 2.19 /sf 12,374

03-8100 SAW CUTTING

Saw Cut Asphalt 300.00 lf 1.00 /lf 300

Saw Cut Concrete 150.00 lf 1.50 /lf 225

Saw Cut Asphalt 300.00 lf 1.00 /lf 300

Saw Cut Concrete 150.00 lf 1.50 /lf 225

26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR

24" x 60" Light Pole Base Concrete 10.00 ea 200.00 /ea 2,000

Light Pole  Base Excavation and Backfill 10.00 ea 336.00 /ea 3,360

Trenching 270.00 lf 14.95 /lf 4,037

24" x 60" Light Pole Base Concrete 14.00 ea 200.00 /ea 2,800

Trenching 230.00 lf 14.95 /lf 3,439

Light Pole  Base Excavation and Backfill 24.00 ea 336.00 /ea 8,064

26-0100 ELECT OPERATION & MAINT

Electrical 1.00 ea 24,335.75 /ea 24,336

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS

Rope Lights 215.00 lf 21.48 /lf 4,619

Catenary Light 5.00 ls 1,896.40 /ls 9,482

Light Pole 10.00 ea 633.14 /ea 6,331

Light Pole 14.00 ea 633.14 /ea 8,864

Stainless Steel Cable and Hardware 1.00 ls 6,053.69 /ls 6,054

Light pole Labor (Set and Hang Cables) 1.00 ls 7,659.00 /ls 7,659

32-1100 BASE COURSE

Road Base Section 6,103.00 sqft 2.12 /sqft 12,938

Road Base Section 5,650.00 sqft 2.12 /sqft 11,978

32-1216 ASPHALT PAVING

Asphalt Patch on Capitol/9th 1.00 LS 2,000.00 /LS 2,000

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING

Concrete Driveway Approach (Wear Slab) 387.00 sqft 6.00 /sqft 2,322

Concrete Driveway Approach (Wear Slab) 602.00 sqft 6.00 /sqft 3,612

Expansion Joint w/  Sealant (Bldg Face) 1,200.00 lf 2.50 /lf 3,000

Alley Concrete 1.00 ls 58,910.20 /ls 58,910

Expansion Joint w/  Sealant (Exp. in Paving) 256.00 lf 2.50 /lf 640

32-1413 CONCRETE UNIT PAVERS

Concrete Unit Pavers 1,378.00 sqft 10.44 /sqft 14,381

Concrete Unit Pavers 1,880.00 sqft 10.44 /sqft 19,620

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS

I Paver Approaches 387.00 sqft 8.25 /sqft 3,193

I Paver Approaches 602.00 sqft 8.25 /sqft 4,967

Trucking CCDC Provided Paver to Jobsite 1.00 ls 875.00 /ls 875

32-3913 BOLLARDS

Bollard Metal 32.00 ea 116.72 /ea 3,735

Bollard Excavation 32.00 ea 336.00 /ea 10,752

Bollard Install 32.00 ea 150.00 /ea 4,800

Bollard Sandblast and Rust 32.00 ea 50.00 /ea 1,600

Bollard Metal 24.00 ea 116.72 /ea 2,801

Bollard Excavation 24.00 ea 336.00 /ea 8,064

Bollard Install 24.00 ea 150.00 /ea 3,600

Bollard Sandblast and Rust 24.00 ea 50.00 /ea 1,200

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE

Storm Drain Pipe from 0+11 to 1+14 103.00 lf 70.97 /lf 7,310

Anthony
Text Box
Cost Estimate Detail

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT C

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Storm Drain from 1+14 to 2+12 98.00 lf 70.97 /lf 6,955

Shallow Manhole 1.00 ea 2,271.00 /ea 2,271

Catch Basin Type II Grate and Frame 2.00 ea 3,000.00 /ea 6,000

33-8126 COMMUNICATION VAULTS

Utilities Vault relocate 1.00 allo 4,000.00 /allo 4,000

Replace Precast Vault 2.00 ea 1,080.00 /ea 2,160

VAULT ALLOWANCE 1.00 ALLO 15,000.00 /ALLO 15,000

ART EMBLEM ALLOWANCE 1.00 ALLO 10,000.00 /ALLO 10,000

3 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 2.00 ea 1,670.00 /ea 3,340

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 1.00 ea 1,670.00 /ea 1,670

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 1.00 ea 1,670.00 /ea 1,670

4 Repair Work

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 11.00 ea 1,670.00 /ea 18,370

Anthony
Text Box
Cost Estimate Detail

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT C

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



GMP AREA Job Cost Phase Description Takeoff Quantity Total Cost/Unit Total Amount

2

2 FREAK AND UNION ALLEY

01-4523 TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICE

Testing and Inspections 1.00 allo 5,000.00 /allo 5,000

Testing and Inspections 1.00 allo 5,000.00 /allo 5,000

01-5510 PARKING FEES

Parking Fees 12.00 mth 150.00 /mth 1,800

Parking Fees 38.00 mth 150.00 /mth 5,700

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP)

SWPPP Allowance 1.00 allo 600.00 /allo 600

SWPPP Allowance 1.00 allo 600.00 /allo 600

33-8126 COMMUNICATION VAULTS

Utilities Vault relocate 1.00 allo 4,000.00 /allo 4,000

* unassigned *

VAULT ALLOWANCE 1.00 ALLO 15,000.00 /ALLO 15,000

ART EMBLEM ALLOWANCE 1.00 ALLO 10,000.00 /ALLO 10,000

Allowances 47,700$       

Anthony
Text Box
Allowances

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT D

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



GMP AREA Job Cost Phase Description Takeoff Quantity Total Cost/Unit Total Amount

2

2 FREAK AND UNION ALLEY

01-3110 PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Project Manager 30.00 HR 83.74 /HR 2,512

Project Manager 30.00 HR 83.74 /HR 2,512

01-3111 PROJECT SUPERVISION

Superintendent Senior 30.00 HR 83.74 /HR 2,512

Superintendent Senior 30.00 HR 83.74 /HR 2,512

Superintendent 100.00 HR 68.32 /HR 6,832

Superintendent 100.00 HR 68.32 /HR 6,832

01-3223 LAYOUT

01-5200 CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES

Portable Toilet 1.00 mth 90.68 /mth 91

Portable Toilet 1.00 mth 90.68 /mth 91

01-5713 EROSION/SEDIMENT CTRL. (SWPPP)

SWPPP Allowance 1.00 allo 600.00 /allo 600

SWPPP Allowance 1.00 allo 600.00 /allo 600

01-7419 WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL

Trash 1.00 mth 500.00 /mth 500

Trash 1.00 mth 500.00 /mth 500

26,094.0$    General Conditions

Anthony
Text Box
General Conditions

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT E

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



GMP Area

Job Cost 

Code Description Quantity Price  Amount  Area Total  Vendor Total 

2

2 Freak and Union Alley

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS

Rope Lights 215.00 /lf 21.48 /lf 4,619

Catenary Light 5.00 /ls 1,896.40 /ls 9,482

  LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 14,101

14,101

14,101

2 Freak and Union Alley

33-8126 COMMUNICATION VAULTS

Replace Precast Vault 2.00 /ea 1,080.00 /ea 2,160

  COMMUNICATION VAULTS 2,160

2,160

2,160

2 Freak and Union Alley

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS

Light Pole 10.00 /ea 633.14 /ea 6,331

Light Pole 14.00 /ea 633.14 /ea 8,864

LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 15,195

15,195

15,195

1 8th Street Streetscapes

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 10.00 /ea 1,690.40 /ea 16,904

  SITE FURNISHINGS 16,904

16,904

3 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 2.00 /ea 1,670.00 /ea 3,340

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 1.00 /ea 1,670.00 /ea 1,670

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 1.00 /ea 1,670.00 /ea 1,670

  SITE FURNISHINGS 6,680

6,680

4 Repair Work

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS

Trash Receptacle (CCDC STD) 11.00 /ea 1,670.00 /ea 18,370

  SITE FURNISHINGS 18,370

18,370

41,954

2 Freak and Union Alley

32-3913 BOLLARDS

Bollard Metal 32.00 /ea 116.72 /ea 3,735

Bollard Metal 24.00 /ea 116.72 /ea 2,801

  BOLLARDS 6,536

6,536

6,536

1 8th Street Streetscapes

12-9300 SITE FURNISHINGS

Precast Planters 16.00 /ea 434.31 /ea 6,949

  SITE FURNISHINGS 6,949

6,949

6,949

86,895.4$                  

CED

Idaho Precast

Landscape Forms

Pacific Steel

KB Welding

2 Freak and Union Alley

KB Welding

Landscape Forms

Petersen Mfg.

1 8th Street Streetscapes

Pacific Steel

2 Freak and Union Alley

Petersen Mfg.

CED

2 Freak and Union Alley

2 Freak and Union Alley

Idaho Precast

4 Repair Work

3 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

1 8th Street Streetscapes

Purchase Orders

Anthony
Text Box
Purchase Orders

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT F

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



GMP Area

Job Cost 

Phase Description Quantity Sub Amount Phase Total

2

1 8th Street Streetscapes

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING

Concrete Driveway Approach (Wear Slab) 741.00 sqft 4,446

  CONCRETE PAVING 4,446

4,446

2 Freak and Union Alley

26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR

24" x 60" Light Pole Base Concrete 10.00 ea 2,000

24" x 60" Light Pole Base Concrete 14.00 ea 2,800

  ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR 4,800

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING

Concrete Driveway Approach (Wear Slab) 387.00 sqft 2,322

Concrete Driveway Approach (Wear Slab) 602.00 sqft 3,612

Alley Concrete 1.00 ls 58,910

  CONCRETE PAVING 64,844

32-3913 BOLLARDS

Bollard Install 32.00 ea 4,800

Bollard Install 24.00 ea 3,600

  BOLLARDS 8,400

78,044

82,490

1 8th Street Streetscapes

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS

I Paver Approaches 741.00 sqft 6,113

  BRICK PAVERS 6,113

6,113

2 Freak and Union Alley

32-1413 CONCRETE UNIT PAVERS

Concrete Unit Pavers 1,378.00 sqft 14,381

Concrete Unit Pavers 1,880.00 sqft 19,620

  CONCRETE UNIT PAVERS 34,000

32-1416 BRICK PAVERS

I Paver Approaches 387.00 sqft 3,193

I Paver Approaches 602.00 sqft 4,967

  BRICK PAVERS 8,159

42,160

48,273

2 Freak and Union Alley

26-0100 ELECT OPERATION & MAINT

Electrical 1.00 ea 24,336

  ELECT OPERATION & MAINT 24,336

24,336

24,336

2 Freak and Union Alley

01-5526 TRAFFIC CONTROL

Traffic Control (Lane on Capitol/9th) 6.00 wk 10,914

  TRAFFIC CONTROL 10,914

10,914

10,914

2 Freak and Union Alley

33-8126 COMMUNICATION VAULTS

Utilities Vault relocate 1.00 allo 4,000

  COMMUNICATION VAULTS 4,000

4,000

4,000

170,013.00$        

Syringa Networks

2 Freak and Union Alley

Subcontracts

1 8th Street Streetscapes

2 Freak and Union Alley

Boden Haus

Quality Electric

Quality Electric

2 Freak and Union Alley

Road Work Ahead

2 Freak and Union Alley

Road Work Ahead

Syringa Networks

1 8th Street Streetscapes

2 Freak and Union Alley

A-1 Concrete

A-1 Concrete

Boden Haus

Anthony
Text Box
Subcontracts

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT G

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



1 8th Street Streetscapes

02-4113 DEMO-SITE

Concrete /Paver  Demo at Alley Approach 741.00 sf 1,623

  DEMO-SITE 1,623

32-1100 BASE COURSE

Road Base Section 741.00 sqft 1,571

  BASE COURSE 1,571

3,194

2 Freak and Union Alley

02-4113 DEMO-SITE

Concrete Demo 6,103.00 sf 13,366

Concrete Demo 5,650.00 sf 12,374

  DEMO-SITE 25,739

26-0010 ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR

Trenching 270.00 lf 4,037

Trenching 230.00 lf 3,439

  ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR 7,475

26-5613 LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS

Light pole Labor (Set and Hang Cables) 1.00 ls 7,659

  LIGHT POLES & STANDARDS 7,659

32-1100 BASE COURSE

Road Base Section 6,103.00 sqft 12,938

Road Base Section 5,650.00 sqft 11,978

  BASE COURSE 24,916

32-1313 CONCRETE PAVING

Expansion Joint w/  Sealant (Bldg Face) 1,200.00 lf 3,000

Expansion Joint w/  Sealant (Exp. in Paving) 256.00 lf 640

  CONCRETE PAVING 3,640

33-4000 STORM DRAINAGE

Storm Drain Pipe from 0+11 to 1+14 103.00 lf 7,310

  STORM DRAINAGE 7,310

76,739

79,933.00$           Self- Perform

1 8th Street Streetscapes

2 Freak and Union Alley

GUHO CORP

Anthony
Text Box
Self Perform Work

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT H

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



GMP 2 

Assumptions and Clarifications 

 

General Conditions 

• Construction will take place at the same time as 8th Street(March to June Construction) 

• Utilize same staging yard duration 

Traffic Control 

• 8th Street Traffic Control will be in place during alley construction 

• Lane Closures on 9th and Capitol Blvd  

• Alley Closed to all traffic 

• No deliveries in alley 

• Monthly Parking Stalls will be displaced 

o 12 Union Block 

o 24 Freak Alley Block 

• Monthly Parker will turn in parking expenses to property manager who will turn them in th 

CM/GC for reimbursement, allowance of $150/mth/stall 

• Construction Hours are Monday-Friday 6am to 6pm, Saturdays possible 

• ACHD ROW Permit Included 

 

Pavers and Hardscape 

• Paver for alley approaches to be provided by CCDC from salvaged stock 

 

Light Poles and Electrical 

o Alley Lighting feed from 8th St. Street lighting circuits 

o Connection at nearest Light Pole Junction Box on 8th Street 

o Electrical connection at columns to be determined with jurisdiction having 

authority 

 Preferred to run electrical runs internal in columns  

 Columns are not UL listed 

o Stainless Steel cables with swageless termination ends with adjustment for proper 

tension. 

 

Misc. Items 

• Expansion joint material with Joint Sealant provided at building faces 

• 56 Bollards 

o 6” Rail Profile 

o Sand Blasted and “rust” finish 

• Relocation of Syringa Vaults 

o Replace Vaults with new Precast Vault 

• Replacement of Approach at 8th and Main Trash (740 sqft) 

o Demo Existing Paver and Excavate 

o 6” Gravel base Section 

o 8” Concrete Wear Slab 

o I Bricks Karnack to wear slab 

• Patch Concrete at Vaults  

Anthony
Text Box

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT I

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



• Custom Storm Drain Cover 

o Design TBD 

o Match Size of ACHD Standard Type II SD 714 

 

Owner Provided Items 

• City of Boise Permit Fees 

• Trash Services relocated and provided by City of Boise 

o ROW Permits 

o Traffic Control 

o Trash Service Fees and Rentals 

o Parking Fees 

 

Allowances 

• Testing and Inspections Services by Allwest 

o Subgrade Inspection 

o Compaction Tests 

o Concrete Cylinders for Concrete Paving  

• Parking Relocation-  $7,500 

• Erosion and Sediment Control- $1,200 

• Underground Vault Retrofit- $15,000  

• Art Emblem Allowance- $10,000 

o Stainless Steel Emblems embedded in concrete at alley ends 

 Union Block Emblem 6’ Round Logo 

 Freak Alley Galley 6” Tall Text 

 

Material Procurement for Other Phases 

8th Street 

• 16 Flower Planters 

• 10 Trash Receptacles 

Capitol Blvd Streetscapes 

•  (4) Trash Receptacles 

Central District Repair Work 

• (11) Trash Receptacles 

 

Schedule 

• Coordination with Union Building Interior construction TBD based on their  final schedule 

• Fidelity Building Sewer Replacement and Waterproofing shall take place before alley 

constrcution 

 

 

 

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT I

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District Renovation 

Anthony
Image

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 8th Street Streetscapes 97 days Thu 2/1/18 Fri 6/15/18

146 Freak / Union Alley 92 days Wed 1/31/18 Thu 6/7/18

147 Design / Pre-Construction 38 days Wed 1/31/18 Fri 3/23/18

164 Freak Alley Construction 35 days Mon 3/26/18 Fri 5/11/18

165 Freak Alley Closed 34 days Mon 3/26/18 Fri 5/11/18

168 Setup Fencing 1 day Mon 3/26/18 Mon 3/26/18

169 Demo, Excavation and Gravel Prep 10 days Tue 3/27/18 Mon 4/9/18

170 Excavate Light Poles, Catch Basins, and Bollards 6 days Tue 4/10/18 Tue 4/17/18

171 Fiber Vault Adjustment 3 days Fri 4/13/18 Tue 4/17/18

172 Light pole Bases and Bollards 10 days Fri 4/13/18 Thu 4/26/18

173 Concrete Paving 5 days Fri 4/27/18 Thu 5/3/18

174 Unit Pavers 6 days Fri 5/4/18 Fri 5/11/18

175 Set Light Poles 2 days Thu 5/10/18 Fri 5/11/18

176 Field Measure Light Poles 0 days Fri 5/11/18 Fri 5/11/18

177 Overhead Lighting 3 days Mon 7/9/18 Wed 7/11/18

178 Freak Alley Substantial Completion 0 days Fri 5/11/18 Fri 5/11/18

179 Union Alley Construction 38 days Tue 4/17/18 Thu 6/7/18

180 Union Alley Closed 34 days Tue 4/17/18 Mon 6/4/18

183 Setup Fencing 1 day Tue 4/17/18 Tue 4/17/18

184 Demo, Excavation, Strom Drain and Gravel Prep 10 days Wed 4/18/18 Tue 5/1/18

185 Excavate Light Poles, Catch Basins, and Bollards 6 days Wed 5/2/18 Wed 5/9/18

186 Fiber Vault Adjustment 3 days Thu 5/10/18 Mon 5/14/18

187 Concrete Catch Basins and Light pole Bases 10 days Mon 5/7/18 Fri 5/18/18

188 Concrete Paving 5 days Mon 5/21/18 Fri 5/25/18

189 Unit Pavers 6 days Mon 5/28/18 Mon 6/4/18

190 Set Light Poles 2 days Fri 6/1/18 Mon 6/4/18

191 Overhead Lighting 3 days Tue 6/5/18 Thu 6/7/18

192 Union Alley Substantial Completion 0 days Mon 6/4/18 Mon 6/4/18

193 Capitol Blvd Streetscapes 123 days Wed 2/28/18 Fri 8/17/18

213 Major Repairs 70 days Mon 4/2/18 Fri 7/6/18

8th Street Streetscapes

Freak / Union Alley

Design / Pre-Construction

Freak Alley Construction

Freak Alley Closed

Setup Fencing

Demo, Excavation and Gravel Prep

Excavate Light Poles, Catch Basins, and Bollards

Fiber Vault Adjustment

Light pole Bases and Bollards

Concrete Paving

Unit Pavers

Set Light Poles

Field Measure Light Poles 5/11

Overhead Lighting

Freak Alley Substantial Completion 5/11

Union Alley Construction

Union Alley Closed

Setup Fencing

Demo, Excavation, Strom Drain and Gravel Prep

Excavate Light Poles, Catch Basins, and Bollards

Fiber Vault Adjustment

Concrete Catch Basins and Light pole Bases

Concrete Paving

Unit Pavers

Set Light Poles

Overhead Lighting

Union Alley Substantial Completion 6/4

Capitol Blvd Streetscapes

Major Repairs

1/28 2/4 2/11 2/18 2/25 3/4 3/11 3/18 3/25 4/1 4/8 4/15 4/22 4/29 5/6 5/13 5/20 5/27 6/3 6/10 6/17 6/24 7/1 7/8 7/15 7/227/29 8/5 8/12 8/19 8/26 9/2 9/9

February March April May June July August September

Page 1 OF 1 02/05/17

Anthony
Image

Anthony
Image

Anthony
Text Box
CCDC Central District RenovationPHASE II FREAK AND UNION ALLEYPre-Construction ScheduleMARCH  5, 2017

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT J

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CONC BOLLARD

CONC BOLLARD

CB

CB

G

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

ICE

ICE

ICE ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

T

M

M

M

T

T

M

ICE

ICE ICE ICE

ICE ICE

ICE ICE

M

M

M

SD

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

ICE

T

"ISG PLS7729"

7
0

.
0

0
'

6
0
.
0
0
'

8
0
.
0
0
'

8
0

.
0

0
'

(VACATED ROW BOUNDARY)

(VACATED ROW BOUNDARY)

"
I
S

G
 
P

L
S

7
0

1
5

"

"
I
S

G
 
P

L
S

7
7

2
9

"

D
I
S

T
U

R
B

E
D

SEE SHEET 3 FOR MORE DETAIL

SEE SHEET 3 FOR MORE DETAIL

V
A

C
A

T
E

D

V
A

C
A

T
E

D

W
. M

A
IN

 S
T

.

N. 8th ST. (PRIVATE)

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

 W
. F

R
O

N
T

 S
T

.

W
. M

A
IN

 S
T

.

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

 W
. F

R
O

N
T

 S
T

.

G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

N. CAPITOL BLVD.

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

W
. M

A
IN

 S
T

.

N. 9th ST.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

N. 9th ST.

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y

F
R

E
A

K
 A

L
L

E
Y

W
. M

A
IN

 S
T

.

U
N

IO
N

 A
L

L
E

Y

W
. B

A
N

N
O

C
K

 S
T

.
W

. B
A

N
N

O
C

K
 S

T
.

W
. ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

 

 

Anthony
Text Box
GMP AMENDMENT 2 EXHIBIT K

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

A
lly

 S
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l C
on

su
lt

in
g,

 L
LC

GENERAL STRUCTURAL NOTES (G.S.N.)

GENERAL

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND SITE CONDITIONS BEFORE STARTING WORK.  THE STRUCTURAL

ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED OF ANY DISCREPANCY.  THESE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED TO PRESENT SUFFICIENT

DIMENSIONS TO INDICATE MAJOR PLAN SIZES AND TO LOCATE PRIMARY STRUCTURAL COMPONENTS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL

COORDINATE LOCATION OF ELEMENTS RELATED TO OTHER DISCIPLINES.  USE DETAILS MARKED "TYPICAL" WHEREVER

APPLICABLE.  CHANGES, OMISSIONS OR SUBSTITUTIONS ARE NOT PERMITTED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.  REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR FURTHER REQUIREMENTS.  ALL MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP SHALL

CONFORM TO THE 2015 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE (IBC).  THE DESIGN, ADEQUACY AND SAFETY OF ERECTION BRACING,

SHORING, TEMPORARY SUPPORTS, ETC., IS THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR, AND HAS NOT BEEN CONSIDERED

BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.  OBSERVATION VISITS TO THE SITE BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER SHALL NOT INCLUDE

INSPECTION OF THE ABOVE ITEMS.

SHOP DRAWINGS

SHOP DRAWINGS ARE TO BE CHECKED AND APPROVED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO SUBMITTING FOR STRUCTURAL

REVIEW.  ANY REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION TO THE DRAWINGS MUST BE SUBMITTED IN WRITING.  THIS MAY BE ACCOMPLISHED

THROUGH THE SHOP DRAWINGS ONLY IF THE CHANGE IS CLEARLY REPRESENTED, CLOUDED AND NOTED AS BEING A REQUESTED

CHANGE REQUIRING THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER APPROVAL.  CHANGES TO THE DRAWINGS BY WAY OF THE SHOP DRAWINGS

THAT ARE NOT CLEARLY NOTED AS STATED ABOVE, DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN AUTHORIZED CHANGE EVEN THOUGH THE

DRAWINGS HAVE BEEN STAMPED WITH THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER REVIEW STAMP. GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE

FOR VERIFICATION AND COORDINATION OF DIMENSIONS AND DETAILS FOR EACH SUBCONTRACTOR.

SHOP DRAWINGS SHALL INCLUDE PLANS AND DETAILS AS NECESSARY TO INDICATE UNDERSTANDING OF THE CONTRACT

DOCUMENTS. ENSURE ADEQUATE COPIES OF SHOP DRAWINGS ARE SUBMITTED FOR THE CONTRACTOR, ARCHITECT, AND

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER TO RETAIN ONE COPY EACH FOR THEIR FILES.

SHOP DRAWINGS ARE REQUIRED FOR THE FOLLOWING:

* STRUCTURAL STEEL

INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

SUBMITTALS ARE TO BE CHECKED AND APPROVED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO SUBMITTING FOR STRUCTURAL

REVIEW. SUBMITTALS SHALL INCLUDE CURRENT PRODUCT ICC/IAMPO REPORTS WHERE APPLICABLE AND INDICATED LOCATIONS

OF USAGE FOR THE PRODUCT. ENSURE ADEQUATE COPIES OF SUBMITTALS ARE SUBMITTED FOR THE CONTRACTOR, ARCHITECT,

AND STRUCTURAL ENGINEER TO RETAIN ONE COPY EACH FOR THEIR FILES.

INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS ARE REQUIRED FOR THE FOLLOWING:

* CONCRETE MIX DESIGN

PRODUCT AND MATERIAL SUBSTITUTIONS

PRODUCTS AND MATERIALS ARE TO BE AS SPECIFIED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. SUBSTITUTIONS ARE NOT PERMITTED

WITHOUT THE APPROVAL OF THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER AND ARCHITECT.

DESIGN LOADS

RISK CATEGORY PER IBC I

BASIC WIND SPEED, V

ULT

105 MPH (3 SEC GUST), EXPOSURE B

NOMINAL ICE THICKNESS 0.25 IN

ICE IMPORTANCE FACTOR 1.0

WIND SPEED ON ICE, V

ULT

40 MPH (3 SEC GUST)

FOUNDATION

DESIGN ALLOWABLE SOIL BEARING PRESSURE = 1500 PSF AND PASSIVE PRESSURE = 250 PCF ASSUMED.  BOTTOM OF ALL PIERS

TO BEAR ON COMPETENT, NATIVE, INORGANIC, UNDISTURBED SOIL 1'-0" MINIMUM BELOW EXISTING GRADE OR COMPACTED

STRUCTURAL FILL.  NO PIER SHALL BEAR HIGHER THAN A 1 VERTICAL TO 1.5 HORIZONTAL SLOPE ABOVE ANY EXCAVATION,

EXISTING OR PLANNED.

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE

ATTAIN THE FOLLOWING MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH AT 28 DAYS:

* 4000 PSI---PIERS

MAXIMUM SLUMP:

* 4" +/- 1"---PIERS.

MAXIMUM W/C RATIO:

* 0.45--PIERS.

AIR ENTRAINMENT:

* 6% +/- 1%---EXPOSED CONCRETE SLABS, FOUNDATION WALLS, AND PIERS.

MAXIMUM AGGREGATE SIZE: 

3

4

" TYPICAL

CONSTRUCTION TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACI 318-14.

REINFORCING STEEL

DEFORMED BARS: ASTM A615, GRADE 40 FOR #3; GRADE 60 FOR #4 & LARGER; ASTM A706 FOR WELDED CONDITIONS.

LAP SPLICES (HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL STEEL)

* CONCRETE: 40-BAR DIA. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE FOR #6 & SMALLER.

CONCRETE COVER:

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THESE DRAWINGS, UTILIZE THE FOLLOWING CLEAR EMBEDMENT AT REINFORCING BARS VALUES

FOR CAST-IN-PLACE, NON-PRE-STRESSED CONCRETE TYPICALLY:

CONCRETE CAST AGAINST SOIL = 3".

FORMED CONCRETE EXPOSED TO EARTH OR WEATHER = 2" (#6 OR GREATER)

FORMED CONCRETE EXPOSED TO EARTH OR WEATHER = 1-1/2" (#5 OR LESS)

SECURELY TIE ALL REINFORCING IN PLACE WITH DOUBLE ANNEALED 16-GAUGE IRON WIRE OR APPROVED CLIPS.

GROUT AND EPOXY ADHESIVES

NON-SHRINK GROUT:  "MASTERFLOW 928" AS MANUFACTURED BY BASF BUILDING SYSTEMS OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT.

EPOXYADHESIVES:

* FOR INSTALLATION IN CONCRETE: SIMPSON "SET-XP" (ESR-2508)

STRUCTURAL AND MISC. STEEL

CHANNELS, ANGLES, PLATES AND BARS: ASTM A36, F

y

 = 36 KSI MINIMUM.

HOLLOW STRUCTURAL SHAPES (HSS): ASTM A500, GRADE B, F

y

 = 46 KSI (RECTANGULAR SECTIONS), F

y

 = 42 KSI (ROUND

SECTIONS).

ANCHOR BOLTS (A.B.): ASTM F1554, GRADE 36 KSI. PROVIDE DOUBLE NUT FOR LEVELING AT COLUMNS OR BEAM BASE PLATES.

EPOXY ANCHORS: CARBON STEEL THREADED ANCHOR RODS CONFORMING TO ASTM A307 GRADE C, OR ASTM A193 GRADE B7; OR

STAINLESS STEEL THREADED ANCHOR RODS CONFORMING TO ASTM F593, ALLOY GROUP 1, TYPE 304, CONDITION CW. INSTALL

RODS USING APPROPRIATE EPOXY ADHESIVE FOR THE BASE MATERIAL ACCORDING TO THE "GROUT AND EPOXY ADHESIVE"

SECTION ABOVE.

WELDING ELECTRODES OR WIRES: AWS A5.1 OR A5.5, E70XX; AWS A5.18, E70S-X; AWS A5.20, E7XT-X.

ERECTION AND FABRICATION: IN ACCORDANCE WITH AISC "SPECIFICATIONS FOR DESIGN, FABRICATION, AND ERECTION OF

STRUCTURAL STEEL FOR BUILDINGS".  WELDING SHALL CONFORM TO AWS "CODE FOR ARC AND GAS WELDING IN BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION".  ALL WELDING SHALL BE PERFORMED BY AWS CERTIFIED WELDERS.  ALL COLUMNS AND BEAMS TO BE FROM

UN-SPLICED LENGTHS UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON THE DRAWINGS.  SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS SHOWING SIZES, DIMENSIONS

AND REQUIRED CONNECTION DETAILS FOR REVIEW BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER PRIOR TO FABRICATION.

FIELD WELDS: WELDING OF STRUCTURAL STEEL SHALL BE PERFORMED IN THE SHOP WHENEVER PRACTICAL. AN EFFORT HAS

BEEN MADE TO INDICATE WELDS THAT CAN BE OR SHOULD BE FIELD WELDED. IT IS, HOWEVER, THE FABRICATORS

RESPONSIBILITY TO DECIDE WHERE AND HOW THE WELDING IS TO BE ACCOMPLISHED TO ACHIEVE THE INTENDED RESULT.

COMPLETE JOINT PENTRATION WELD (C.J.P.): PROVIDE BACKER BARS, RUN OFF TABS, AND ACCESS HOLES PER AWS D1.1.

BACKER BARS SHALL BE REMOVED AFTER WELDING, THE ROOT WELD BACK GOUGED AND REPAIRED IF NECESSARY AND

REINFORCED WITH A FILLET. RUN OFF TABS SHALL BE REMOVED AFTER WELDING WITH THE FLANGE EDGE GROUND SMOOTH.

SPECIAL STRUCTURAL INSPECTIONS

THE OWNER SHALL EMPLOY A SPECIAL INSPECTION SERVICE TO PERFORM INSPECTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 17 OF

THE 2015 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE.  INSPECTION REPORTS FOR THE ITEMS LISTED IN THE SPECIAL INSPECTION TABLES

SHALL BE FURNISHED TO THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER OF RECORD IN A TIMELY MANNER.  INSPECTION REPORTS SHALL INDICATE

THAT WORK INSPECTED WAS DONE IN CONFORMANCE TO APPROVED CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.  DISCREPANCIES THAT ARE

NOT CORRECTED SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER OF RECORD PRIOR TO THE

COMPLETION OF THAT PHASE OF THE WORK.  A FINAL REPORT DOCUMENTING THE REQUIRED SPECIAL INSPECTIONS AND

CORRECTION OF ANY DISCREPANCIES NOTED IN THE INSPECTIONS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE OWNER AND STRUCTURAL

ENGINEER OF RECORD.

TABLE 2

1705.3 CONCRETE CONTRUCTION

YES NO MATERIAL/ACTIVITY CONTINUOUS PERIODIC

X

1. INSPECTION OF REINFORCING STEEL, INCLUDING PRESTRESSING TENDONS, AND

PLACEMENT.

X

X

2. INSPECTION OF REIFORCING STEEL WELDING IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 1705.2.2

ITEM 2B.

X

3. INSPECTION OF ANCHORS CAST IN CONCRETE WHERE ALLOWABLE LOADS HAVE BEEN

INCREASED PER SECTION 1908.5 OR WHERE STRENGTH DESIGN IS USED.

X

X 4. INSPECTION OF ANCHORS POST-INSTALLED IN HARDENED CONCRETE MEMBERS. X

X 5. VERIFY USE OF REQUIRED DESIGN MIX X

X

6. AT THE TIME OF FRESH CONCRETE IS SAMPLED TO FABRICATE SPECIMENS FOR

STRENGTH TESTS,

PERFORM SLUMP AND AIR CONTENT TESTS, AND DETERMINE THE TEMPERATURE OF THE

CONCRETE.

X

X

7. INSPECTION OF CONCRETE AND SHOTCRETE PLACEMENT FOR PROPER APPLICATION

TECH-NIQUES.

X

X

8. INSPECTION FOR MAINTENANCE OF SPECI ED CURING TEMPERATURE AND

TECHNIQUES.

X

X 9. INSPECTION OF PRESTRESSED CONCRETE:

      A.  APPLICATION OF PRESTRESSING FORCES X

      B.  GROUTING OF BONDED PRESTRESSING TENDONS IN THE

SEISMIC-FORCE-RESISTING SYSTEM

X

X 10. ERECTION OF PRECAST CONCRETE MEMBERS. X

X

11. VERIFICATION OF IN-SITU CONCRETE STRENGTH, PRIOR TO STRESSING OF TENDONS

IN POST TENSIONED CONCRETE AND PRIOR TO REMOVAL OF SHORES AND FORMS FROM

BEAMS AND STRUC-TURAL SLABS.

X

X

12. INSPECTION OF FORMWORK FOR SHAPE, LINES, LOCATION AND DIMENSIONS OF THE

CONCRETE MEMBER BEING FORMED.

X

TABLE 5

1705.6 SOILS

YES NO MATERIAL/ACTIVITY CONTINUOUS PERIODIC

X

1. VERIFY MATERIALS BELOW SHALLOW FOUNDATIONS ARE ADEQUATE TO ACHIEVE THE

DESIGN BEARING CAPACITY.

X

X

2. VERIFY EXCAVATIONS ARE EXTENDED TO PROPER DEPTH AND HAVE REACHED

PROPER MATERIAL.

X

X 3. PERFORM CLASSIFICATION AND TESTING OF COMPACTED  FILL MATERIALS. X

X

4. VERIFY USE OF PROPER MATERIALS, DENSITIES, AND LIFT THICKNESSES DURING

PLACEMENT AND COMPACTION OF COMPACTED  FILL.

X

X

5. PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF COMPACTED  FILL, OBSERVE SUBGRADE AND VERIFY THAT

SITE HAS BEEN PREPARED PROPERLY.

X

PER CIVIL

0'-0" FOR REF. ONLY

1

1

2

" CLR

TOP OF COLUMN

FREAK ALLEY: 24'-0"

UNION ALLEY: 20'-0"

HSS6x6x

3

16

 COLUMN. FINISH

PER ARCH'L

CENTERLINE OF COLUMN,

BASE PLATE & PIER

1

4

" CAP PLATE

7
"
 
E

M
B

E
D

8
"

1

2

"x1'-0"SQ. STEEL BASE PLATE W/

(4)

5

8

"Ø THREADED RODS W/

HEAVY HEX BOLTS AND WASHERS

1

1

2

" NON-SHRINK GROUT

18"Ø CONCRETE PIER WITH (5)#5

VERTICAL EVENLY SPACED AND #3

TIES (2) IN TOP 5" THEN AT 10" O.C.

4
'
-
0
"
 
M

I
N

I
M

U
M

 
E

M
B

E
D

PAVING PER ARCH'L/CIVIL

2
"

2

1

2

"

CENTERLINE OF SPAN

WIRE ROPE

INSTALLATION

SAG WITH NO

SUPERIMPOSED

LOADS

3

8

"Ø 1x19 

302

304

 SS

WIRE ROPE

ADJUSTABLE END

CONNECTOR &

D-RING PER WIRE

ROPE SUPPLIER

Scale: 3/4"=1'-0"

TYPICAL WIRE ROPE & COLUMN DETAIL

1

NOTES:

1. LOCATIONS & NUMBER OF OCCURRENCES PER CIVIL/ARCH'L

2. CABLE LENGTH AND TENSION TO BE SET TO ACHIEVE THE

INITIAL SAG SHOWN DURING INSTALLATION.

3. THE ADJUSTABLE CONNECTORS SHALL HAVE ADJUSTMENT

LEFT OVER FOR FUTURE ADJUSTMENT REQUIRED TO

COMPENSATE FOR WIRE ROPE "WORK SETTING"

(LENGTHENING UNDER LOAD CYCLES)

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



W
. 

ID
A

H
O

 S
T

.

N. 8th ST.
(PRIVATE)

PROSPERI DENIS V &

TERRI L LIVING TRUST

CAPITOL TERRACE

CONDO ASSOC

CAPITAL CITY

DEVELOPMENT CORP

BOISE MODE LLC

1
6

' A
L

L
E

Y
F

R
E

A
K

 A
L

L
E

Y

W
. 

ID
A

H
O

 S
T

.

W
. 
ID

A
H

O
 S

T
.

W

W

T

N. 8th ST.
(PRIVATE)

T

N. 8th ST.
(PRIVATE)

URBAN RENEWAL

AGENCY OF BOISE CITY

MONTANDON

BUILDING LLC

BOISE MODE LLC

T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



UNION ALLEY

M
O

N
T

A
N

D
O

N

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
L
L
C

7
0
2
 
W

E
S

T
 
I
D

A
H

O
 
L
L
C

UNION ALLEY
UNION ALLEY

16' ALLEY 16' ALLEY 16' ALLEYT

T

T

T

M
O

N
T

A
N

D
O

N

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
L
L
C

A
S

S
O

C
I
A

T
E

S
 
L
L
C

7
0
2
 
W

E
S

T
 
I
D

A
H

O
 
L
L
C

B
O

I
S

E
 
M

O
D

E
 
L
L
C

M
C

C
A

R
T

Y

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
L
L
C

B
A

N
N

O
C

K

B
L
O

C
K

 
4
4
 
L
L
C

16' ALLEY
FREAK ALLEY

16' ALLEY

FREAK ALLEY
16' ALLEY

GEO

T

T

T

FREAK ALLEY

B
O

I
S

E
 
M

O
D

E
 
L
L
C

M
C

C
A

R
T

Y

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
L
L
C

B
A

N
N

O
C

K

B
L
O

C
K

 
4
4
 
L
L
C

B
A

N
N

O
C

K

B
L
O

C
K

 
4
4
 
L
L
C

T
H

E
S

E
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

S
 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S

O
F

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

R
E

 
A

N
D

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
R

E
M

A
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F

T
H

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
 
/
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
 
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
F

O
R

W
H

I
C

H
 
T

H
E

Y
 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
I
S

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
E

D
 
O

R
 
N

O
T

.
 
T

H
E

S
E

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
A

N
D

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
N

O
T

 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
B

Y

A
N

Y
 
P

E
R

S
O

N
 
O

R
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
O

N
 
O

T
H

E
R

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
,
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
T

O
 
T

H
I
S

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

,
 
O

R
 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

-
W

H
E

N
 
P

H
A

S
E

D
-
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
T

H
E

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
C

O
N

S
E

N
T

O
F

 
C

S
H

Q
A

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
A

F
F

I
L

I
A

T
E

S
.

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

 
 
8

3
7

0
2

(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
4

6
3

5
 
 
 
 
F

A
X

 
(
2

0
8

)
 
3

4
3

-
1

8
5

8

2
0

0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

w
w

w
.
c
s
h

q
a

.
c
o

m

C
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
 
 
2

0
1

8

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
4
6
3
5
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
2
0
8
-
3
4
3
-
1
8
5
8

B
O

I
S

E
,
 
I
D

A
H

O

2
0
0
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Page 1 
 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution #1533 Professional Services Agreement with CTA for 
Shoreline District Urban Framework Plan 

Date: 
March 12, 2018 
 

Staff Contact: 
Doug Woodruff 
 

Attachments: 
Resolution #1533 which includes the Services Agreement 
 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution #1533 and authorize the professional services agreement with CTA for the 
Shoreline District Urban Framework Plan 

 
Background: 
 CCDC currently has four Urban Renewal Districts (URDs) and is planning to establish a fifth 
district, known as the Shoreline District. There are number of circumstances that prompted the 
proposed Shoreline District. The River Street Neighborhood Plan and Lusk Street Area Plan 
recommend exploring the formation of an Urban Renewal District. There are catalytic 
developments currently being considered in the area that are burdened with insufficient public 
infrastructure. Forthcoming development will create an opportunity and need to improve the 
greenbelt that connects the proposed mixed use development, riverfront neighborhood, and the 
Lusk District.   
 
Shoreline District Formation 

In 2017 SB Friedman prepared an eligibility report for the Agency that set forth a Shoreline 
Study Area and determined it as eligible for urban renewal.  CCDC is now establishing a team 
of consultants to produce an urban framework plan for the Shoreline Study Area an important 
part of the district formation process and final Urban Renewal Plan. While not a requirement by 
statue, the urban framework plan has been a useful practice in Boise’s redevelopment efforts.   
 
Urban Framework Plan 

Since master plans recently prepared by the City exist, the Shoreline urban framework will sort, 

compile, organize, and prioritize the relevant information, rather than start over.  It is not meant 

to supplant or reimagine the existing master plans; however, it may supplement where gaps 

exist—such as along the riverfront and Capitol Boulevard.  

 

The urban framework will function as a compendium of the City’s existing master plans, policies 

and urban design standards.  Its purpose is to provide clarity, guidance and recommendations 

about the physical improvements desired to be built.  It will include a specific list of public 

improvements that the Urban Renewal Plan sets forth to accomplish during its term.  This list of 

public improvements will be illustrated in framework diagrams as well as written word.  

 



Page 2 
 

The urban framework is not meant to function as a regulatory document.  It is understood by the 

City and CCDC that additional steps by the City will be required to amend policy, ordinance, 

zoning, or design standards after the Urban Renewal Plan is in place. 

 

Consultant – CTA Architects and Engineers 

Founded in 1938, CTA was an early adopter of close cooperation between architects and 

engineers — integrated design. Today, the practice continues as professionals from CTA’s 25+ 

disciplines partner with clients to pioneer environments: creating unique, value-rich, durable 

spaces in which all comers can live, work, and play.   CTA has 16 offices throughout the United 

States and Canada. CTA’s project team brings urban renewal planning expertise from their 

Denver office, site planning and design from Billings, and project management and public 

facilitation here locally in the Boise office.   CTA’s local team understands Boise, has knowledge 

and experience with the current and forthcoming development, and brings a good reputation to 

the Shoreline formation process.  

 

Agency staff, supported by City staff, prepared a scope of service and researched potential 

consultants.  CTA was identified as the desired consultant for the reasons noted above.  Staff 

requested a fee proposal, negotiated terms, and interviewed CTA in preparation for making this 

recommendation to the Board.   

 

Upon Board approval and execution of the agreement, CTA will begin services immediately and 

has committed to delivering the Urban Framework Plan by August, 2018.    

 

Fiscal Notes: 
The professional services agreement agrees to pay CTA a not-to-exceed amount of 
$160,361.00.  The fee amount is within the project budget approved in the fiscal year 2018 
Agency budget.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
It is staff’s recommendation to the Board to find it in the best interest of the public and the 
agency to approve Resolution #1533, authorizing the execution of a professional services 
agreement with CTA Architects and Engineers for the Shoreline District Urban Framework Plan. 
 

 
Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution #1533 and authorize the professional services agreement with CTA 
for the Shoreline District Urban Framework Plan. 
 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1533 Page 1  

RESOLUTION NO.  1533 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN AGENCY AND CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS FOR 
THE SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN; AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 
AND ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS OR AGREEMENTS, 
SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY 
TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning 
urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has four urban renewal districts and is taking steps to establish 
a fifth district, known as the Shoreline District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2017 the Agency hired SB Friedman to prepare an eligibility report that 
set forth a Shoreline Study Area and to determine its eligibility for urban renewal; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to establish a team of consultants to produce an 
urban framework plan for the Shoreline Study Area which could set clear expectations and 
could include specific goals and the vision that the Shoreline District Urban Renewal Plan would 
accomplish during its term; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the urban framework plan would function as a collection of the City’s 
existing master plans, policies, and urban design standards in order to provide clarity, guidance, 
and recommendations about the physical improvements desired to be built in the Shoreline 
District; and, 
 

WHEREAS, hiring certain professional consultant services is excluded from the 
purchasing rules for political subdivisions by Idaho Code § 67-2803(4); and, 

 
WHEREAS, after much research and consideration, CTA Architects Engineers was 

identified by Agency staff to provide the desired professional consulting services because of 
CTA’s urban renewal planning expertise, site planning and design skills, and project 
management and public engagement capabilities at a local level; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, Agency staff and CTA’s local team worked to prepare a complete scope of 
services and negotiated the terms and conditions of a Professional Services Agreement, 
attached to this resolution as EXHIBIT A; and,  
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1533 Page 2  

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to approve 
the Professional Services Agreement between Agency and CTA Architects Engineers and to 
authorize the Executive Director to execute same. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Professional Services Agreement between Agency and CTA 
Architects Engineers for the Shoreline Urban Framework Plan, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as EXHIBIT A and incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby is 
approved. 
 
 Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to execute 
the Professional Services Agreement on behalf of the Agency for completion of the Shoreline 
District Urban Framework Plan, for an amount not to exceed ONE HUNDRED SIXTY 
THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SIXY-ONE DOLLARS ($160,361.00), and to execute all 
necessary documents required to implement the actions contemplated by said agreement, 
subject to representations by the Agency staff and the Agency legal counsel that all conditions 
precedent to such actions have been met; and further, any necessary technical changes to the 
Agreement or other documents are acceptable, upon advice from the Agency’s legal counsel 
that said changes are consistent with the provisions of the Agreement and the comments and 
discussions received at the March 12, 2018, Agency Board meeting. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on March 12, 2018.  
Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the 
Board of Commissioners on March 12, 2018.   
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY   
 
 
      BY:         
             Dana Zuckerman, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:        
       David H. Bieter, Secretary 
 



CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN 

Page 1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 

SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made by and 
between Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body corporate and 
politic, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho and known as the urban 
renewal agency of the City of Boise City, Idaho (“CCDC”), and CTA Architects Engineers, 
commonly referred to as CTA (“CONSULTANT”) (individually referred to as “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties”), who agree as follows:   

PURPOSE AND INTENT 

CCDC has a need for consultant services related to the creation and formation of a new urban 
renewal district, known as the Shoreline District.  The CONSULTANT will provide an Urban 
Framework Plan that will function as a compendium of the City’s existing master plans, policies 
and urban design standards and as an Agency guiding document for use implementing the 
district’s Urban Renewal Plan. 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES; SCHEDULE.  CONSULTANT shall provide the services
and deliver all work as described in CONSULTANT’s Proposal dated February 21, 2018 and 
attached hereto as Exhibit A.  If there is a conflict between the terms and conditions in this 
Agreement and CONSULTANT’s Proposal, the terms and conditions of this Agreement have 
priority and shall govern over any conflicting terms or conditions in the Proposal.  
CONSULTANT shall complete the Scope of Services and deliver work product as detailed on 
Exhibit A by August 29, 2018, unless an extension is granted in writing by CCDC.   

2. NOTICE TO PROCEED.  Services to be performed under this Agreement shall
commence upon execution of this Agreement as of the last date of signatures by both Parties. 

3. AMOUNT AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

(a) Amount and Method of Payment:  CCDC agrees to pay CONSULTANT 
for the Scope of Services performed under this Agreement a not to 
exceed amount of ONE HUNDRED SIXTY THOUSAND THREE 
HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE DOLLARS ($160,361.00), based on hourly 
rates and reimbursables.  Payment for reimbursable expenses shall be 
included in the not to exceed amount.    

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN 

Page 2 

(b) Reimbursable Expenses.  Reimbursable expenses shall include general out-of-
pocket expenses such as long-distance telephone charges, copying expenses, 
overnight or standard mailing expenses, travel-related expenses and the like, 
and shall be billed to CCDC separately at the actual cost to CONSULTANT with 
no mark-up.  The not-to-exceed amount of this agreement includes all 
reimbursable expenses. 

(c) Notice Required Prior to Overages.  CONSULTANT shall notify CCDC if 
CONSULTANT anticipates CONSULTANT’s charges for the Scope will 
exceed the not-to-exceed limit set for this Agreement.  CCDC will 
determine in its sole judgment if an amendment to the not-to-exceed limit 
is appropriate.  Any amendment shall be approved by CCDC in writing 
prior to the CONSULTANT incurring costs in excess of the not-to-exceed 
limit.   

(d) Invoices.  CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoices to CCDC for 
payment.  Monthly invoices shall be in a format acceptable to CCDC, and 
shall include the PO# 180069 on the invoice.  Each invoice shall specify 
charges as they relate to the tasks in the Scope of Services.  Each 
invoice shall also specify current billing and previous payments, with a 
total of cost incurred and payments made to date 

(e) Payment of Invoices.  All invoices shall be paid by CCDC within thirty (30) 
days of receipt of proper invoice, subject to Sections 3(f) and 19.  

(f) Correcting Deficiencies.  If a service or work product subject to a specific 
invoice does not meet the requirements of this Agreement as CCDC may 
reasonably determine, CCDC shall notify CONSULTANT in writing and 
identify specific deficiencies in the service or work product that do not 
meet the requirements.  CONSULTANT shall have seven (7) working 
days to correct or modify the service or work product to comply with the 
requirements of the Agreement as set forth in the CCDC’s written notice.  
If CCDC again reasonably determines the services or work product fails 
to meet the requirements, CCDC may withhold payment until deficiencies 
have been corrected to CCDC’s reasonable satisfaction or may terminate 
this Agreement for cause as set forth in Section 19 of this Agreement. 

4. RIGHT OF CONTROL.  CCDC agrees that it will have no right to control or direct
the details, manner, or means by which CONSULTANT accomplishes the results of the services 
performed hereunder.  CONSULTANT has no obligation to work any particular hours or days or 
any particular number of hours or days.  CONSULTANT agrees, however, that its other 
contracts and services shall not interfere with the performance of its services under this 
Agreement.  CCDC agrees to coordinate project schedules, respective commencements, and 
deadlines with CONSULTANT as needed. 

5. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT RELATIONSHIP.  CONSULTANT is an
independent CONSULTANT and is not an employee, servant, agent, partner, or joint venturer of 
CCDC.  CCDC shall determine the services and work products to be done by CONSULTANT, 
but CONSULTANT shall determine the legal means by which it accomplishes the services and 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN 
  Page 3 

 

work projects specified by CCDC.  This Agreement shall not be construed to create any 
employer-employee relationship between CCDC and CONSULTANT. 
 

6. DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED.  In performing the services required herein, 
CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any person on the basis of race, color, religion, 
sex, national origin or ancestry, age, or handicap.  Violation of this section shall constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement and be deemed grounds for cancellation, termination or 
suspension of the Agreement by CCDC, in whole or in part, and may result in ineligibility to 
perform additional services for CCDC.  
 

7. LICENSES AND LAW.  CONSULTANT represents that it possesses the 
requisite skill, knowledge, and experience necessary, as well as all licenses required to perform 
the services under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT further agrees to comply with all applicable 
laws, ordinances, and codes of Federal, State, and local governments in the performance of the 
services hereunder. 
 

8. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND AUDITS.  CONSULTANT shall maintain complete 
and accurate records with respect to costs incurred and manpower expended under this 
Agreement.  All such records shall be maintained according to generally accepted accounting 
principles, shall be clearly identified, and shall be readily accessible.  Such records shall be 
available for review by CCDC representatives for three (3) years after final payment.  Copies 
shall be made available upon request. 
 

9. FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL PAYROLL TAXES.  Neither federal, state or 
local income taxes, nor payroll taxes of any kind shall be withheld and paid by CCDC on behalf 
of CONSULTANT or the employees of CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT shall not be treated as 
an employee with respect to the services performed hereunder for federal or state tax purposes.   
 

10. FRINGE BENEFITS.  Because CONSULTANT is engaged in its own 
independently established business, CONSULTANT is not eligible for, and shall not participate 
in, any employee pension, health, or other fringe benefit plans of CCDC. 
 

11. EQUIPMENT, TOOLS, MATERIALS OR SUPPLIES.  CONSULTANT shall 
supply, at CONSULTANT’s sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials and/or supplies to 
accomplish the services and work product included in the Scope of Services.  
 

12. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS.  With the exception of computer models created by 
CONSULTANT, all other data, materials, reports, maps, graphics, tables, memoranda and other 
documents or products developed under this Agreement whether finished or not shall become 
the property of CCDC, shall be forwarded to CCDC at its request, and may be used by CCDC 
as it sees fit.  CCDC agrees that if it uses products prepared by CONSULTANT for purposes 
other than those intended in this Agreement, it does so at its sole risk and agrees to hold 
CONSULTANT harmless therefore. 
 

13. CONFIDENTIALITY.   
 

(a) CONSULTANT agrees to maintain confidentiality of all work products 
produced under this Agreement, including both interim and draft, 
materials, reports, maps, graphics, tables, memoranda and other 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN 
  Page 4 

 

documents, unless and until CCDC signifies its written approval that a 
work product may be published as final work product.  CCDC reserves 
the right to distribute a final work product as it sees fit, provided that 
CONSULTANT may use copies of any final work product in the marketing 
of its firm.  CONSULTANT may use interim and draft work products in the 
marketing of its firm only upon written authorization from CCDC. 
 

(b) CONSULTANT agrees that any property owner names and addresses 
received from CCDC shall only be used on behalf of CCDC and shall not 
be used to create, distribute, or sell mailing lists as provided in Idaho 
Code § 74-120.  CONSULTANT further agrees to maintain confidentiality 
of property owner names and addresses received for any purpose  and 
shall not use property owner names and addresses in any work product 
produced for CCDC except as authorized by CCDC.  
 

14. SUBCONSULTANTS.  CONSULTANT may propose to CCDC the use of 
subconsultants (“SUBCONSULTANTS”) for performance of a particular aspect of the services.  
CCDC shall have the right to approve the use of SUBCONSULTANTS and the amount and 
method of SUBCONSULTANTS’ compensation prior to commencement of any services by 
SUBCONSULTANTS, and such approval shall be in writing.  CCDC shall also determine 
whether the selection of SUBCONSULTANTS should be made through any required selection 
process or through a selection process CCDC deems in its best interest.  CCDC shall have the 
right to approve any change in the use of SUBCONSULTANTS.  Such changes in 
SUBCONSULTANTS shall be approved by CCDC in writing and shall not affect the amount of 
payment stated in the Agreement unless specifically authorized by CCDC in writing.  CCDC 
shall have no liability to SUBCONSULTANTS and CONSULTANT shall be responsible for 
services performed or work product produced by the SUBCONSULTANTS and payment to 
SUBCONSULTANTS.   
 

15. COORDINATION WITH OTHER CONSULTANTS.  CONSULTANT recognizes 
that CCDC has or may enter into agreements with other consultants.  Upon request, 
CONSULTANT agrees to coordinate with and work in conjunction with other Consultants when 
the need arises.   
 

16. STANDARD OF CARE.  CONSULTANT shall perform its services consistent 
with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by architects practicing in the same or 
similar locality under the same or similar circumstances.  The CONSULTANT shall perform its 
services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly 
progress of any services or work products performed under this Agreement.  
 

CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of any 
information furnished by CCDC, except in such circumstances that CONSULTANT should, in 
the exercise of reasonable care, consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily 
provided by consultants practicing under the same or similar circumstances, know the 
information to be incorrect, unreliable or incomplete.  CONSULTANT shall provide prompt 
notice to CCDC if CONSULTANT becomes aware of any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in 
such information.  

 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN 
  Page 5 

 

17. INDEMNIFICATION.  CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless CCDC and its officers, agents, and employees from and against all claims, losses, 
actions, or judgments for damages or injury to persons or property to the extent caused by the 
CONSULTANT’s negligence or intentionally wrongful acts during the performance of this 
Agreement by CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s agents, employees, or representatives.  In 
case any action or proceeding is brought against CCDC or its officers, agents or employees by 
reason of or arising out of connection with CONSULTANT’s negligence or intentionally wrongful 
acts during the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT, upon written notice from 
CCDC, shall at CONSULTANT’s expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding. 
 

18. INSURANCE.  Prior to commencing to provide services under this Agreement, 
CONSULTANT shall obtain at its sole cost and expense and thereafter maintain for the term of 
this Agreement, at least the minimum insurance coverages set forth below: 

 
(a) Worker’s compensation as required by applicable law or regulation.  If 

worker’s compensation insurance is not required under the 
circumstances, CONSULTANT shall provide proof to CCDC that such 
coverage is not required. 

 
(b) Commercial general liability insurance on an occurrence basis, not a 

claims made basis, with minimum coverage of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, and a minimum aggregate policy limit of $2,000,000.  The 
commercial general liability insurance policy shall name CCDC as an 
Additional Insured and protect its officers, agents and employees from 
and against any and all claims, losses, actions, and judgments for 
damages or injury to persons or property arising out of or in connection 
with the CONSULTANT’s negligence during the performance of this 
Agreement.   

 
(c) Professional liability insurance with minimum coverage of $1,000,000 per 

claim and a minimum aggregate policy limit of $1,000,000.  
 
(d) Employer’s liability insurance in the minimum amount required by 

applicable law or regulation.  
 

(e) CONSULTANT shall provide to CCDC proof of workers compensation 
and the insurance coverage as set forth above before commencing its 
performance as herein provided, and shall require insurer to notify CCDC 
ten (10) days prior to cancellation of any of these policies.  

 
 19. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. 

 
(a) FOR CAUSE.  If, through any cause, the CONSULTANT shall fail to fulfill 

its obligations in compliance with the schedule under this Agreement, or if 
the CONSULTANT shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or 
stipulations of this Agreement, CCDC shall thereupon have the right to 
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the CONSULTANT 
and specifying the effective date thereof at least fifteen (15) days before 
the effective date of such termination.  If this Agreement is terminated for 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN 
  Page 6 

 

cause, CONSULTANT shall be paid an amount for the actual services 
performed in accordance with this Agreement through the cancellation 
date.  CONSULTANT shall provide CCDC all work products generated 
prior to date of termination.  All work products generated, whether 
complete or not, are the property of CCDC, as set forth in Section 12 of 
this Agreement.   
 

(b) TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF CCDC.  CCDC may terminate 
this Agreement at any time, for any reason, by giving at least a fifteen 
(15) day notice in writing to the CONSULTANT.  If this Agreement is 
terminated by CCDC as provided herein, CONSULTANT shall be paid an 
amount for the actual services performed in accordance with this 
Agreement through the cancellation date.  Consultant shall also provide 
CCDC all work products of consulting generated to date of termination. 

 
20. DISPUTES.  In the event that a dispute arises between CCDC and the 

CONSULTANT regarding application or interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the 
aggrieved Party shall promptly notify the other Party to this Agreement of the dispute within ten 
(10) days after such dispute arises.  If the Parties shall have failed to resolve the dispute within 
thirty (30) days after delivery of such notice, the Parties may first endeavor to settle the dispute 
in an amicable manner by mediation.  If the Parties elect to mediate their dispute, the Parties 
will select a mediator by mutual agreement and agree to each pay half of the mediator’s costs 
and fees.  The mediation will take place in Boise, Idaho unless otherwise agreed by the Parties 
in writing.  Should the Parties be unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction within 
thirty (30) days after such completion of mediation, each Party shall have the right to pursue any 
rights or remedies it may have at law or in equity.  If the Parties do not mutually agree to 
mediate the dispute, either Party may pursue any rights or remedies it may have at law.   
 

21. ATTORNEY FEES.  Should any litigation or arbitration be commenced between 
the Parties hereto concerning this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled, in addition 
to any other relief as may be granted, to costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees as determined by 
arbitrator or court of competent jurisdiction.  This provision shall be deemed to be a separate 
contract between the Parties and shall survive any default, termination, or forfeiture of this 
Agreement.  

 
22. NONWAIVER.  Failure of either Party to exercise any of the rights under this 

Agreement, or breach thereof, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such right or a waiver of 
any subsequent breach.  

 
23. NOTICES.  Any and all notices required to be given by either of the Parties 

hereto, unless otherwise stated in this Agreement shall be in writing and be deemed 
communicated when delivered in person, by courier or mailed in the United States mail, 
certified, return receipt requested, addresses as follows:  

 
 
To CCDC: 

John Brunelle, Executive Director 
Capital City Development Corporation 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN 
  Page 7 

 

Boise, Idaho  83702 
208-384-4264 
jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com  

 
To CONSULTANT: 

Jason Butler, Principal 
CTA Architects Engineers 
800 W. Main St., Ste 800 
Boise, ID  83702 
208-336-4900 
jasonb@ctagroup.com  

 
Telephone numbers and email addresses are for convenience and not to be used for 

notices required to be in writing.  Informal notices and communication may be delivered in 
person or by telephone, mail, courier or email.  Either Party may, by written notice, change the 
address, telephone number and/or email address listed above.  

 
24. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT.  The Executive Director of 

CCDC, or his designee, shall be CCDC’s representative, and shall oversee and approve all 
services to be performed, coordinate all communications, review and approve all invoices, and 
carry out any and all tasks as may be required of CCDC under this Agreement. 

 
25. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  This Agreement shall begin on the date when both 

Parties have signed the Agreement (last date signed) and shall expire on December 31, 2018.  
The expiration date may be extended due to necessity or unforeseen circumstances if approved 
by CCDC in writing.  The Parties acknowledge and understand that nothing in this Agreement 
precludes CONSULTANT from responding to any Requests for Qualifications or Proposals for 
any additional services or work products contemplated by CCDC. 
 

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement, along with any and all Exhibits, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, contains the entire Agreement of the 
Parties and supersedes any and all other agreements or understandings, oral or written, 
whether previous to the execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.  This Agreement 
covers services or work products CONSULTANT has not completed, but does not cover 
services or work products that have been completed and CCDC has paid CONSULTANT’S fee. 
 

27. AMENDMENTS.  This Agreement may be amended only in writing, upon mutual 
agreement of both CCDC and CONSULTANT. 
 

28. ASSIGNMENT.  It is expressly agreed and understood by the Parties hereto, that 
CONSULTANT shall not have the right to assign, transfer, hypothecate, or sell any of its rights 
under this Agreement except upon the prior express written consent of CCDC.  

 
29. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts.  Such counterparts shall be deemed to be original instruments. Counterparts 
together shall constitute one (1) agreement.  

 
30. GOVERNING LAW.  Any dispute under this Agreement, or related to this 

Agreement, shall be decided in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho.  

mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com
mailto:jasonb@ctagroup.com
dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 
CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
SHORELINE URBAN FRAMEWORK PLAN 
  Page 8 

 

 
31. SEVERABILITY.  If any part of this Agreement is held unenforceable, the 

remaining portions of the Agreement will nevertheless remain in full force and effect.  
 

32. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be 
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereby, and their respective 
successors and assigns.  
 

33. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  CCDC and CONSULTANT are the only 
Parties to this Agreement.  The Parties do not intend that any non-party or third party will have 
any rights whatsoever under this Agreement.  

 
 

END OF AGREEMENT  
 
 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CCDC and CONSULTANT have executed this Agreement 

with an effective date as of the last date shown below. 
 
 
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.  CONSULTANT 
       CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
 
 
              
John Brunelle, Executive Director   Jason Butler, Principal-in-Charge 
 
Date:        Date:        
 
 
 
EXHIBITS 

A. CTA Proposal dated February 21, 2018 (18 pages) 
 

 

For CCDC Use 

Fund/District 101 

Account 5502 

PO# 180069 

Due Date August 29, 2018 

Term December 31 2018 

 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

http://www.ctagroup.com   E-mail: info@ctagroup.com 

February 21, 2018 

Doug Woodruff 
Capital City Development Corporation 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
Via email: DWoodruff@ccdcboise,com   

Re: Urban Renewal Planning- Shoreline District Urban Framework Plan 
 Boise, Idaho 

Dear Doug, 

CTA Architects Engineers is pleased to provide a proposal for urban planning services to assist 
CCDC and the City of Boise in developing the framework for the new Shoreline Urban Renewal 
District.  The district boundaries for the new Shoreline Urban Renewal District are described as 
follows:   

 The Shoreline District begins at the I-84 Connector at the northwestern boundary, 
Americana and River Street to the north, 9th/Capital Blvd on the east.  The district crosses the 
Boise River at the Capital boulevard bridge and continues south to University Drive on the 
South, turning west and extending along University drive to S. La Pointe Street. The boundary 
travels north along S. La Pointe Street to the Boise river including nearly the entire area known 
as the Boise Lusk District to the east of S. La Pointe Street to 9th/Capital Boulevard.  Once the 
boundary meets the Boise river, the boundary turns to the west and travels west along the river  
to include the river frontage, and the Boise greenbelt on the south side of the river terminating at 
the I-84 Connector. 

As long time residents of Boise, our firm is pleased to be a part of the new growth and 
development that the City is currently undergoing.  We look forward to working with you and 
your CCDC team on this important project. 

The following fee proposal includes the Scope of Services as outlined in the Urban Renewal 
Planning Shoreline District Urban Framework Request for Proposal.  The Scope of Services are 
as follows:  

 Phase 1:  Planning Context and Assessment
o Existing Plans, Policies, and Ordinances Review and Assessment
o Base Mapping
o Context Analysis, SWOT Assessment

 Phase 2:  Gap Analysis, Riverfront Values / District Goals

http://www.ctagroup.com/
kwanner
Text Box
EXHIBIT A

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Capital City Development Corporation 
February 21, 2018 
Page 2 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

o Gap Analysis (including:  Land Use, Transportation, Mobility, Design Standards, Open 

Space, Infrastructure) 
o Conceptual Site Planning and Design Standards – including plans, sections, 

diagrams, and 3D models of District and key nodes for improvement. 
o Internal Stakeholder Process 
o Public Open House 
o Board of Commissioners Informational Update 

  Phase 3:  District Frameworks, Public Improvements 
o Review Infrastructure Assessments 
o Public Improvements List, Cost Estimates 
o Framework Diagrams (development concept, mobility, streetscape, open space, utility). 
o Riverfront Urban Design Standards 
o Streetscape Standards 
o Conceptual Site Plan (Digitally illustrated) 

 Phase 4:  Final Document 
o Board of Commissioners Informational update 
o Preliminary Urban Framework Document 
o Internal Stakeholder Informational Update 
o CCDC Board Presentation and Approval 
o City Council Presentation 
o Final Framework Document 
 

CTA's proposed professional team includes the disciplines required for a project of this technical 
and sensitive nature. Our team includes the following disciplines and team members: 
 

Principal in Charge:  Jason Butler, AIA 
Project Manager:  Angela Hansen, PLA 
Urban Planner:  Dave Dixon, AICP 
Senior Land Planner/Designer:  Wes Baumgartner, PLA 
Landscape Architect in Training:  Jeff Gose 

 
What follows is a detail breakdown of our fee and final work products.  We look forward to 
discussing this proposal with you. Feel free to call or email me if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS 
 

 
 
Angela M. Hansen, PLA 
Project Manager 
 
cc: CTA File -  
  

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



February 21, 2018 (revised February 28, 2018) 
Page 1 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC), the City of Boise, and key project stakeholders 
are seeking a consultant to provide urban planning services in support for the newly proposed 
Shoreline Urban Renewal District located in the Southwestern area of downtown Boise.  The 
project will be comprised of four phases as listed below: 
 
 Phase  1:  Planning Context and Assessment 
 Phase  2:  Gap Analysis / Riverfront Values / District Goals 
 Phase  3:  District Frameworks, Public Improvements 
 Phase  4:   Final Document 

 
The outcomes from these four phase includes:  

1) Assess existing plans, policies, and ordinances effecting the study area.   
2) Provide an analysis of the gaps, overlaps, and deficiencies from the existing plans in the 

study area, 
3) Help the stakeholders of the project to set a priority of values for the river, clarify a vision 

for the district 
4) Provide design, and development standards and policy for the district 
5) Establish a list of physical improvements to be accomplished for the life of the district 
6) Coordination of work between all stakeholders, consultants and public partners 
7) Cost estimate for physical improvements within the district that informs the Urban 

Renewal Plan. 
 
Consultants for the Project:  
CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS (CTA) 
800 West Main Street 
Suite 800 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
208.336.4900 
 
Project management will be from our Boise office.  Our professional team will be led by the 
following key team members: 

Principal-in-Charge: Jason Butler, AIA 
Sr. Project Manager: Angela Hansen, PLA 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
CTA will provide the following professional services for the above Scope of Work: 
 Project Management (coordination of team, schedules, and work product) 

Urban Planning 
 Landscape Architecture 
 Graphic Illustration / Rendering 
  
Scope of Services 
CTA will assist CCDC, the city of Boise, and key stakeholders within the proposed Shoreline 
Urban Renewal District to prepare an urban framework document.  This document will function 
as a compendium of the City’s existing master plans, policies and urban design standards. The 
purpose of the framework will be to provide clarity, guidance and recommendations about the 
physical improvements to be built within the district.  It will include a specific list of public 
improvements that the Urban Renewal Plan shall complete over the lifetime of the district.  The 
final deliverables from this project will include graphics in the form of diagrams, plans, and 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



February 21, 2018 (revised February 28, 2018) 
Page 2 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

sections as well as a written document. The project will be completed through a series of four 
phases more fully described as 
  
Phase 1:  Planning Context and Assessment: 
 
The planning team will conduct a review of the previous work completed by the City of Boise.  
These documents include four key subject areas:  

 Guiding Documents 
 Master Plans 
 Vision Documents 
 Boise River Regulations 

Key outcomes from the document review are to: identify all initiatives/strategies relevant to the 
study area, sorting out discrepancies found between plans, identify physical gaps between plan 
areas, and identify policy gaps found in existing master plans. 
 
In conjunction with the document review, the planning team will prepare a study area map to 
include the entire study area and immediate adjacent context.   
 
Included in the mapping exercise will be the development of a digital 3D Sketch-up model to show 
current conditions within the study area and the area immediately adjacent to the proposed 
district.  
 
Working in conjunction with the eligibility report prepared by SB Friedman, the planning team will 
conduct a windshield survey and walking tour of the district in order to document existing 
conditions and prepare a written assessment of the physical characteristics of the district.  The 
basis of the written assessment will be on the previously prepared district eligibility report and be 
accompanied by diagrams depicting the study area context, including, existing and potential 
impacts and relationships between the study area, existing and future adjacent uses and activities 
around its perimeter.   
 
The consultant will present the assessment findings to a group of City and CCDC staff members. 
 
Deliverables: 
 

- Plans and Policies assessment report including a summary comparison chart 
- Study area base map  
- 3D Model showing current conditions within study area 
- Study Area Context Assessment 
- Site Analysis Map  
- Opportunities and Constraints Map  
- Presentation on Assessment Findings to client 

Phase  2:  Gap Analysis / Riverfront Values / District Goals 
 
2.1 Gap Analysis: 
The planning team will complete a gap analysis to review, compile/reconcile the various visions 
and goals associated with the study area into a singular vision and set of goals for the Shoreline 
URD.   The guiding documents supplied to the planning team to review are: 
 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



February 21, 2018 (revised February 28, 2018) 
Page 3 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

 Blueprint Boise 

 Transportation Action Plan  

 Downtown Parks and Public Spaces Master Plan, PDS – February, 2017  

 Master Plans 

 River Street Master Plan, PDS – July, 2017  

 Lusk Street Area Master Plan, PDS – December, 2013 

 Boise State University Master Plan 

 Ann Morrison Park Master Plan, Parks Dept. – November, 2016  

 Capitol Boulevard Plan 

 
Vision Documents 

 River Myrtle Urban Renewal Plan (for the de-annexing portion) 

 30th Street Urban Renewal Plan (for the de-annexing portion) 

 Shoreline Riverfront Concept Plan, CCDC (VIA) – January, 2018 

 Sports Park Development Proposal 

 City/Boise State University Lusk Development Proposal (pending) 

 Hormaechea development study 

 
Boise River Regulations 

 Boise River Resource Management and Master Plan, Parks Dept. – Dec, 2014  

 Boise River Riparian Corridor Stewardship Plan, ACOE – September, 2015  

 Boise Development Code 11-05-06. Waterways Overlay Districts  

 FEMA (not sure on specific docs) 

The planning team will review these documents for the analysis on the guiding principles, vision, 
and goals for the following community development topics: 
    

 Land use/Zoning 

 Transportation 

 Mobility (bicycle, pedestrian, transit) 

 Parking 

 Design Standards – road, streetscape, public/private interface 

 Open Space – type, ecology, connections, systems 

 Infrastructure/utilities 

 Sustainability (GSI, Geothermal, etc.) 

2.2 Base Mapping: 
In conjunction with the text describing the Gap Analysis, the team will prepare maps and 
diagrams to explain the conclusions and recommendations of the analysis.  
Results from the gap analysis will be incorporated by the planning team into early site planning 
concepts that will address key areas within the district to develop the design character and 
typology for how private development interfaces with the river. 
 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



February 21, 2018 (revised February 28, 2018) 
Page 4 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

These initial ideas and sketches are to aid in conversations and public outreach and 
presentations.   The planning team working in conjunction with CCDC will facilitate a series of 
stakeholder meetings in order to garner feedback and input on the Shoreline district.  
 
The planning team will prepare two conceptual plans for the district for discussion purposes. A 
Sketch-up model depicting current building massing, land use, and existing site amenities within 
the district will be developed.  The model will be utilized for discussion purposes as a part of the 
stakeholder meetings. 
 
2.3 Meetings: The following series of meetings are anticipated as a part of this fee proposal. 
 
Internal Stakeholders 
 
The Planning team will facilitate a minimum of three and no more than five work sessions with 
internal stakeholders including CCDC, and City of Boise to review the Gap Analysis, establish 
priorities, develop concepts, and make preliminary and final report presentations. 
 
Total number of Internal Stakeholder meetings:  5. 
 
External Stakeholders/Property Owners: 
 
The planning team will facilitate individual meetings with property owners within the project 
boundary, as well as conduct no more than three open house style meetings for the public to 
review the findings and recommendations of the gap analysis.   
 
Total number of External Stakeholder meetings:  9. 
 
CCDC Board of Commissioners: 
 
The planning team will incorporate the outcomes and findings from both the internal stakeholder 
and external stakeholder meetings into the gap analysis report.  The information gathered shall 
be incorporated into the plans, diagrams, and design typology for the district.  The planning 
team will provide periodic updates to the CCDC Board of Commissioners during regularly 
scheduled Board meetings.  The planning team anticipates one presentation to the CCDC 
Board of Commissioners during this phase of the project   
 
Total number of Informational Meetings with CCDC:  1. 
 
City Council:  
At each stage of feedback throughout Phase 2, the planning team will update the analysis and 
make the necessary revisions to the Gap Analysis report along with the supporting imagery 
including the conceptual site plans, diagrams, elevations, and maps that illustrate the future 
improvements for the district.  The final presentation for phase 2 to the City Council will be 
conducted during a regularly scheduled work session.   Feedback from the work session with 
the city council will be included as a part of the final Gap Analysis document.   
 
Total number of Informational meetings to Boise City Council:  1. 
 
 
 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



February 21, 2018 (revised February 28, 2018) 
Page 5 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

Deliverables: 
 

- Gap analysis written report and supporting diagrams and illustrations 
- Concept plans and recommendations about riverfront changes/improvements 
- Clear description of the district’s intent and goals 
- Internal and External Stakeholder meetings 
- Public Open House presentations 
- Informational Update Meetings to CCDC and Boise City Council. 

 
Phase 3:  District Frameworks, Public Improvements  
 
3.1 Consultant Assessment Review: 
In addition to the Urban Framework project that is inclusive of this proposal, additional analysis 
and assessments conducted by others contracted with CCDC to provide analysis throughout the 
Shoreline district, including but not limited to infrastructure, and real estate development will be 
incorporated into the Urban Framework report.  As a part of the Urban Framework document, 
the planning team will work in conjunction with CCDC and their consultants to review the 
infrastructure deficiency assessment as well as the real estate assessment.  The planning team 
will disseminate their findings into recommendations about the public infrastructure needs for 
the district.   
 
3.2 Public Improvements List: 
The Planning team will utilize the infrastructure needs to develop an improvements list. In 
addition to the infrastructure assessment, the list of improvements gathered from two other 
sources including:  1) the document review conducted during phase 1 and  
2) Stakeholder meetings and conceptual design work completed during phase two.  
 
From the list of public improvements identified throughout the district, the planning team will 
develop a cost estimate related to site improvements and landscape improvements to the extent 
that a rough order of magnitude is derived.  Infrastructure improvements for the district identified 
by the civil engineering consultant, including but not limited to roads, and underground utilities, 
will be estimated separately by the engineer on the project and supplied to the planning team to 
be included as a part of the overall district improvements. Working closely with CCDC and SB 
Friedman the planning team will revise the cost estimate to align with the Economic Feasibility 
Study for the district to ensure it meets the goals of the Feasibility Study.  
 
3.3 Framework Diagrams, Urban Design and Streetscape Standards:  
The planning team will develop a series of diagrams and illustrations that depict the extent of 
the public improvement projects within the district.  As well as to establish the typology for 
streetscapes, and urban design standards. Working from the basis of the previous master plans 
in the district, the planning team will develop recommendations and standards that work in 
unison with existing Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards.   
Anticipated diagrams for the following topics will be needed: 

 Preferred Development Concept Framework 
 Mobility Framework(s) (streets, paths, transit, bridges) 
 Streetscape Typology Framework (attached to Streetscape Standards) 
 Open Space Framework (public spaces existing and proposed found in MPs) 
 Utility Framework 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



February 21, 2018 (revised February 28, 2018) 
Page 6 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

The Shoreline District is unique in its interface with the Boise River.  The planning team will 
work to develop design standards to address this unique interface.  The team will work on a 
spectrum of design standards to include private investments interfaces with public property, 
standards for the greenbelt expansion, develop character and language for site furnishings and 
amenities as well as address standards for minimizing the impact to the river’s edge and the 
tree canopy.   
 
3.4 Riverfront Conceptual Site Plan 
Outcomes from the context assessment, stakeholder meetings, and the infrastructure 
assessment will be illustrated in a final conceptual site plan depicting the public improvements 
and development interface envisioned along the riverfront including both the north and south 
sides of the river and throughout key development nodes within the renewal district boundary.  
The planning team will develop an overall site plan digitally rendered along with five key areas 
enlarged for readability and further detail development.  Such detail will be expressed in plan 
and section. 
 
A total of two revisions are anticipated as a part of the conceptual site plan design process.  Any 
additional revisions will be considered additional services and negotiated separate from this 
contract. 
 
3.5 3D Illustrations, Development Build-out Vision 
The planning team will develop a full 3D model of the district and illustrate the potential buildout 
for the full district.  The team will provide up to five (5) digitally rendered 3D illustrations of key 
aspects of the district.  Final illustrations will represent the private investment forecasted in the 
Economic Feasibility Study as well as the public improvements envisioned for the district. 
 
A total of two revisions within the model is anticipated as a part of phase three.  Any additional 
revisions beyond what is described here will be considered additional services and negotiated 
separate from this contract. 
  
Deliverables: 
 

- Public improvements list and probable costs 
- Framework Diagrams of the public improvements, existing master plans 
- Riverfront urban design standards 
- Streetscape standards 
- Riverfront illustrated conceptual plans (no more than two revisions) 
- 3D illustrations of key features of the district (no more than two revisions) 

  

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



February 21, 2018 (revised February 28, 2018) 
Page 7 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

Phase 4  Final Document 
 
4.1 Board of Commissioners Informational Update 
The planning team will prepare and present the findings to date to the CCDC Board of 
Commissioners during regularly scheduled Board meeting.  Outcomes from the presentation will 
be documented and incorporated into the preliminary Framework Document as required.  
 
CTA will provide 5 preliminary documents as a part of the Internal Stakeholder update 
presentation 
 
4.2 Preliminary Urban Framework Document 
The planning team will prepare a preliminary Urban Framework document.  The draft document 
will contain information from legal, SB Friedman, engineers, and others. This task will include: 

 Preparing a document outline, discuss with CCDC the format and technology of 
document. 

 Drafting text and compile the graphics necessary to illustrate the intentions of the 
urban framework.   

 Coordinating with consultant team members in creating a cross-referenced and 
comprehensive document.   

 Preparing refined urban framework diagrams.  Large format prints on presentation 
boards as needed. 

 
4.3 Internal Stakeholder Informational Update 
The consultant will facilitate an agency coordination work session to present the preliminary 
document. The input received will be documented and incorporated into the final document, as 
required.  
 
CTA will provide 5 preliminary documents as a part of the Internal Stakeholder update 
presentation. 

 
4.4 Obtain CCDC Board Approval  
Our planning team will prepare and present the final document to the CCDC Board of 
Commissioners during regularly scheduled Board meeting (occur second Monday each month).    
 
CTA will provide 5 Draft Final documents as a part of the CCDC Board Approval update 
presentation 

 
4.5 Open (City Council Presentation – TBD) 

 
4.6 Final Urban Framework document for adoption 
The consultant will revise the final Shoreline District Urban Framework document per the 
directives of CCDC staff, CCDC Board of Commissioners (and possibly the City Council - TBD) 
and provide a final digital PDF Urban Framework document to the CCDC.  
 
CTA will provide 5 final documents as a part of the final document preparation. Additionally, 
CTA will provide a print ready digital file for further reproduction by the client. 

 

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



February 21, 2018 (revised February 28, 2018) 
Page 8 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

Deliverables: 
 

- Final Urban Framework Document  
- High resolution presentation boards featuring plan views  
- Deliver in PDF format 
- Include working files in native format 

 
PROFESSIONAL FEES 
 

Urban Framework Plan  
- Phase 1:  Planning Context and Assessment  $  5,732.00 
- Phase 2:  Gap Analysis / Riverfront Values $60,610.00 
- Phase 3:  District Frameworks $40,620.00 
- Phase 4:  Final Documents $40,832.00 
- Travel Expense $9,551.00 
- Printing Expense $  3,051.96 
Total Services Not to Exceed $160,360.96 
  

 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
An allowance for reimbursable expenses (listed above) has been estimated based on the size 
and scope of the project.   Reimbursable expenses include travel (airfare, auto rental, mileage / 
fuel, lodging, meals, printing, copying, and postage).  Only the expenses incurred will be billed.  
All reimbursable expenses will be billed at 1.05 percent of their actual cost. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
This proposal is based upon the following provisions: 

 CCDC and the City of Boise shall provide all relevant studies, reports, and/or 
ordinances for the planning team. 

 CCDC will assist in coordination of stakeholder meetings; provide meeting locations, 
invitations and accommodations. 

 Printed documents for review are limited in number.  Additional printing outside 
number specified in proposal will be charged on a per item basis. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
This proposal is based upon prompt Owner review of and response to the submittals as shown 
above. The Owner acknowledges that Owner-generated changes in the schedule and scope of 
the project may result in modifications of the associated professional fees. CTA will inform 
owner of changes in scope and schedule that require modification to the fees and will obtain 
written approval prior to conducting the additional services. Proposed design schedule is 
attached. 
  

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



February 21, 2018 (revised February 28, 2018) 
Page 9 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 

q:\boise\nbd\2018\government\city of boise planning\ccdc-shoreline district\example proposal\ccdc fee proposal 022818(revised).docx 

 
 
Thank you for this opportunity. We are looking forward to providing you with the planning 
services for this project. If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at 
208.577.5657 or angelah@ctagroup.com 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
02.28.2018 

   

Signature Date  Signature Date 
     
Angela M. Hansen     
Name (Printed)   Name (Printed)  

 

kwanner
Text Box
Signatures appear on Professional Services Agreement

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Ci
ty

 o
f B

oi
se

 - 
Co

mp
re

he
ns

ive
 P

lan
ni

ng

PDS  -  Comprehensive Planning DivisionParcels within the proposed Shoreline Urban Renewal District

City of Boise

October 23, 2017
N:\Workspaces\PDS\CompPlan\Projects\ShorelineDistrict\CCDCShorelineParcels.mxd

0 0.1 0.2
Miles

Legend
Parcels

30th Street Parcels
River-Myrtle/Old Boise Parcels

Urban Renewal District
30th Street
River-Myrtle/Old Boise
Proposed Shoreline
Major Water Features

[
*

Americana Blvd

Cap
itol

 Blv
dLa
tah

 St

9th
 St

River St

13t
h S

t

15t
h S

t

11t
h S

t

Myrtle St

Lus
k S

t

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



FEE PROPOSAL
CTA Architects Engineers
Boise, ID

http://www.ctagroup.com   e-mail:  info@ctagroup.com

SECTION A.  DIRECT LABOR COSTS

SPECIALISTS JOB TITLES HOURS RATES AMOUNTS SUB TOTALS TOTALS

PROJECT Architectural Principal

MANAGEMENT Engineering Principal

& COORDINATION Project Manager Senior 59 136.00 8,024.00

Project Manager 

8,024.00$         

ARCHITECTURAL Architectural Senior

Architectural

Architectural Production

-$                 

LANDSCAPE Landscape Architect Senior 348 160.00 55,680.00

ARCHITECTURE Landscape Architect 268 65.00 17,420.00

73,100.00$       

PLANNER Planner Senior

Planner 565 118.00 66,670.00

66,670.00$       

INTERIOR DESIGN Interior Designer Senior

Interior Designer

-$                 

STRUCTURAL Engineering - Structural Senior

Engineering - Structural

Engineering - Production

-$                 

MECHANICAL Engineering - Mechanical Senior

Engineering - Mechanical

Engineering - Production

-$                 

REFRIGERATION Engineering - Refrigeration Senior

Engineering - Refrigeration

Engineering - Production

-$                 

ELECTRICAL Engineering - Electrical Senior

Engineering - Electrical

Engineering - Production

-$                 

CIVIL Engineering - Civil Senior

Engineering - Civil

Engineering - Production

-$                 

OTHER SERVICES

-$                 

SUPPORT Project Coordinator

Administrative Assistant

Graphics Designer

-$                 

TOTAL HOURS 1240 147,794.00$             A.

SECTION B. CONSULTANTS

B1. -$                 

B2. -$                 

B3. -$                 

-$                          B.

SECTION C. OTHER DIRECT COSTS

C1. PRINTING 3,051.96$         

C2. TRAVEL AND PER DIEM 9,515.00$         

C3. TELEPHONE, FAX

C4. POSTAGE, DELIVERY

C5. PHOTOGRAPHY, FILM

C6. BASIC WEBSITE (check with graphics for fee estimate)

12,566.96$               C.

I.  TOTAL COST TO CLIENT 160,360.96$             

THIS DESIGN STAGE

2/21/2018

PREPARED BY (Signature & Title)

Phase 1-4
CCDC_ShoreCTA FILE NAME:

DATE:

PROJECT NAME:
DESIGN STAGE:

02.21.2018

CCDC_Shoreline

Q:\Boise\NBD\2018\Government\City of Boise Planning\CCDC-Shoreline District\Example Proposal\CCDC Shoreline Fee Proposal Worksheet Fee Proposal v04.22.2013

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



cell c5 thru f5 is a pulldown menu yellow shaded cells require manual input Type the names of "other services"  needed for the project as you want them to appear.

CTA Architects Engineers DATE:
PROJECT NAME: CCDC_Shoreline

DESIGN STAGE: Phase 1-4

http://www.ctagroup.com   e-mail:  info@ctagroup.com CTA FILE NAME: CCDC_Shore

Management Architectural Planner Structural TOTAL

 NO DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

Arch. 

Princ.

Eng. 

Princ. PM Sr. PM Arch. Sr. Arch.

Arch. 

Prod.
Land. 

Arch. Sr.

Land. 

Arch.

Planner 

Sr. Planner

Int. Des. 

Sr. Int. Des.

Struct. 

Sr.

Struct. 

Eng.

Eng. 

Prod. Mech. Sr. Mech.

Eng. 

Prod. Ref. Sr. Ref.

Eng. 

Prod. Elect. Sr. Elect.

Eng. 

Prod. Civil Sr. Civil

Eng. 

Prod.

Proj. 

Coord.

Admin. 

Assist

Graphic 

Design HOURS

1

Phase One:  Planning Context and 
Assessment

2

Data Collection plan, Policy, ordinance, and 
development proposal review 1.0 8.0 9.0

3 Study Area SWOT including diagram 16.0 16.0 32.0

4

 Assessment Presentation including presentation 
prep. (via webex) 2.0 10.0 12.0

5 Meeting Minutes 2.0 2.0

6

Phase Two:  Gap Analysis, Riverfront Values 
and District Goals

7 Gap Analysis 60.0 40.0 100.0

8 Base mapping and Sketchup Modeling 40.0 32.0 72.0

9

Internal Stakeholder Meetings Maximum of 5 
meetings over 3 days 12.0 12.0 12.0 36.0

10 Meeting Minutes 2.0 2.0

11

Travel time for internal stakeholder meetings 
(Designer and Planner) 8.0 6.0 14.0

12

Preliminary Riverfront Site Plan Concepts, Design 
Standards 80.0 60.0 140.0

13

CCDC /City of Boise Presentation re: Outcomes 
from Stakeholder meetings including presentation 
prep (via webex) 1.0 1.0 12.0 14.0

14 Meeting Minutes 2.0 2.0

15

Site Plan Concept and Design Standards 
Revisions per Stakeholder and CCDC comments 4.0 20.0 20.0 44.0

16 Travel Time  Public Open House 8.0 6.0 14.0

17 Public Open House 3.0 3.0 3.0 9.0

18 Travel Time Board of Commissioners Update 6.0 6.0

19 Board of Commissioners Update 2.0 2.0 4.0

20 Meeting Minutes 2.0 2.0

21

Phase Three:  District Frameworks, Public 
Improvements

22

Document Review of Infrastructure Assessment - 
Provide Recommendations 2.0 8.0 12.0 22.0

23

Public Improvements Projects List and Cost 
Estimates 32.0 8.0 40.0

24

Framework Diagrams including preferred 
development concepts, mobility, streetscape 
typology, open space and utility framework 32.0 16.0 48.0

25

Graphic Illustrations including 3D Modeling for 
framework diagrams 120.0 120.0

26 Riverfront Urban Design Standards 32.0 32.0

27 Streetscape Design Standards 32.0 32.0

28 Riverfront Conceptual Site Plan 40.0 40.0

29 Travel Time Internal Stakeholder review meeting 8.0 6.0 14.0

30

CCDC / City of Boise Internal Stakeholder 
Meeting to review design standards 2.0 12.0 12.0 26.0

31 Meeting Minutes 2.0 2.0

32 Phase Four:  Final Document

33

Refinement per CCDC/City of Boise Internal 
Stakeholder review meeting 40.0 40.0 40.0 120.0

34

Travel time for Board of Commissioners Update 
Meeting 6.0 6.0

35 Board of Commissioners Update 2.0 2.0 4.0

36 Meeting Minutes 2.0 2.0

37 Preliminary Urban Framework Document
38 Compile Urban Framework Document 60.0 60.0

39

CCDC/City of Boise Draft Document Review 
Period

40 Revisions by planning team 20.0 32.0 52.0

41 Travel Time for Internal Stakeholder meetings 6.0 14.0

DETAIL

Boise, ID

Interiors Mechanical Refrigeration

02.21.2018

Electrical Civil SupportLandscape Other Services

CCDC Shoreline Fee Proposal Worksheet

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



CTA Architects Engineers DATE:
PROJECT NAME: CCDC_Shoreline

DESIGN STAGE: Phase 1-4

http://www.ctagroup.com   e-mail:  info@ctagroup.com CTA FILE NAME: CCDC_Shore

Management Architectural Planner Structural TOTAL

 NO DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

Arch. 

Princ.

Eng. 

Princ. PM Sr. PM Arch. Sr. Arch.

Arch. 

Prod.
Land. 

Arch. Sr.

Land. 

Arch.

Planner 

Sr. Planner

Int. Des. 

Sr. Int. Des.

Struct. 

Sr.

Struct. 

Eng.

Eng. 

Prod. Mech. Sr. Mech.

Eng. 

Prod. Ref. Sr. Ref.

Eng. 

Prod. Elect. Sr. Elect.

Eng. 

Prod. Civil Sr. Civil

Eng. 

Prod.

Proj. 

Coord.

Admin. 

Assist

Graphic 

Design HOURS

DETAIL

Boise, ID

Interiors Mechanical Refrigeration

02.21.2018

Electrical Civil SupportLandscape Other Services

42

Internal Stakeholder Meeting - present final draft 
document 2.0 12.0 2.0

43 Meeting Minutes 2.0 6.0

44

Travel time for Board of Commissioners Update 
Meeting 6.0 6.0

45 CCDC Board Presentation/Approval 2.0 2.0 4.0

46 Travel Time  for City Council Presentation 6.0 6.0

47 City Council Presentation 2.0 2.0 4.0

48 Final Document 8.0 16.0 40.0 64.0

58

TOTAL MAN HOURS PER TYPE -       -       59        -       -       -       -       348      268      -       565      -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       1,240.0

CCDC Shoreline Fee Proposal Worksheet

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



TRAVEL AND PER DIEM BACKUP
CTA Architects Engineers
Boise, ID

http://www.ctagroup.com   e-mail:  info@ctagroup.com

Rental Car (midsize) Days x 70.00$          = -$           
Rental Truck/SUV Days x 115.00$        = -$           
Rental Car Gas Miles x 0.30$            = -$           
Personal Car Miles x 0.545$          = -$           
Commercial Air 11 Each x 550.00$        = 6,050.00$   
Charter Air Each x = -$           
Per Diem - Day* 18 Days x 55.00$          = 990.00$      
Per Diem - Overnight* 15 Nights x 165.00$        = 2,475.00$   
Misc. Expenses x = -$           

TOTAL OF TRIP #1 = 9,515.00$   

Rental Car (midsize) Days x 70.00$          = -$           
Rental Truck/SUV Days x 115.00$        = -$           
Rental Car Gas Miles x 0.30$            = -$           
Personal Car Miles x 0.545$          = -$           
Commercial Air Each x = -$           
Charter Air Each x = -$           
Per Diem - Day* Days x 55.00$          = -$           
Per Diem - Overnight* Nights x 165.00$        = -$           
Misc. Expenses x = -$           

TOTAL OF TRIP #2 = -$           

Rental Car (midsize) Days x 70.00$          = -$           
Rental Truck/SUV Days x 115.00$        = -$           
Rental Car Gas Miles x 0.30$            = -$           
Personal Car Miles x 0.545$          = -$           
Commercial Air Each x = -$           
Charter Air Each x = -$           
Per Diem - Day* Days x 55.00$          = -$           
Per Diem - Overnight* Nights x 165.00$        = -$           
Misc. Expenses x = -$           

TOTAL OF TRIP #3 = -$           

Rental Car (midsize) Days x 70.00$          = -$           
Rental Truck/SUV Days x 115.00$        = -$           
Rental Car Gas Miles x 0.30$            = -$           
Personal Car Miles x 0.545$          = -$           
Commercial Air Each x = -$           
Charter Air Each x = -$           
Per Diem - Day* Days x 55.00$          = -$           
Per Diem - Overnight* Nights x 165.00$        = -$           
Misc. Expenses x = -$           

TOTAL OF TRIP #4 = -$           

TOTAL OF TRIPS #1, #2, #3 & #4 = 9,515.00$   

*use website link below to lookup applicable GSA per diem rates for location needed

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/110007

02.21.2018
CCDC_Shoreline
Phase 1-4
CCDC_Shore

DATE:
PROJECT NAME:
DESIGN STAGE:
CTA FILE NAME:

CCDC Shoreline Fee Proposal Worksheet

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/110007
dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



NOTICE TO USER - These costs are broken out by High and Low Volume.
Hide or delete the one you do not want. Revision: 1/29/18 Expiration: 1/31/19
REIMBURSABLE PRINTING EXPENSES

CTA Architects Engineers 02.21.2018

Boise, ID CCDC_Shoreline
Phase 1-4

http://www.ctagroup.com   e-mail:  info@ctagroup.com CCDC_Shore

PLOTTING - BILLINGS OFFICE
Square Feet Total No. Total No. Billing Rate

BILLED BY SQ FT Per Sheet of Sheets of Square Feet Per Sq Ft Total
Paper 18x24 3.00           X = -             X 0.40$   = -$               
Paper 24x36 6.00           X = -             X 0.40$   = -$               
Paper 30x42 8.75           X = -             X 0.40$   = -$               
Paper 36x48 12.00         X = -             X 0.40$   = -$               

FULL SIZE PLOTS - OFFICES OTHER THAN BILLINGS
LOW VOLUME No. of Sheets No. of Total No. Billing Rate
(600 Copies or Less) Per Set Sets of Sheets Per Sheet Total
Paper 18x24 X = -             X 1.08$   = -$               
Paper 24x36 100 X 2 = 200.00       X 2.16$   = 432.00$         
Paper 30x42 X = -             X 3.24$   = -$               
Paper 36x48 X = -             X 4.32$   = -$               
HIGH VOLUME No. of Sheets No. of Total No. Billing Rate
( 600 + Copies) Per Set Sets of Sheets Per Sheet Total
Paper 18x24 X = -             X 0.86$   = -$               
Paper 24x36 X = -             X 1.73$   = -$               
Paper 30x42 X = -             X 2.59$   = -$               
Paper 36x48 X = -             X 3.46$   = -$               

PHOTOCOPIES
LOW VOLUME No. of Sheets No. of Total No. Billing Rate
(600 Copies or Less) Per Set Sets of Sheets Per Sheet Total
8-1/2 x 11 100 X 20 = 2,000.00    X 0.11$   = 220.00$         
11 x 17 X = -             X 0.23$   = -$               
HIGH VOLUME No. of Sheets No. of Total No. Billing Rate
( 600 + Copies) Per Set Sets of Sheets Per Sheet Total
8-1/2 x 11 X = -             X 0.09$   = -$               
11 x 17 X = -             X 0.23$   = -$               

COLOR COPIES
8-1/2 x 11 20 X 20 = 400.00       X 0.32$   = 126.00$         
11 x 17 X = -             X 0.90$   = -$               
24 x 36 20 X 16 = 320.00       X 6.75$   = 2,160.00$      
Print and laminate to foam 
core--$86.71 to $116.71 
depending on size.  Check 
with graphics. X = -             X = -$               

BINDING
No. of Books No. of Total No. Billing Rate

Per Set Sets of Books Per Book Total
Card Stock Covers

8-1/2 x 11 5 X 5 = 25.00         X 0.18$   = 4.50$              
11 x 17 (ck with graphics) X = -             X = -$               

Tabs
Per Book (est 10 per bk) X = -             X 3.15$   = -$               

Assembling/Handling - Comb Binder Included
8-1/2 x 11 5 X 5 = 25.00         X 4.38$   = 109.46$         
11 x 17 (ck with graphics) X = -             X = -$               
Full Size Drawings (ck with PM) X = -             X = -$               

3-Ring Binders
1/2 Inch X = -             X 5.55$   = -$               
1 Inch X = -             X 5.77$   = -$               
1-1/2 Inches X = -             X 6.66$   = -$               
2 Inches X = -             X 7.50$   = -$               
2-1/2 Inches X = -             X 10.07$ = -$               
3 Inches X = -             X 10.85$ = -$               

TOTAL COST FOR PRINTING = 3,051.96$      

Travel, Per Diem, Postage & Delivery, Long Distance Phone & Fax,
Film/Developing, Direct Project Supplies (Models, etc.) to be billed
at CTA cost + 5%.

DATE:
PROJECT NAME:
DESIGN STAGE:
CTA FILE NAME:

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



�� � � � � � �

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



ARCHITECTURAL Min Max

Architectural Production............................................................................ 62.00$     117.00$    

Architectural.............................................................................................. 75.00$     113.00$    

Architectural Senior................................................................................... 98.00$     186.00$    

Project Manager........................................................................................ 99.00$     144.00$    

Project Manager Senior............................................................................. 136.00$    169.00$    

Landscape Architect.................................................................................. 65.00$     102.00$    

Landscape Architect Senior...................................................................... 126.00$    160.00$    

Planner...................................................................................................... 106.00$    130.00$    

Interior Designer........................................................................................ 60.00$     81.00$     

Interior Designer Senior............................................................................ 85.00$     155.00$    

Architectural Principal................................................................................ 161.00$    286.00$    

ENGINEERING

Engineering Production Civil..................................................................... 74.00$     87.00$     

Engineering Civil....................................................................................... 82.00$     110.00$    

Engineering Civil Senior............................................................................ 124.00$    167.00$    

Engineering Production Structural............................................................. 60.00$     103.00$    

Engineering Structural............................................................................... 104.00$    126.00$    

Engineering Structural Senior................................................................... 133.00$    165.00$    

Engineering Production Electrical.............................................................. 57.00$     119.00$    

Engineering Electrical................................................................................ 91.00$     152.00$    

Engineering Electrical Senior.................................................................... 117.00$    213.00$    

Engineering Production Mechanical.......................................................... 51.00$     102.00$    

Engineering Mechanical............................................................................ 81.00$     152.00$    

Engineering Mechanical Senior................................................................. 115.00$    214.00$    

Engineering Production Refrigeration........................................................ 35.00$     83.00$     

Engineering Refrigeration.......................................................................... 76.00$     104.00$    

Engineering Refrigeration Senior.............................................................. 106.00$    185.00$    

Engineering Principal................................................................................ 178.00$    235.00$    

SUPPORT

Project Coordinator................................................................................... 60.00$     78.00$     

Administrative Assistant............................................................................ 46.00$     79.00$     

Graphic Designer...................................................................................... 72.00$     136.00$    

dwoodruff
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 Page 1 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 
 

Agenda Subject: 
Contract Award for 2018 Power Undergrounding Project 

Date: 
March 12, 2018 

Staff Contact: 
Kathy Wanner 
Contracts Specialist 
 

Attachments: 
A:  Resolution No. 1538 
B:  Bid Results 
C:  Bid Received from Anderson & Wood Construction Co., Inc. 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1538 awarding the contract for the Power Line Relocation:  Main & Idaho 
Alley | 3rd to 5th Street project to Anderson & Wood Construction Co., Inc. 

 

Background: 

The Board of Commissioners approved the improvement of the three alleys between City Hall 
and the Old Assay Office with the adoption of the 2017-2021 Capital Improvements Plan in 
August 2016. This effort supports the Downtown Parks and Public Spaces Plan, which identified 
this series of alleys and a public space to be improved. The effort also leverages previous and 
ongoing private investments and developments in and along the alleys: 5th & Idaho Apartments 
($12M); the Paulsen Building renovation ($1M); the Brownfield’s renovation ($2.2M); and two 
public ACHD green stormwater alley projects ($300K for both) — all totaling more than $15M. 
 
Utilities in the alley between 5th and 6th Streets were installed underground in Spring 2017 by the 
developer of the 5th & Idaho Apartments as part of a Type 4 Participation Agreement with the 
Agency. In July 2017, the Board approved Resolution #1497 approving an agreement with 
Idaho Power to replace the overhead primary power lines and pole-mounted transformers with 
underground primary lines and surface-mounted transformers, and to remove all poles in the 
alley between Main and Idaho streets, from 3rd to 5th Street. The approval of this bid is the third 
and final CCDC-funded portion of the alley project. This project will replace the overhead 
service and telecommunication lines to individual customers with underground lines and modify 
service panels and building services as necessary to transform the alley.    
 
The Agency has worked with property owners and stakeholders in the alley between Main and 
Idaho streets from 3rd to 5th Street to obtain the necessary easements.  The Agency will 
continue to work with owners and tenants to minimize project-related disruptions. By 
collaborating with other agencies, including Idaho Power and ACHD, the Agency will help 
transform the alley into a non-traditional public space.  ACHD will continue its Green Stormwater 
program this summer in the alley between 4th & 5th streets with the replacement of concrete and 
asphalt with permeable pavers. 
 
Agency on-call engineering firm, Musgrove Engineering, has been assisting with the design, bid 
specifications, and plans, and will continue with construction administration services through the 



 Page 2 

completion of this project.  Construction will commence this spring in coordination with the 
ACHD 2018 Green Stormwater Project in the same alley. 
 
 
Bidding Requirements: 
State law requires a formal, sealed bid process for public works construction projects exceeding 
$200,000 and selection of the lowest responsive bidder.  The Agency advertised an Invitation to 
Bid for the Power Line Relocation: Main & Idaho Alley | 3rd to 5th Street Project in the Idaho 
Statesman on January 24 and January 31, 2018.  In an effort to receive as many competitive 
bids as possible, a notice also was emailed to the plan rooms at the Idaho Association of 
General Contractors (AGC) and Idaho Blueprint as well as eighteen separate electrical 
contractors holding the requisite public works license.  A non-mandatory pre-bid meeting was 
held at the alley site location on February 7, 2018.  Two (2) contractors attended the pre-bid 
meeting. 
 
One bid was received by the February 22, 2018, deadline: 
 

COMPANY BID RECEIVED 

Anderson & Wood Construction Co., Inc. $328,767.90 

 
The Anderson & Wood Construction Co., Inc. bid met all the administrative requirements of the 
bidding and licensing process and is the qualified bidder submitting the lowest responsive bid 
for this project. 
 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
The Agency’s FY2018 budget includes sufficient funding for this project.   
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners adopt Resolution No. 1538 recognizing 
Anderson & Wood Construction Co., Inc. as the lowest responsive bidder, awarding the Power 
Line Relocation: Main & Idaho Alley | 3rd To 5th Street Project contract to Anderson & Wood 
Construction Co., Inc. for the total Base Bid amount of $328,767.90, and authorizing the 
Executive Director to negotiate and execute the contract and to expend funds as set forth in the 
resolution. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1538 recognizing Anderson & Wood Construction Co., Inc. as 
the lowest responsive bidder, awarding the Power Line Relocation: Main & Idaho Alley | 3rd To 
5th Street Project contract to Anderson & Wood Construction Co., Inc. for the total Base Bid 
amount of $328,767.90, and authorizing the Executive Director to negotiate and execute the 
contract and to expend funds as set forth in the resolution. 
   

 

  



 Page 3 

Attachment A 
 

Resolution No. 1538 

 
( Begins on the following page. ) 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 1538  Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1538 
 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
FINDING ANDERSON & WOOD CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. IS 
THE LOWEST QUALIFIED BIDDER FOR THE POWER LINE 
RELOCATION:  MAIN & IDAHO ALLEY | 3rd to 5th STREET 
PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE A PUBLIC WORKS 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH ANDERSON & WOOD 
CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. FOR THE POWER LINE 
RELOCATION:  MAIN & IDAHO ALLEY | 3rd to 5th STREET 
PROJECT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 THIS RESOLUTION, is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, chapter 20, title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning 
urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the “Agency.” 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Boise, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly published, conducted a 
public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street Plan”), 
and following said public hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on December 6, 
1994, approving the River Street Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project 
(annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor Parcels) and Renamed 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); and, 
 

WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6362 on 
November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making certain findings; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency seeks to encourage economic development by assisting with 

infrastructure and public facility improvements; and, 
 

WHEREAS, in an effort to improve downtown alleys as non-traditional public spaces in 
general and the alleys between Boise City Hall and the Old Assay office in particular, the 
electrical transmission lines located in the alley from 3rd Street to 6th Street between Main Street 
and Idaho Street must be undergrounded for both public safety and aesthetics reasons; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency adopted Resolution # 1458 on August 24, 2016, approving the 
2017-2021 Capital Improvements Plan which included the improvement of three alleys from 6th 
Street to 3rd Street between Main Street and Idaho Streets; and,  
 

kwanner
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A



RESOLUTION NO. 1538  Page 2 

 WHEREAS, the Agency adopted Resolution # 1475 on March 6, 2017, approving 
Amendment 1 to the Type 4 Participation Agreement with the developer of the 5th & Idaho 
Apartments which includes the work to underground the electrical transmission lines in the alley 
from 6th Street to 5th Street between Main Street and Idaho Street; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency adopted Resolution # 1497 on July 10, 2017, approving an 
agreement with Idaho Power to replace the overhead primary electrical transmission lines and 
pole-mounted transformers with underground facilities in the alley from 3rd Street to 5th Street 
between Main Street and Idaho Street; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency will complete the improvements in the alley from 3rd Street to 5th 
between Main Street and Idaho Street by replacing the overhead service and 
telecommunication lines to individual customers with underground lines, modified service 
panels, and building services as necessary to transform the alley; and,  
  
 WHEREAS, the Agency is required to comply with the competitive bidding provisions of 
chapter 28, title 67, Idaho Code, in its procurement of public works construction; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-2805 provides for a competitive sealed bidding process for 
procurement of public works construction valued in excess of $200,000; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Agency issued an Invitation to Bid for the Power Line Relocation:  Main 

& Idaho Alley | 3rd to 5th Street on January 24, 2018, and published the requisite public notice of 
the Invitation to Bid in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on January 24 and 31, 2018; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Agency’s Invitation to Bid set forth specific bidding procedures and 
specifications that the Agency considered to be in its best interest and critical to its ability to 
receive the exact services sought to be procured, including a non-mandatory pre-bid meeting 
and site tour, submission of a sealed bid by a licensed public works contractor, a bid bond, and 
an affidavit concerning taxes; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Agency conducted a non-mandatory pre-bid meeting and site tour on 

February 7, 2018, which was attended by two (2) licensed contractors; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency received one (1) sealed bid by the due date and time of 
3:00 p.m. on February 22, 2018; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the bid received from Anderson & Wood Construction Co., Inc. for the 
amount of THREE HUNDRED TWENTY EIGHT THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED SIXTY 
SEVEN AND 90/100 DOLLARS ($328,767.90) was the lowest responsive bid from a qualified 
bidder; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Agency staff recommends to the Board that the contract award for the 

Power Line Relocation:  Main & Idaho Alley | 3rd to 5th Street be made to Anderson & Wood 
Construction Co., Inc. as the lowest responsive bidder. 

 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1538  Page 3 

 
 Section 2: That the Board hereby finds that Anderson & Wood Construction Co., Inc. 
was the qualified bidder submitting the lowest responsive bid for the Power Line Relocation:  
Main & Idaho Alley | 3rd to 5th Street.   
 
 Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to 
negotiate and execute a public works construction contract with Anderson & Wood Construction 
Co., Inc. for the bid amount of  THREE HUNDRED TWENTY EIGHT THOUSAND SEVEN 
HUNDRED SIXTY SEVEN AND 90/100 DOLLARS ($328,767.90), consistent with the Board’s 
stated instructions at the March 12, 2018, Agency Board Meeting; and further, is hereby 
authorized to execute all necessary documents required to implement the actions contemplated 
by the contract, subject to representations by Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent 
to those actions and the contract or other documents are acceptable and consistent with the 
comments and discussions received at the March 12, 2018 Agency Board Meeting. 

 
Section 4:  That the Executive Director is further authorized to expend funds for the 

bid amount of $328,767.90 plus up to 10% of this amount for construction contingencies if 
determined necessary in his best judgment. 

 
Section 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval.     
 
PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on March 12, 2018.  

Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the 
Board of Commissioners on March 12, 2018.   

 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 

 
 
      By:         
ATTEST:           Dana Zuckerman, Chair 
 
 
By:        
      Dave Bieter, Secretary 



 Page 4 

 

 

Attachment B 
 

Bid Results 

( Begins on the following page. ) 

 

 

 

 

  



Power Line Relocation:  Main & Idaho Alley - 3rd to 5th

BIDS DUE:  February 22, 2018  - 3:00 PM 

Bid Results

CONTRACTOR
PWC

License

Bid Security

(5% of Base 

Bid)

Signed

Contractor's 

Affidavit

Concerning 

Taxes

Unit Prices 

Submitted

Addendum #1 

Acknwldgd 

Subcontractor 

List per

Idaho Code

§ 67-2310

Completed 

Signed Bid Form BID AMOUNT

Anderson & Wood yes yes yes yes yes yes $328,767.9010702-U-1-3-4

kwanner
Text Box
ATTACHMENT B



 Page 5 

Attachment C 
 

Bid Received from ANDERSON & WOOD CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 

( Begins on the following page. ) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



kwanner
Text Box
ATTACHMENT C



















1 
 

 
 
 
TO:   Dana Zuckerman, Chair and CCDC Board of Commissioners 
FM:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 
RE:   CCDC Operations Report – March 2018 
 

COLLABORATION NATION 

 

The new $95 million CCDC 5 Year Capital 
Improvement Program is a bold and 
aggressive plan put forth this month by 
agency personnel. It’s also the result of 
extensive collaboration with private sector 
partners many relationships we value 
greatly because they – like CCDC – deliver 
results. There have been dozens of input 
points from public sector partners as well, 
leading to the updated document in this 
month’s board packet. The CIP is one of 
many ways that CCDC has improved its 
operation and become an innovative and 
high performing agency over the past few 
years. One of the key guiding principles is 
centered around collaboration. In fact, the word collaboration is prominent in our well-known 
Collaborate-Create-Develop-Complete mantra. That guiding principle is this: “Collaborating with 
public and private partners to proactively plan and complete high quality development projects 
advances our planning goals and enriches Boise’s prosperity.” 

A recent enhancement to our internal agency manifesto is the adoption of goals that were 
created and declared by the City Council and Mayor of Boise. Take a look at the annual report 
for 2017, and while you’re at, it look at 2016 and 2015. Those are impressive reports from and 
provide a distilled view of the tangible and measureable results we’ve achieved. These goals 
are outstanding and aligned with the city and will help in our pursuit of perfect balance. Whether 
you serve CCDC as a board member, employee, vendor, or private partner, you’ve played a key 
role in many great agency accomplishments. And in the spirit of March Madness and nod to 
Coach K, there are more big wins ahead as we move onto the next play. 

 



2 
 

 

 

Update: Vendor Payment via ACH 

Two years ago the Executive Committee authorized Finance to emphasize to Agency vendors 
an ACH (Automated Clearing House – an electronic funds-transfer system) process as the 
Agency’s preferred vendor payment option.  So began the formal, gradual transitioning from a 
manual, hard copy check-based bill-paying process.   

To-date this fiscal year the Agency has paid bills totaling $8.4 million.  Seventy-two percent 
($6.1 million) of those payments were made via ACH.  Three checks totaling about $1 million 
($750k Type 3 Transformative reimbursement to Athlos Academies and just under $230k in two 
checks to YESCO) comprised much of the remaining 28% ($2.3 million) paid by check.  

While the two payment processes are nearly identical, ACH advantages include improved 
customer service, faster payment, fewer manual processes (checks, envelopes, postage), 
increased security and accountability, convenience for recurring expenses, better for large dollar 
amounts, more efficient month-end processes (bank reconciliations), and eliminating a slow and 
cumbersome check-signing process for the Board Treasurer and Executive Director.  Like 
checks, most ACH payments receive prior approval via Purchase Order and have usually been 
previously approved by the Board.   

The Agency encourages all vendors – especially new vendors – to participate.  Vendors only 
have to provide their banking information and a W9 form.  The Agency respects that some 
vendors simply prefer to be paid by check and plans to always offer hard copy checks as a 
payment option.   

COMPETITIVE BIDDING and QUALIFICATION-BASED SELECTIONS 

ParkBOI Garage Signage – Invitation to Bid 

New parking garage signage to implement the ParkBOI brand identity. 

2017 

• April 10: Board awards public works construction contract to YESCO. 
• May 16:  Contract executed.  
• Summer:  Permitting and fabrication.  
• Nov 15:  Amendment signed to account for permitting delays. 
 
2018 

• February:  Final Completion delayed due to sign fabrication delays.  
• March 2: Substantial Completion met.  All signs are installed and illuminated. 
• March 23:  Final Completion 21 days later.  

 

Finance Team: Ross Borden, Joey Chen, Kevin Martin, Mary Watson, Kathy 
Wanner 



3 
 

CM/GC Central District Improvements Project 

Selection of a Construction Manager / General Contractor (CM/GC) for final year (pre-sunset) 
Central District improvements. 

2017 

• August 9: Request for Qualifications issued; public notice in Idaho Statesman.  
• Sept 7:  Submissions due from licensed CM/GCs.  
• October 9: Board approved Guho Corp as CM/GC. 
• November 21: Contract Executed; pre-construction services begin. 

 
2018 

• February 12:   The Board approved the contract amendment for first Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (GMP) for construction. 

• March 12: The Board will consider the second GMP for construction. 
 

2018 Streetscape Improvements Project – Selection of Design Professional 

Design of 2018 streetscape improvements on River Street between Ash Street and 12th Street.   

2017 

• October 24: RFP issued to three on-call design professional firms. 
• November 8: Proposals due from the design professionals. 
• November 28: The Land Group selected as the design professional of record. 
 
2018 

• January: Task Order with The Land Group for design documents. 
Note:  Project costs are estimated at less than $200k – informal bidding is planned. 

• April:   Construction Bidding – anticipated. 
• Summer: Contract awarded / Construction to proceed – anticipated. 

CM/GC Westside District Urban Park Project 

Selection of a Construction Manager / General Contractor (CM/GC) for an Urban Park project in 
the Westside District. 

2017 

• November 22: Request for Qualifications issued. 
• Nov 23 & 30: Public notice in Idaho Statesman. 
• December 8: Submissions due from licensed CM/GCs. 
 
2018 

• January 8:  Board approval of Wright Brothers as CM/GC. 
• March:   Contract executed; pre-construction services begin – anticipated. 

 

Power Line Undergrounding – Invitation to Bid 



4 
 

Formal bid process to select an electrical contractor to install underground power in the alley 
between Main and Idaho running from 3rd Street to 5th Street.  The project will be in coordination 
with Idaho Power and ACHD. 

• January 24:  Invitation to Bid issued. 
• February 22:  Bids due.  One Bid received. 
• March, 12, 2018: The Board will consider awarding the contract.  
• June 2018:  Notice to Proceed (in conjunction with ACHD’s start date) 

 

10th & Front Garage Concrete Repairs – RFQ and Bidding 

Two-step process to contract for extensive concrete repairs.  Pre-qualification process then 
bidding process.  Construction in Summer 2018. 

• March 1, 2018: Request for Qualifications Issued. 
• March 1 and 8: Public notice in the Idaho Statesman newspaper/ 
• March 15:  Statements of Qualifications are due from licensed contractors. 
• April:   Board approval of pre-qualified contractors – anticipated. 
• May:   Invitation to Bid given to pre-qualified contractors. 
• June:    Board approval of bid; contract for construction – anticipated. 

 

Other Contracts Activity 

Central District 

• Fountain Supply Company: Professional Services Agreement to synchronize The Grove 
Plaza fountain’s jets to music, to complete the spring startup procedures, and to provide 
operational reviews. 

• TML: License agreement to utilize a portion of 8th Street for a one day crane placement to 
remove and replace the HVAC system on the Fidelity Building. 

• Ruth’s Chris Steak House, Dawson Taylor Coffee, PieHole Pizza, The Mode Lounge, 
Thomas Hammer Coffee, Matador, and Diablo & Sons: in preparation for the Central 
District sunset and the upcoming improvements along 8th Street, CCDC has obtained 
updated property owner and the associated tenant sidewalk Patio License agreements for 
the outdoor dining space on 8th Street.   

 
River-Myrtle / Old Boise District 

• Guho Corp: Short-form Public Works Construction Agreement to repair two driveway 
approaches on the north side of Main Street between 5th and 6th streets.  

 

Westside District 

• Wash Worx: Task Order for fabrication and install of 10 direct-bury bike racks along the 
Gem Noble block on Main Street.  

• ProCare Landscaping Services: Task Order to provide landscape maintenance services 
and seasonal tree pruning on the recently acquired 421 N 10th Street property (former 
Idaho Sporting Goods). 



5 
 

• Total Systems Service: Services Agreement for HVAC Preventative Maintenance at the 
421 N 10th Street property. 

 

Parking 

• The Parking Consultants: Updated On-Call contract.  

• KPFF: Task Order to provide structural engineering services, including construction 
documents and construction administration, for the 10th & Front Parking Garage Concrete 
Repair Project. 

 

Agency-Focused 

• JedSplit Design: Task Order for design services for the Agency’s 2017 Annual Report. 

• Quadrant Consulting: Task Order for an infrastructure assessment in the proposed 
Shoreline District. 

 

 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
2403 W Fairview - Adare Manor Development - Designated PP 
 
Project Description 
A proposed housing development 
by Northwest Integrity Housing 
which incorporates the City 
owned ground on the south side 
of Fairview between 24th & 25th 
Street.  This development 
includes 134 units of mixed 
income housing, including market 
rate and affordable housing and 
retail space. It also includes a 
variety of sources of funds 
including state and local funds.  
 
Update 
The development has been approved at Design Review and is moving forward with a below 
market rate ground lease from the City of Boise and funding from the City Department of 
Housing and Community Development. The Developer has been awarded a Type 2 
Participation Agreement for approximately $480,000 of the roughly $940,000 in eligible public 
improvement costs (street improvements, streetscapes, undergrounding utilities). CCDC 

Development Team:  Todd Bunderson, Matt Edmond, Shellan Rodriguez, & 
Laura Williams, Karl Woods, Doug Woodruff, Ben Houpt. 



6 
 

awarded up to $250,000 in additional funds for utilities in a Type 4 Agreement. Total anticipated 
assistance is $730,000. 
 
Next Steps 
Because 30th Street District priorities have been revised and other private projects did not yet 
come to fruition, additional funds became available in the District and staff will be requesting 
approval of Type 4 Participation Agreement in February to complete streetscapes, sidewalks 
and utility undergrounding.  
 

Other Active Economic Development Projects 
 
503 - 647 S. Ash Street - Ash Street RFP - PP Type 5 
The DDA is fully executed and the alley vacation was approved by ACHD in February. The 
Developer is revising construction plans based on building department comments received, 
which has delayed closing. The Developer's financing seems strong but will be reviewed to 
confirm it remains in place when the construction start date is better known. 
 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 
 
122 N 5th Street - Shops at 5th - PP Type 1 
 
Project Description 
The property owner of the Brownfield’s building located 
on the southeast corner of 5th and Idaho Street plans 
to remodel the existing building for office and retail use. 
The renovation project includes significant alteration to 
the existing building and a 2,988 SF second floor 
addition. Public improvements in the right of way will be 
completed on 5th Street and Idaho Street frontages.   
 
Update 
The Board Designated the Shops at 5th as a Type 1 
Project at the February Board meeting. Staff has drafted a Type 1 Participation agreement to be 
approved by the Board at the March meeting on the Consent Agenda.  
 
Next Steps 
If the Board approves the Agreement in March, staff will execute the contract. Construction will 
begin this spring and is scheduled to be complete in early 2019. Reimbursement will be based 
off actual costs once construction is complete. 
 
 

Other Active Infrastructure Projects 
 
Bannock Street, 9th to Capitol Blvd - Streetscape Improvement Project & 8th Street, State 
- Bannock, Both Sides (Split with River Myrtle/Old Boise District) 
CCDC is restarting this project to align the design and construction with ACHD's DBIP work in 
the area in 2019. Staff submitted a Cost Share Application, and has hired Jensen Belts 
Associates as the design professional for the project. The project area has been surveyed. 

5th Street Rendering 



7 
 

CCDC has met with the City for multiple schematic design meetings. Jensen Belts Associates is 
working on parking, bike lane and vehicle travel options. The most viable design options are to 
be selected in collaboration with the City, and will be presented to stakeholders. 
 
T3 Participation: Streetscape Improvements Front & Myrtle, 9th & 11th (JUMP/Simplot HQ)  
The developer submitted a notice of completion and documentation of costs and CCDC staff 
inspected the streetscape improvements in February. The final certificate of occupancy is still 
outstanding. Staff is preparing written confirmation and determining if there are any outstanding 
requirements for public access prior to issuing the written confirmation. 
 
222 N 8th Street - Diablo & Suns - PP Type 1 Potential 
The Board designated Diablo & Sons as a Type 1 Project at the February Board meeting. Staff 
has drafted a Type 1 Participation agreement to be approved by the Board at the March 
meeting on the Consent Agenda. The applicant received updated cost estimates which will 
allow the owner to augment the project scope to include additional awnings along 8th and Main 
streets. The project will include three additional awnings to replace existing canvas canopies. If 
the Board approves the Agreement in March, staff will execute the contract. Construction has 
begun and the new awnings will be installed this spring. Reimbursement will be based off actual 
costs once construction is complete.  
 
 

MOBILITY PROJECTS 
 
 
Capitol & Front Garage 
 
Project Description 
CCDC is working to value the garage and is 
considering how best to approach a disposition 
process. This garage was originally built in the late 
1990's as part of a larger Grove Hotel development. 
CCDC has owned and operated the garage for the 
last 20 years, and the timing is right to consider 
removing it from the ParkBOI system. 
 
Update 
CCDC has received a consulting valuation that sets 
the value of the garage at $6.8 million. Agency staff is 
now working with legal counsel to draft an RFP for 
review and approval at the March Board meeting. 
The disposition process and RFP criteria will be 
presented. 
 
Next Steps 
Staff is requesting feedback and approval of the RFP at the March meeting. After the meeting, 
CCDC will finalize the RFP, publish it, and proceed with the RFP per statutory requirements. 
The Board will review proposals at the April or May Board meeting. 
 

 

Parcel Map 



8 
 

Other Active Mobility Projects 
 
ParkBOI Garage Painting 
The project has been completed, and CCDC has collected the last of the closeout documents.  
 
1101 Front - 11th & Front Garage 
CCDC has provided direction to the developer on parking equipment and waterproofing. 
Signage package approval is in progress. The added deck of the garage has pushed the PSA 
out to this month. The garage is planned to be open for public use in March. Okland 
Construction is completing final punch list items. 
 
Bike Rack Infill 
Based on a citizen request, CCDC installed ten additional bike racks on the Gem Block (Main 
between 10th and 11th streets) in early March. CCDC has installed twenty-nine bike racks based 
on requests from citizens, businesses, and other agencies in 2018. The Agency is working with 
the Chamber of Commerce and Gardner Company to install bike racks in front of Chamber 
offices on 11th Street. CCDC will also be fielding a prototype for a new bike corral in April. 
 
5th & 6th Street - 2-way Conversions - CIP Project 
ACHD has fully budgeted for conversion of 5th and 6th Streets (except 5th north of Washington) 
in 2019, with no cost share from CCDC. The City, CCDC, and some stakeholders have been 
evaluating impacts to parking and streetscapes under ACHD's proposed concept. Project kickoff 
TBA. 
 
Exterior Signage for All Garages 
All signs have been installed and lighting activated, though occasionally some signs are 
deactivated to work on minor electrical issues. The Parking Operator is currently working with 
the PARCS equipment supplier to activate the vehicle count system. Kiosk count signs are 
expected to be operational by the end of March.   
 
Parking Rate Examination 
The Downtown Parking Strategic plan suggested a periodic evaluation of our rate structure. 
New rates went into effect February 1. There were only seven monthly permit cancellations, and 
there hasn’t been any noticeable drop-off in monthly customer usage. We expect a parking rate 
examination to be part of the annual budget process and will make recommendations 
accordingly. 
 
5th and Front - Parking Garage - PP Type 3, 5 
Staff continues to work with legal counsel and the developer to get necessary documentation in 
place describing CCDC's partnership for the developer to use as they secure financing. In 
addition the land conveyance, CCDC will provide parking assistance and reimbursement for 
eligible public improvements. The developer is working toward a late spring/early summer 
groundbreaking. Staff anticipates bringing a Disposition Agreement to the Board in the coming 
months. CCDC will convey the land once financing is secured and building permits obtained. 
The construction period is approximately eighteen months. 
 
 
 
 
 



9 
 

PLACE MAKING PROJECTS 
 
Freak Alley & Union Block Alley - CCDC Alley Program 
 
 
Project Description 
CCDC and City of Boise are 
working with property owners and 
managers to improve Freak Alley 
and Union Block Alley as public 
spaces. Boise planning staff will 
manage an urban design process 
with a stakeholder group (including 
ownership interests), followed by 
final design and construction to be 
managed by CCDC. 
 
Update 
The sewer work was completed in 
February. 
 
Next Steps 
CCDC Board will consider GMP #2, which covers the alley work, at the March 12 Board 
meeting. If approved, work will begin in Freak Alley in late March and conclude in Union Alley in 
mid-June. 
 

Other Active Placemaking Projects 
 
West End Traffic Box - Public Art 
Artist selection was conducted March 7, 2018 and design content will be developed. 
 
South 8th Street District Plan - CIP Project 
The artists have been selected through the City, and design professionals for design projects 
have been contracted by CCDC. The project schedules are being reevaluated based on 
comments with the exception of the Simplot Alley work which will align with ACHD's permeable 
alley project in 2018. CTY Architects has provided a revised design for the tension sculpture 
based on Board comments. 
 
River Street Streetscape Improvements 
An RFP was issued to select design professionals and The Land Group Inc. has been selected. 
The schematic design is underway and has been submitted to design review. The Land Group 
and CCDC have met with the City, ACHD and adjacent property owners. The Land Group has 
incorporated feedback from those meetings into the design and has submitted for Design 
Review Approval. 
 
Boise City Art Project (South 8th Street Area) 
An artist has been selected for the mural at 8th and Fulton streets. The City has received an 
RFP response for the 8th Street pedestrian bridge lighting, and has refined the lighting scheme. 



10 
 

The mural is scheduled to be installed in spring of 2018. CTY Architects has provided revised 
design for the tension sculpture based on Board comments. 
 
5th & Myrtle New Signalized Crossing 
Construction road closures caused by The Fowler have ended, finally allowing for data 
collection necessary for a signal warrant analysis. COMPASS and ACHD will be collecting traffic 
and pedestrian data at and around the intersection in the coming weeks. 
 
Alley, 6th to 3rd between Main & Idaho - CCDC Alley Program 
Anderson & Wood Construction was the only bidder at the February 22 bid opening. The Board 
will consider contract award at its March 12 Board meeting. 
 
Central District Improvements (Including 8th Street) – CIP Project 
Construction of 8th Street furnishing zone improvements began on schedule, February 26, in 
front of Fork.  The temporary facilities and detours immediately garnered public feedback, "I like 
how they formed the pedestrian traffic controls on 8th. [...] worth repeating in the future." Guho 
Corp. has prepared the second GMP amendment to the Central District CMGC Contract.  It 
includes all contemplated work on Freak Alley and Union Alley, as well as procurement of some 
site furnishings for all phases of the project.  CCDC staff is recommending approval of the 
contract amendment at the March 12 Board Meeting. Capitol Boulevard streetscape and 
protected bike lane improvements have obtained Design review approval.  CSHQA is producing 
technical drawings and working with CCDC staff to coordinate with key stakeholders. 
The Freak/Union alley construction activity is planned to occur from April to June 15, depending 
on the status of other construction projects occurring in the area. Capitol Boulevard construction 
is planned to occur during June, July and August.  As construction approaches further detail will 
be developed and coordination with key stakeholders will occur. 
 
 

SPECIAL PROJECTS 
 
617 S. Ash St. - Hayman House - PP Type 5 
CCDC is working with the City of Boise Arts & History on reimbursement and conveyance plans.  
 
 

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT UPDATES 
 

8th Street 
CCDC is working with Boise Crane to put together a License Agreement for a Street Closure on 
March 11 for work at the Fidelity Building. 

ParkBOI Sign Project 
Substantial completion achieved March 1. YESCO is working on the punch list and closeout 
documents. Expected final completion is March 22. 
 
9th & Front Safety Railing 
Cable covers were installed mid-January. The install of railing postponed due to weather, new 
install dates are March 17 - 20. 
 
10th & Front Repairs 



11 
 

RFQ issued March 1. KPFF has been contracted to provide bid documents. This project is 
projected going out to bid in May. 
 
ParkBOI Sign Phase II 
CCDC met with Colliers to discuss multi-tenant signs in BODO on December 6. Colliers is 
working on a design. 
 
Ash Street Properties 
CCDC is working to relocate items stored at the future Ash Street Townhomes site. 
 
The Grove Plaza 
CCDC is working on the spring maintenance task list. The Suez Fountain activation and 
furnishings are anticipated to be the week of April 30.  
 


	03-12-2018 Board Meeting Agenda
	CONSENT February Paid Invoice Report
	CONSENT February 12, 2018 Board Meeting Minutes
	CONSENT Reso 1530 - Diablo & Sons  Approval
	CONSENT Reso 1531 Brownfields T1 Approval
	CONSENT Reso 1534 Whittier T4 Approval
	CONSENT FY18 Q1 Board Report
	ACTION FY17 Annual Report Agenda Packet
	ACTION - CIP Amendment
	ACTION Capitol & Front Garage Disposition
	ACTION Reso 1536 5th & Broad Garage
	ACTION Reso 1532 - Central District CMGC Contract Amendment #2, Freak Alley & Union Alley Improvements
	ACTON Reso 1533 - Consultant Services Contract for Shoreline District Formation
	ACTION Reso 1538 - Power Line Undergrounding - Alley Project Award
	March Operations Report



